
SCV Water Agency 
Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, October 17, 2023 
Regular Board Meeting Begins at 6:00 PM 

Members of the public may attend by the following options: 

Have a Public Comment?

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to ajacobs@scvwa.org or 
by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, 
CA 91350. All written comments received before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Board 
members and posted on the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything 
received after 4:00 PM. the day of the meeting will be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and posted on the 
SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in 
their entirety. (Public comments take place during Item 3 of the Agenda and before each Item is considered. Please see 
the Agenda for details.) 

------------ 

This meeting will be recorded and the audio recording for all Board meetings will be posted to yourSCVwater.com 
within 3 business days from the date of the Board meeting. 

Disclaimer: Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and guidelines 
regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a Board meeting. Attendees should 
therefore use their own judgment with respect to protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 

IN PERSON 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant 

Boardroom  
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road 

 Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

BY PHONE 

Toll Free: 1-(833)-568-8864 
Webinar ID: 161 337 5338

VIRTUALLY 

Please join the meeting from your computer, 
tablet or smartphone: 

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1613375338 

1

mailto:ajacobs@scvwa.org


[This page intentionally left blank.] 

2



27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 •  661 297•1600 •  FAX 661 297•1611 
webs i t e  address :  www.yourscvwate r . com

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

RIO VISTA WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
BOARDROOM  

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD 
SANTA CLARITA, CA 91350 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2023, AT 6:00 PM 

IMPORTANT NOTICES  

5:15 PM DISCOVERY ROOM OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
Dinner for Directors and staff in the Discovery Room.  

There will be no discussion of Agency business taking place prior to the 
Call to Order at 6:00 PM. 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 

Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 161 337 5338 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1613375338. Any member of the public may listen to the 

meeting or make comments to the Board using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link above. 
However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 

broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 

remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person. 

Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Board meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to protecting 

themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
ajacobs@scvwa.org or by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water 

Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received 
before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Board members and posted on 

the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything 
received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting, will be made available at the meeting, if 

practicable, and will be posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence 
with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3

tel:+18668994679,,963232301
tel:+18668994679,,660724405


October 17, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to items within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not on the Agenda at this time. Members
of the public wishing to comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so at the time
each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the Board’s presiding
officer, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.)

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

5. CONSENT CALENDAR   PAGE 

5.1   * Approve Minutes of the October 3, 2023 Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency Regular Board of Directors Meeting 7 

5.2   * Approve a Resolution Adopting a Revised Investment Policy 13 
5.3   * Approve a Revised Customer Service Policy 33 
5.4   * Approve the First Addendum to the Ground Lease for the 

Property at 22722 Soledad Canyon Road 37 
5.5   * Approve Purchase of Two (2) Backhoe Replacements for 

Agency Fleet  77 
5.6   * Approve Adopting a Resolution Authorizing Additional Change 

Order Authority to the General Manager for the Santa Clara 
and Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Project 83 

5.7   * Approve the Replacement of 4,273 Meters as Part of the AMI 
Meter Replacement Program 95 

5.8   * Approve a Contract to Rehabilitate Saugus Well 2 and Find 
that the Proposed Action is Exempt from CEQA 107 

5.9   * Approve Receiving and Filing of July 2023 Monthly Financial 
Report – July 2023 Check Register 123 

5.10 * Approve Adopting a Resolution Approving and Accepting 
Negotiated Exchange of Property Tax Revenues Resulting 
from Annexation to Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation District 
Annexation No. SCV-1130 151 

6. ACTION ITEM FOR APPROVAL   PAGE 

6.1   * Approve Adopting a Resolution Authorizing the General 
Manager to Execute a Purchase Order Amendment for 
Construction Management Services for the Saugus #3 and #4 
Wells Construction (Replacement Wells) Project 161 

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON ACTIVITIES, PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS

8. COMMITTEE MEETING RECAP REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY   PAGE 

8.1   * September 25, 2023 Rescheduled Finance and Administration 
Committee Meeting Recap Report  183 

8.2    * October 5, 2023 Engineering and Operations Committee 
Meeting Recap Report  189 

9. PRESIDENT’S REPORT

4

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/finance/check-registers/Check%20Register%20-%20July%202023.pdf


 
October 17, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

10. AB 1234 WRITTEN AND VERBAL REPORTS  PAGE  
 
10.1 AB 1234 Reports  

 
11. DIRECTOR REPORTS 

 
12. DIRECTOR REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

     
13. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
*    Indicates Attachment 
   Indicates Handout 
 
 

Note: The Board reserves the right to discuss or take action or both on all of the above 
Agenda items. 
 

NOTICES 
 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning April Jacobs, 
Secretary to the Board of Directors, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must 
specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone 
number or other contact information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss 
appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make 
the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested 
accommodation. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) 
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.  
 
Posted on October 11, 2023.  

5

http://www.yourscvwater.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

6



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency – October 3, 2023 
              
      
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency was held 
at Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 
at 6:00 PM on Tuesday, October 3, 2023. A copy of the Agenda is inserted in the Minute Book 
of the Agency preceding these minutes. The meeting recording can be accessed by clicking on 
the following link: Board Meeting Recording. 
 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: Kathye Armitage, Beth Braunstein, Maria Gutzeit, Dirk Marks, 

Gary Martin, Piotr Orzechowski and Ken Petersen.   
 
DIRECTORS ABSENT:   Ed Colley and William Cooper.   
   
Also present: Administrative Services Manager Kim Grass, Assistant General Manager Steve 
Cole, Board Secretary April Jacobs, Chief Engineer Courtney Mael (Virtually), Chief Financial 
and Administrative Officer Rochelle Patterson, Chief Operating Officer Keith Abercrombie, 
Communications Manager Kevin Strauss, Fleet and Warehousing Supervisor Jesus Martinez 
Ramirez, General Counsel Joe Byrne, Information Technology Technician II Jonathan Thomas, 
Best Best and Kriger Attorney Lutfi Kharuf (Virtually), as well as additional SCV Water Agency 
staff (Virtually), and members of the public (In Person and Virtually).   
 
President Martin called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. A quorum was present. 
 
There were no changes to the October 3, 2023 Board Amended Agenda and it was accepted as 
shown (Item 4).  
 

-------------- 
 
The Board went into Closed Session at 6:08 PM to discuss the following item: 
 

Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation  
Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d)  
of Section 54956.9: (One Case) 

 
The Zoom meeting was put on hold while the Board went into Closed Session. President Martin 
advised the public and staff for those who wanted to stay, to remain on the current 
teleconference line and once Closed Session ends, the Board would reconvene for Closed 
Session announcements and the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
President Martin reconvened the Open Session at 6:51 PM. 
 
Joe Byrne, Esq., reported that there were no actions taken in Closed Session that were 
reportable under the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 

-------------- 
 
Upon motion of Director Armitage, seconded by Vice President Orzechowski and carried, the 
Board approved the Consent Calendar including Resolution Nos. SCV-384 and SCV-385 by 
the following roll call votes (Item 5):  
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Braunstein   Yes  

7

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2023-10/Board_Recording_100323.mp3
ajacobs
Draft

ajacobs
Item 5.1



October 3, 2023 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 

  

Director Colley   Absent   Director Cooper   Absent 
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes   Director Marks    Yes  
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes  
Director Petersen   Yes 

 
RESOLUTION NO. SCV-384 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  

THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY TO 
 AUTHORIZE A PURCHASE ORDER TO KENNEDY JENKS CONSULTANTS, INC FOR 

PLANNING SERVICES FOR THE NORTH OAKS CENTRAL, EAST AND SIERRA WELLS 
GROUNDWATER TREATMENT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, AND FINDING THAT 
APPROVAL OF THE PROPOSED ACTION IS EXEMPT FROM CEQA REVIEW IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15262 
 

Link to Resolution No. SCV-384 
 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-385 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY TO 

AUTHORIZE A PURCHASE ORDER TO WOODARD & CURRAN, INC FOR PLANNING 
SERVICES FOR THE LOST CANYON, SAND CANYON, AND MITCHELL 5B  

GROUNDWATER TREATMENT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, AND FINDING THAT 
APPROVAL OF THE PROPOSED ACTION IS EXEMPT FROM CEQA REVIEW IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15262 
 

Link to Resolution No. SCV-385 
 

-------------- 
 
Upon motion of Vice President Orzechowski, seconded by Director Braunstein and carried, the 
Board approved Resolution No. SCV-386 establishing the Valenica Service Area Retail 
Capacity Fees by the following roll call votes (Item 6.1):  
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Braunstein   Yes  
Director Colley   Absent   Director Cooper   Absent 
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes   Director Marks    Yes  
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes  
Director Petersen   Yes 
 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-386 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
ESTABLISHING THE RATES OF RETAIL CAPACITY 

FEES FOR THE VALENCIA SERVICE AREA 
 

Link to Resolution No. SCV-386 
 

-------------- 

8

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2023-10/SCV-Water-Approved-Resolution-100323-Resolution-SCV-384.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2023-10/SCV-Water-Approved-Resolution-100323-Resolution-SCV-385.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2023-10/SCV-Water-Approved-Resolution-100323-Resolution-SCV-386.pdf


October 3, 2023 
Page 3 of 5 

Fleet and Warehousing Supervisor Jesus Martinez Ramirez gave a Fleet Warehousing 
Presentation (Item 7).   

-------------- 

General Manager’s Report on Activities, Projects and Programs (Item 8). 

General Manager Stone reported on the following:  

He reported that he attended the September 20-21, 2023 Board meetings of the State Water 
Contractors Board and Delta Conveyance Finance Authority. He mentioned that at the State 
Water Contractors meeting, there was a presentation from Deputy DWR Director Ted Craddock 
on operational issues and DWR’s strategic plan. He advised that he shared that information with 
the SCV Water Executive Team at their meeting on September 26, 2023. Additionally at that 
meeting, he mentioned that the Executive Team received an excellent presentation from SCV 
Water’s Human Resources staff regarding potential resources for staff training and 
development. Lastly, he mentioned that the SCV Water Health and Wellness Fair was on 
September 27, 2023 and that due to an illness he was unable to attend but heard it went well 
and was well attended.  

To hear the full report, please refer to the Board recording by clicking the meeting recording link 
on the first page of these minutes or visiting the SCV Water Website. 

-------------- 

Committee Meeting Recap Report for Informational Purposes Only (Item 9). 

There were no comments on the recap report. 

-------------- 

Written Reports for Informational Purposes Only (Item 10). 

Director Armitage made comments on the Finance, Administration and Technology Services 
Section Report pertaining to centralized purchasing of supplies, the Rate Payer Assistance 
Program and the recruitment of additional interns. She also commented on the Treatment, 
Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section Report regarding the reportable incidences 
during the month of August 2023 being at zero. And lastly, she commented on the Water 
Resources and Outreach Section report regarding the continued outreach to the HOA’s and 
staff’s attendance at the Bark Park event held at the Prominade Apartments at Town Center.  

Vice President Orzechowski asked about staff’s attendance at the California Water Data 
Summit.   

To hear the full comments, please refer to the Board recording by clicking the meeting recording 
link on the first page of these minutes or visiting the SCV Water Website. 

There were no other comments on the written reports. 

--------------- 

9



October 3, 2023 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

  

President’s Report (Item 11). 
  
President Martin updated the Board on upcoming meetings and events.  
 

-------------- 
 
AB 1234 Written and Verbal Reports (Item 12). 
 
Director Armitage reported that she virtually attended the Executive Committee meeting of the 
Special Districts Association of North Los Angeles County on September 20, 2023. 
 
Director Marks reported that he attended the VIA Tour of the Sheriff’s Station on Newhall Ranch 
Road on September 28, 2023.   
 
Vice President Orzechowski reported that he attended the SCV GSA Board meeting held at the 
RVWTP in the Boardroom on October 2, 2023 and virtually attended the Southern California 
Water Innovation Matters Webinar on September 21, 2023. 
 
Director Braunstein reported that she virtually attended a One-on-One meeting with the General 
Manager on October 3, 2023. 
 
President Martin reported that he attended the SCV-GSA Board meeting held at the RVWTP in 
the Boardroom on October 2, 2023. 
 
There were no other AB 1234 Reports.  

 
-------------- 

 
Director Reports (Item 13). 
 
Director Armitage was happy to hear that SCV Water participated in the 29th Annual Pow Wow 
held at Hart Park this past weekend. She thanked staff for their presence and being a face in 
the community.   
 
Director Martin asked Assistant General Manager (AGM) Steve Cole about the upcoming 
meeting on the Bouquet Creek Project. The AGM stated that on October 4, 2023 at Grace 
Baptist Church from 6:30 PM to 8:00 PM, the Los Angeles County Supervisor’s office will be 
presenting an update to the community on the Bouquet Creek Project.    
 
To hear the Directors report in their entirety, please refer to the Board recording by clicking the 
meeting recording link on the first page of these minutes or visiting the SCV Water Website. 
 
There were no other Director reports. 
 

-------------- 
 
Director Requests For Approval for Event Attendance (Item 14). 
 
There were no requests for future Agenda Items.  

10



October 3, 2023 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

  

-------------- 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:15 PM (Item 15). 
 
 
 
 
             
         April Jacobs, Board Secretary 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
President of the Board 
 
 
 

11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

12



BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 53646, the California Legislature mandates that the 
Agency annually prepare and adopt an Investment Policy. The Agency last adopted its policy in 
October 2022 and applies to the entire entity of SCV Water. 
 
Staff’s investment advisors, Chandler Asset Management, recommend the following modifications 
to update the policy to represent code changes, as well as best practices. Section 8.1 has 
additions and deletions; Section 10.8 is newly added, and an entire Glossary is added to help 
clarify any terms, which can be seen in its entirety in the attached resolution (Attachment 1). 
 
Underlined red text depicts an addition, whereas struck red text is a deletion. The attached draft 
resolution includes these revisions as a clean copy. Each modified section is followed by a brief 
explanation for the change, in italics. 
 
8.0 PORTFOLIO MATURITY LIMITS 

8.1 The maximum maturity for any single investment in the portfolio shall not exceed 
five years, unless the security is a US Treasury, Agency, or Municipal bond, in 
which case the maximum maturity is 10 years. unless the Board of Directors has 
by resolution granted authority to make such an investment either specifically or 
as a part of an investment program it has approved no less than three months 
prior to the investment, or is otherwise stated in this policy. 

 
This updated language reflects the management directive that securities are allowed to have 
maturities up to 10 years based on the Board’s Resolution SCV-303 approval in October 2022. 
 

10.8 The purchase of a security with a forward settlement date exceeding 45 days 
from the time of the investment is prohibited. 

 
SB 1489 (2022), which became effective January 1, 2023, prohibits the purchase of securities 
with forward settlement of greater than 45 days. Please note: although the law also extended 
the optional quarterly reports for up to 45 days, given the policy reflects only the mandatory 
monthly reports, this code change was not included.  
 
The model glossary includes the SB 1489 (2022) new definition of maturity dates based on 
settlement date, as opposed to the generally interpreted trade date.  
 

DATE: September 26, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Rochelle Patterson 
Director of Finance and Administration 

SUBJECT: Approve a Resolution Adopting a Revised Investment Policy 

13

ajacobs
Item 5.2

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson



No other changes to the policy are recommended at this time. 
 
On September 25, 2023, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve a resolution adopting a revised Investment Policy. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
The revisions to this policy help support SCV Water’s Strategic Plan Goal F: High Performance 
Team, specifically Strategies F.1. – “Implement post-merger integration of the new Agency,” as 
well as Strategy F.1.3 – “Update, develop and maintain clear and comprehensive policies for 
SCV Water.” 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve 
the attached resolution adopting a revised Investment Policy. 
 
RP 
 
Attachment 

14

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

ADOPTING A REVISED INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
1.0 POLICY 

1.1 WHEREAS; the Legislature of the State of California has declared that the 
deposit and investment of public funds by local officials and local agencies is an 
issue of statewide concern; and 

 
1.2 WHEREAS; the legislative body of a local agency may invest surplus monies not 

required for the immediate necessities of the local agency in accordance with the 
provisions of California Government Code Sections 53601 et seq.; and 

 
1.3 WHEREAS; the Treasurer of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency), 

acting under the direction and authority of the Finance Committee of the Agency, 
shall annually prepare and submit a statement of investment policy and such 
policy, and any changes thereto, shall be considered by the Board of Directors at 
a public meeting;  

 
1.4 NOW THEREFORE, it shall be the policy of the Agency to invest funds in a 

manner, which will provide the highest investment return with the maximum 
security while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the Agency and 
conforming to all statutes governing the investment of Agency funds. 
 

2.0 SCOPE 
This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the Agency. These funds are 
accounted for in the annual Agency audit. The Agency pools all cash for investment 
purposes. This policy is applicable, but not limited to all funds listed below: 
 

General/Operating Fund - 101 
 
Special Revenue Funds 

a) One Percent Property Tax Fund - 101 
b) Facility Capacity Fee Fund -202 
c) State Water Project Fund - 204 

 
Capital Project Fund 
Debt Service Fund 
Reserve Funds 
Enterprise Fund 
Grant Funds 
 
 
Blended Component Units 

a) Devil’s Den Water District – 970 
b) Upper Santa Clara Valley JPA – 975 
c) SCV Groundwater Sustainability Agency - 980 

15



 

 
3.0 PRUDENCE; RESPONSIBILITY 
 

3.1 Prudence: Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under 
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic 
conditions and the anticipated needs of the Agency, which persons of prudence, 
discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs; not 
for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital 
as well as the probable income to be derived. The standard of prudence to be 
used by investment officials shall be the "prudent investor" standard (California 
Government Code 53600.3) and shall be applied in the context of managing an 
overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures 
and the investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of 
personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price 
changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion 
and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

3.2 Responsibility:  The Treasurer and other individuals assigned to manage the 
investment portfolio, acting with the intent and scope of this investment policy 
while exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility for the 
credit risk and market price risk for securities held in the investment portfolio, 
provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely manner and 
appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

4.0 OBJECTIVES 
When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and managing 
public funds, the primary objectives, in priority order, of the investment activities shall be: 
 
4.1 Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. 

Investments of the Agency shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure 
the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. To attain this objective, 
diversification is required in order that potential losses on individual securities do 
not exceed the income generated from the remainder of the portfolio. 
 

4.2 Liquidity: The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the 
Agency to meet all operating requirements and budgeted expenditures.  
Investments will be undertaken with the expectation that unplanned expenses will 
be incurred; therefore, portfolio liquidity will be created to cover reasonable 
contingency costs.  

 
4.3 Return on Investments: The investment portfolio shall be designed with the 

objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic 
cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints and the cash flow 
characteristics of the portfolio.  The goal is to maximize return while ensuring that 
safety and liquidity objectives are not compromised. 

 
5.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

Authority to manage the investment program is derived from California Government 
Code 53600, et seq. Overall accountability and authority for implementation of this policy 
shall remain with the Board of Directors of the Agency and overseen by the Agency’s 
Finance Committee. The day-to-day responsibility for management and implementation 

16



 

of the investment program is the responsibility of the General Manager who may 
delegate the responsibility to the Treasurer, who, where and when appropriate, shall 
establish written procedures for the operation of the investment program consistent with 
this investment policy. With this delegation the Treasurer is given the authority to utilize 
internal staff and outside investment managers to assist in the investment program. The 
Treasurer shall use care to assure that those assigned responsibility to assist in the 
management of the Agency's portfolio do so in accordance with this policy.  
 
External investment advisers may be granted discretion to purchase and sell investment 
securities in accordance with this investment policy.  
 
No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms 
of this policy and the procedures established by the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be 
responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to 
regulate the activities of subordinate officials. Under the provisions of California 
Government Code 53600.3, the Treasurer is a trustee and a fiduciary subject to the 
prudent investor standard. 

 
6.0 ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

The Treasurer and officers and employees involved in the investment process shall 
refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper execution of the 
investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment 
decisions. Officials and staff members involved with the investment function shall 
disclose to the Board of Directors any personal financial interest with a financial 
institution, broker or investment issuer conducting business with the Agency. Officials 
and staff members shall further disclose to the Board of Directors any personal financial 
interest in any entity related to the investment performance of the Agency's portfolio. 

 
7.0 AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS 

The Treasurer will maintain a list of financial institutions, selected on the basis of credit 
worthiness, financial strength, experience and minimal capitalization authorized to 
provide investment services. In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved 
security broker/dealers selected by credit worthiness who are authorized to provide 
investment and financial advisory services in the State of California. No public deposit 
shall be made except in a qualified public depository as established by state laws. 

 
For brokers/dealers of government securities and other investments, the Treasurer shall 
select only broker/dealers who are licensed and in good standing with the California 
Department of Securities, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the National 
Association of Securities Dealers or other applicable self-regulatory organizations. 

 
Before engaging in investment transactions with a broker/dealer, the Treasurer shall 
have received from said firm a signed Certification Form. This form shall attest that the 
individual responsible for the Agency’s account with that firm has reviewed the Agency’s 
Investment Policy and that the firm understands the policy and intends to present 
investment recommendations and transactions to the Agency that are appropriate under 
the terms and conditions of the Investment Policy. 
 
Selection of financial institutions and broker/dealers authorized to engage in transactions 
will be at the sole discretion of the Agency, except where the Agency utilizes an external 
investment adviser in which case the Agency may rely on the adviser for selection. To 

17



 

the extent practicable, the Treasurer or its external investment advisor shall endeavor to 
complete investment transactions using a competitive bid process whenever possible. 

 
The Agency is a local agency authorized to invest surplus monies in the Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF). LAIF is a special trust fund in the custody of the State 
Treasurer and the Local Investment Advisory Board created under Government Code 
Section 16429.2, which advises the State Treasurer on the investment and reinvestment 
of LAIF deposits. Each local agency with LAIF deposits has a separate account within 
LAIF, but the total deposits in LAIF are managed as a pooled investment account. The 
securities eligible for LAIF investments are statutorily specified in Government Code 
Section 16430 and are more conservative than those investments permitted under 
Government Code Section 53601, which governs the management of invested surplus 
monies by local agencies. Accordingly, the Treasurer need not be concerned with the 
qualifications of those financial institutions and broker/dealers with whom LAIF transacts 
business. 
 

 
8.0 PORTFOLIO MATURITY LIMITS 

8.1 The maximum maturity for any single investment in the portfolio shall not exceed 
five years, unless the security is a US Treasury, Agency, or Municipal bond, in 
which case the maximum maturity is 10 years.  

 
8.2 Market risk is the risk that the portfolio value will fluctuate due to changes in the 

general level of interest rates. The Agency recognizes that, over time, longer-
term portfolios have the potential to achieve higher returns. On the other hand, 
longer-term portfolios have higher volatility of return. The Agency will mitigate 
market risk by providing adequate liquidity for short-term cash needs, and by 
making longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for current 
cash flow purposes. 

 
The Agency further recognizes that certain types of securities, including variable 
rate securities, securities with principal paydowns prior to maturity, and securities 
with embedded options, will affect the market risk profile of the portfolio 
differently in different interest rate environments. Therefore, the duration of the 
portfolio will generally be approximately equal to the duration (typically, plus or 
minus 20%) of a Market Benchmark, an index selected by the Agency based on 
the Agency’s investment objectives, constraints and risk tolerances. 

 
9.0 AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS 

The Agency is empowered by California Government Code 53601 et seq. to invest in the 
following: 
 
9.1 Bonds issued by the Agency. 

 
9.2 United States Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds. 

 
9.3 Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds issued by the State of 

California. 
 

9.4 Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the 49 United States in addition to 
California, including bonds payable solely out of revenues from revenue-

18



 

producing property owned, controlled, or operated by a state or by a department, 
board, agency, or authority of any of the other 49 United States, in addition to 
California. The securities are rated in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or 
better by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization 
(NRSRO). No more than 30% of the portfolio may be in Municipal Securities. 

 
9.5 Bonds, notes, warrants or other evidence of debt issued by a local agency within 

the State of California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a 
revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by the local agency, or 
by a department, board, agency, or authority of the local agency; and also including 
pooled investment accounts sponsored by the State of California, County 
Treasurers, other local agencies or Joint Powers Agencies. The securities are 
rated in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or better by at least one 
NRSRO. No more than 30% of the portfolio may be in Municipal Securities. The 
LAIF is an approved pooled investment account.  

 
9.6 Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations, 

participations, or other instruments, including those issued by, or fully guaranteed 
as to principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-
sponsored enterprises. No more than 30% of the portfolio may be invested in any 
single federal agency/GSE issuer. The maximum percent of federal agency 
callable securities in the portfolio will be 20%. 

 
9.7 Bankers’ acceptances otherwise known as bills of exchange or time drafts that 

are drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank. Purchases of bankers’ 
acceptances may not exceed 180 days’ maturity or 40% of the Agency’s money 
that may be invested pursuant to this policy. However, no more than 30% of the 
Agency’s money can be invested in the bankers’ acceptances of any single 
commercial bank. 
 

9.8 Commercial paper of “prime” quality of the highest ranking or of the highest letter 
and number rating as provided for by a nationally-recognized statistical-rating 
organization. The entity that issues the commercial paper shall either be: 
 
9.8.1 organized and operating within the United States as a general 

corporation, shall have total assets in excess of Five Hundred Million 
Dollars ($500,000,000), and shall issue debt, other than commercial 
paper, if any, that is rated in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or 
higher by a nationally-recognized statistical-rating organization; or 

 
9.8.2 organized within the United States as a special-purpose corporation, 

trust, or limited liability company, have program-wide credit 
enhancements including, but not limited to, over collateralization, letters 
of credit, or surety bond, and has commercial paper that is rated “A-1” or 
higher, or the equivalent, by a nationally-recognized statistical-rating 
organization. 
 

Eligible commercial paper shall have a maximum maturity of 270 days or less. 
The Agency shall invest no more than 25% of its money in eligible commercial 
paper. Under a provision sunsetting on January 1, 2026, provided that if the 

19



 

Agency has $100,000,000 or more of investment assets under management, the 
Agency may invest no more than 40% of its money in eligible commercial paper. 
 

9.9 (i) Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or state-chartered 
bank, a savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section 5102 
of the Financial Code), a state or federal credit union, or by a federal or state-
licensed branch of a foreign bank. Purchases of negotiable certificates of deposit 
may not exceed 30% of the Agency’s money which may be invested pursuant to 
this policy. The Board of Directors and the Treasurer are prohibited from 
investing Agency funds, or funds in the Agency’s custody, in negotiable 
certificates of deposit issued by a state or federal credit union if a member of the 
Board of Directors, or any person with investment decision-making authority 
within the Agency also serves on the Board of Directors, or any committee 
appointed by the Board of Directors, or the credit committee or the supervisory 
committee of the state or federal credit union issuing the negotiable certificates of 
deposit. The amount of the NCD insured up to the FDIC limit does not require 
any credit ratings. Any amount above the FDIC insured limit must be issued by 
institutions which have short-term debt obligations rated “A-1” or its equivalent or 
better by at least one NRSRO; or long-term obligations rated in a rating category 
of “A” or its equivalent or better by at least one NRSRO. 
 
(ii) Deposits at a commercial bank, savings bank, savings and loan association or 
credit union that uses a private sector entity that assists in the placement of such 
certificates of deposit, pursuant to Government Code Section 53601.8. Deposits 
shall be subject to Government Code Section 53638 and may not exceed 50% of 
the Agency’s money which may be invested pursuant to this policy. 
 

9.10 Repurchase/Reverse Repurchase Agreements of any securities authorized by 
Section 53061. The market value of securities that underlay a repurchase 
agreement shall be valued at 102% or greater of the funds borrowed against those 
securities, and are subject to the special limits and conditions of California 
Government Code 53601(j).   
 
 

9.11 Medium term notes, defined as all corporate and depository institution debt 
securities with a maximum remaining maturity of 5 years or less, issued by 
corporations organized and operating with the United States or by depository 
institutions licensed by the United States or any state and operating within the 
United States. Notes eligible for investment under this subdivision shall be rated 
in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or better by a nationally recognized 
rating service. Purchases of medium-term notes shall not include other 
instruments authorized by this policy and shall not exceed 30% of the Agency’s 
money which may be invested pursuant to this policy.  
 

9.12 Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies 
(mutual funds) investing in the securities and obligations authorized by this 
policy, and shares in money market mutual funds, subject to the restrictions of 
California Government Code Section 53601(l). The purchase price of 
investments under this subdivision shall not exceed 20% of the Agency’s 
investments under this policy. However, no more than 10% of the Agency’s 
money may be invested in any one mutual fund.  

20



 

 
9.13 Moneys held by a trustee or fiscal agent and pledged to the payment or security 

of bonds or other indebtedness, or obligations under a lease, installment sale, or 
other agreement of a local agency, or certificates of participation in those bonds, 
indebtedness, or lease installment sale, or other agreements, may be invested in 
accordance with the statutory provisions governing the issuance of those bonds, 
indebtedness, or lease installment sale, or other agreement, or to the extent not 
inconsistent therewith or if there are no specific statutory provisions, in 
accordance with the ordinance, resolution, indenture, or agreement of the local 
agency providing for the issuance. 
 

9.14 Notes, bonds, or other obligations that are at all times secured by a valid first 
priority security interest in securities of the types listed by California Government 
Code Section 53651 as eligible securities for the purpose of securing local 
agency deposits having a market value at least equal to that required by 
California Government Code Section 53652 for the purpose of securing local 
agency deposits. The securities serving as collateral shall be placed by delivery 
or book entry into the custody of a trust company or the trust department of a 
bank which is not affiliated with the issuer of the secured obligation, and the 
security interest shall be perfected in accordance with the requirements of the 
Uniform Commercial Code or federal regulations applicable to the types of 
securities in which the security interest is granted. 
 

9.15 Asset backed, mortgage passthrough security, collateralized mortgage 
obligation, mortgage-backed or other pay-through bond, equipment lease-backed 
certificate, consumer receivable passthrough certificate, or consumer receivable-
backed bond from issuers not defined in sections 9.2 and 9.6 shall have: 

 
9.15.1 A maximum legal final maturity that does not exceed five years.  
9.15.2 A rating category of “AA” or its equivalent or better by a nationally 

recognized rating service.  
9.15.3 May not exceed 20% of the Agency's surplus moneys that may be 

invested pursuant to this policy. 
9.15.4 No more than 5% of the portfolio may be invested in any single Asset-

Backed or Commercial Mortgage security issuer. 
 

9.16 Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority organized 
pursuant to Section 6509.7 that invests in the securities and obligations 
authorized under Government Code Section 53601. Each share shall represent 
an equal proportional interest in the underlying pool of securities owned by the 
joint powers authority. To be eligible, the joint powers authority issuing the shares 
must have retained an investment advisor that is registered or exempt from 
registration with the Securities and Exchange Commission, have not less than 
five years of experience in investing in the securities and obligations authorized 
under Government Code Section 53601, and have assets under management in 
excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000). 
 

9.17 Proposition 1A receivables sold pursuant to California Government Code Section 
53999. A “Proposition 1A receivable” constitutes the right to payment of moneys 
due or to become due to a local agency, pursuant to clause (iii) of subparagraph 

21



 

(B) of paragraph (1) of subdivision (a) of Section 25.5 of Article XIII of the 
California Constitution and Section 100.06 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

 
9.18 United States dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations 

issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation, or Inter-
American Development Bank, with a maximum remaining maturity of five years 
or less, and eligible for purchase and sale within the United States. Investments 
under this subdivision shall be rated in a rating category of “AA” or its equivalent or 
better by a nationally recognized rating service  and shall not exceed 30 percent 
of the Agency's moneys that may be invested pursuant to this policy. No more 
than 10% of the portfolio may be invested in any single issuer. 

 
9.19 Deposits at a commercial bank, savings bank, savings and loan association or 

credit union that uses a private sector entity that assists in the placement of such 
certificates of deposit, pursuant to Government Code Section 53601.8. Deposits 
shall be subject to Government Code Section 53638 and may not exceed 50% of 
the District’s money which may be invested pursuant to this policy. 
 

9.20 Any other investment security authorized under the provisions of California 
Government Code Sections 5922 and 53601. 

  

22

http://www.westlaw.com/Find/Default.wl?rs=dfa1.0&vr=2.0&DB=1000203&DocName=CACNART13S25.5&FindType=Y
http://www.westlaw.com/Find/Default.wl?rs=dfa1.0&vr=2.0&DB=1000203&DocName=CACNART13S25.5&FindType=Y
http://www.westlaw.com/Find/Default.wl?rs=dfa1.0&vr=2.0&DB=1000222&DocName=CARTS100.06&FindType=Y


 

California Code (Source: CDIAC) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
10.0 PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS 

The following are prohibited: 
 
10.1 Investment in futures and options. 
 
10.2 Investment in inverse floaters, range notes, or mortgage derived interest-only 

strips. (Gov. Code §53601.6.) 

Highest letter and 
number rating by a 

nationally recognized 
rating service 

 

 

Highest letter and 
number rating by a 

nationally recognized 
rating service 

 

 

Highest letter and 
number rating by a 

nationally recognized 
rating service 

 

 

23



 

 
10.3 Investment in any security that could result in a zero interest accrual if held to 

maturity. Under a provision sunsetting on January 1, 2026, securities backed by 
the U.S. Government that could result in a zero- or negative-interest accrual if 
held to maturity are permitted. (Gov. Code §53601.6.) 

 
10.4 Trading securities for the sole purpose of speculating on the future direction of 

interest rates. 
 
10.5 Purchasing or selling securities on margin. 
 
10.6 The use of reverse repurchase agreements as a form of leverage, securities 

lending or any other form of borrowing or leverage. 
 
10.7 The purchase of foreign currency denominated securities. 
 
10.8 The purchase of a security with a forward settlement date exceeding 45 days 

from the time of the investment is prohibited. 
 

11.0 COLLATERALIZATION 
The Agency shall require any depository to adhere to the collateralization requirements 
of Government Code section 53652. 
 

12.0 SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY 
All securities owned by the Agency, except collateral for repurchase agreements, will be 
held in safekeeping at a third party bank trust department that will act as agent for the 
Agency under terms of a custody agreement. 
 
Securities used as collateral for repurchase agreements with a term of up to seven days 
can be safe kept by a third party bank trust department, or by the broker/dealer's 
safekeeping institution, acting as agent for the Agency under the terms of a custody 
agreement executed by the broker/dealer and the Agency and specifying the Agency's 
perfected ownership of the collateral.  

 
All investment transactions will require a safekeeping receipt or acknowledgment 
generated from the trade. A monthly report will be received by the Agency from the 
custodian listing all securities held in safekeeping with current market data and other 
information. Payment for all transactions will be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment 
(DVP) basis.   
 
The only exceptions to the foregoing shall be depository accounts and securities 
purchases made with: (i) local government investment pools; (ii) time certificates of 
deposit, and, (iii) mutual funds and money market mutual funds, since these securities 
are not deliverable. 
 

13.0 LEVERAGING 
Investments may not be purchased on margin.  Securities can be purchased on a "When 
Issued" basis only when a cash balance can be maintained to pay for the securities on 
the purchase settlement date. 
 
 

24



 

14.0 DIVERSIFICATION 
The Agency will diversify its investments by security type and institution. Assets shall be 
diversified to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a 
specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific class of securities.   
 
Diversification strategies shall be reviewed and revised periodically. In establishing 
specific diversification strategies, the following general policies and constraints shall 
apply: 
 
14.1 Portfolio maturity dates shall be matched versus liabilities to avoid undue 

concentration in a specific maturity sector. 
 

14.2 Maturities selected shall provide for stability of income and liquidity. 
 
14.3 Disbursement and payroll dates shall be covered through maturities of 

investments, marketable United States Treasury bills or other cash equivalent 
instruments such as money market mutual funds. 

 
14.4 No more than 5% of the total portfolio may be deposited with or invested in 

securities issued by any single issuer unless except treasuries, agencies, 
Supranationals, and money market funds and otherwise specified in this policy. 

 
14.5 If a security owned by the Agency is downgraded to a level below the 

requirements of this policy, making the security ineligible for additional 
purchases, the following steps will be taken: 

 
a. Any actions taken related to the downgrade by the investment 

manager will be communicated to the Treasurer in a timely manner. 
b. If a decision is made to retain the security, the credit situation will be 

monitored and reported to the Board of Directors. 
 

14.6 Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose some or all its value 
due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its debt. The 
Agency will mitigate credit risk by adopting diversification requirements, issuer 
limitations and downgrade language.  The Agency may elect to sell a security 
prior to its maturity and record a capital gain or loss to manage the quality, 
liquidity or yield of the portfolio in response to market conditions or the Agency’s 
risk preferences. 

 
15.0 REPORTING 

Monthly transaction reports will be submitted by the Treasurer to the Board of Directors 
within 30 days of the end of the reporting period in accordance with California 
Government Code Section 53607.  
 
The Treasurer shall submit to each member of the Board of Directors an investment 
report at least monthly. The report shall include a complete description of the portfolio, 
the type of investments, the issuers, maturity dates, par values and the current market 
values of each component of the portfolio, including funds managed for Agency by third 
party contracted managers. The report will also include the source of the portfolio 
valuation. For funds, which are placed in LAIF, FDIC-insured accounts and/or in a 
county investment pool, the foregoing report elements may be replaced by copies of the 

25



 

latest statements from such institutions. The report must also include a certification that 
(1) all investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full 
compliance with the Investment Policy and, (2) the Agency will meet its expenditure 
obligations for the next six months as required by Government Code Section 
53646(b)(2) and (3), respectively. The Treasurer shall maintain a complete and timely 
record of all investment transactions.  
 

16.0 INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 The Treasurer is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control 

structure designed to ensure that the assets of the entity are protected from loss, theft or 
misuse. The internal control structure shall be designed to provide reasonable 
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be 
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 
management.  

  
Periodically, as deemed appropriate by the Agency and/or the Board of Directors, an 
independent analysis by an external auditor shall be conducted to review internal 
controls, account activity and compliance with policies and procedures. 

 
17.0 PORTFOLIO REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:  

The Treasurer shall periodically, but no less than quarterly, review the portfolio to identify 
investments that do not comply with this investment policy and establish protocols for 
reporting major and critical incidences of noncompliance to the Board of Directors.  
 
The investment portfolio shall be designed to attain a market-average rate of return 
throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the Agency’s risk 
constraints, the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio, and state and local laws, 
ordinances or resolutions that restrict investments. 
 
The Treasurer shall monitor and evaluate the portfolio’s performance relative to the 
chosen market benchmark(s), which will be included in the Treasurer’s quarterly report. 
The Treasurer shall select an appropriate, readily available index to use as a market 
benchmark. 
 

18.0 INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION 
The Investment Policy shall be adopted by resolution of the Agency. Moreover, the 
Policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis, and modifications must be approved by the 
Board of Directors. 

 
 

  

26



 

GLOSSARY OF INVESTMENT TERMS 
 
AGENCIES. Shorthand market terminology for any obligation issued by a government-sponsored 

entity (GSE), or a federally related institution. Most obligations of GSEs are not 
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government. Examples are:  
 
FFCB. The Federal Farm Credit Bank System provides credit and liquidity in the 

agricultural industry. FFCB issues discount notes and bonds.  
FHLB. The Federal Home Loan Bank provides credit and liquidity in the housing market. 

FHLB issues discount notes and bonds.  
FHLMC. Like FHLB, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation provides credit and 

liquidity in the housing market. FHLMC, also called “FreddieMac” issues discount 
notes, bonds and mortgage pass-through securities.  

FNMA. Like FHLB and FreddieMac, the Federal National Mortgage Association was 
established to provide credit and liquidity in the housing market. FNMA, also known 
as “FannieMae,” issues discount notes, bonds and mortgage pass-through 
securities. 

GNMA. The Government National Mortgage Association, known as “GinnieMae,” issues 
mortgage pass-through securities, which are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of 
the US Government.  

PEFCO. The Private Export Funding Corporation assists exporters. Obligations of 
PEFCO are not guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government.  

TVA. The Tennessee Valley Authority provides flood control and power and promotes 
development in portions of the Tennessee, Ohio, and Mississippi River valleys. TVA 
currently issues discount notes and bonds.  

ASSET BACKED SECURITIES. Securities supported by pools of installment loans or leases or by 
pools of revolving lines of credit.  

AVERAGE LIFE. In mortgage-related investments, including CMOs, the average time to expected 
receipt of principal payments, weighted by the amount of principal expected.  

BANKER’S ACCEPTANCE. A money market instrument created to facilitate international trade 
transactions. It is highly liquid and safe because the risk of the trade transaction is 
transferred to the bank which “accepts” the obligation to pay the investor.  

BENCHMARK. A comparison security or portfolio. A performance benchmark is a partial market 
index, which reflects the mix of securities allowed under a specific investment policy. 

BROKER. A broker brings buyers and sellers together for a transaction for which the broker 
receives a commission. A broker does not sell securities from their own position.  

CALLABLE. A callable security gives the issuer the option to call it from the investor prior to its 
maturity. The main cause of a call is a decline in interest rates. If interest rates decline, 
the issuer will likely call its current securities and reissue them at a lower rate of interest. 

CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT (CD). A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a certificate. 
CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT ACCOUNT REGISTRY SYSTEM (CDARS). A private placement service 

that allows local agencies to purchase more than $250,000 in CDs from a single 
financial institution (must be a participating institution of CDARS) while still maintaining 
FDIC insurance coverage. CDARS is currently the only entity providing this service. 
CDARS facilitates the trading of deposits between the California institution and other 
participating institutions in amounts that are less than $250,000 each, so that FDIC 
coverage is maintained. 

COLLATERAL. Securities or cash pledged by a borrower to secure repayment of a loan or 
repurchase agreement. Also, securities pledged by a financial institution to secure 
deposits of public monies.  

27



 

COLLATERALIZED BANK DEPOSIT. A bank deposit that is collateralized at least 100% (principal 
plus interest to maturity).  The deposit is collateralized using assets set aside by the 
issuer such as Treasury securities or other qualified collateral to secure the deposit in 
excess of the limit covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS (CMO). Classes of bonds that redistribute the cash 
flows of mortgage securities (and whole loans) to create securities that have different 
levels of prepayment risk, as compared to the underlying mortgage securities. 

COLLATERALIZED TIME DEPOSIT. Time deposits that are collateralized at least 100% (principal 
plus interest to maturity).  These instruments are collateralized using assets set aside by 
the issuer such as Treasury securities or other qualified collateral to secure the deposit 
in excess of the limit covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

COMMERCIAL PAPER. The short-term unsecured debt of corporations.  
COUPON. The rate of return at which interest is paid on a bond. 
CREDIT RISK. The risk that principal and/or interest on an investment will not be paid in a timely 

manner due to changes in the condition of the issuer.  
DEALER. A dealer acts as a principal in security transactions, selling securities from and buying 

securities for their own position.  
DEBENTURE. A bond secured only by the general credit of the issuer.  
DELIVERY VS. PAYMENT (DVP). A securities industry procedure whereby payment for a security 

must be made at the time the security is delivered to the purchaser’s agent.  
DERIVATIVE. Any security that has principal and/or interest payments which are subject to 

uncertainty (but not for reasons of default or credit risk) as to timing and/or amount, or 
any security which represents a component of another security which has been 
separated from other components (“Stripped” coupons and principal). A derivative is also 
defined as a financial instrument the value of which is totally or partially derived from the 
value of another instrument, interest rate, or index.  

DISCOUNT. The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when the 
cost is below par. Some short-term securities, such as T-bills and banker’s acceptances, 
are known as discount securities. They sell at a discount from par and return the par 
value to the investor at maturity without additional interest. Other securities, which have 
fixed coupons, trade at a discount when the coupon rate is lower than the current market 
rate for securities of that maturity and/or quality.  

DIVERSIFICATION. Dividing investment funds among a variety of investments to avoid excessive 
exposure to any one source of risk.  

DURATION. The weighted average time to maturity of a bond where the weights are the present 
values of the future cash flows. Duration measures the price sensitivity of a security to 
changes interest rates.  

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION (FDIC). The Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) is an independent federal agency insuring deposits in U.S. banks 
and thrifts in the event of bank failures. The FDIC was created in 1933 to maintain public 
confidence and encourage stability in the financial system through the promotion of 
sound banking practices.    

FEDERALLY INSURED TIME DEPOSIT. A time deposit is an interest-bearing bank deposit account 
that has a specified date of maturity, such as a certificate of deposit (CD). These 
deposits are limited to funds insured in accordance with FDIC insurance deposit limits.    

LEVERAGE. Borrowing funds in order to invest in securities that have the potential to pay 
earnings at a rate higher than the cost of borrowing. 

LIQUIDITY. The speed and ease with which an asset can be converted to cash.  
LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF). A voluntary investment fund open to government 

entities and certain non-profit organizations in California that is managed by the State 
Treasurer’s Office. 

28



 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL. Investment pools that range from the State Treasurer’s 
Office Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) to county pools, to Joint Powers Authorities 
(JPAs). These funds are not subject to the same SEC rules applicable to money market 
mutual funds. 

MAKE WHOLE CALL. A type of call provision on a bond that allows the issuer to pay off the 
remaining debt early. Unlike a call option, with a make whole call provision, the issuer 
makes a lump sum payment that equals the net present value (NPV) of future coupon 
payments that will not be paid because of the call. With this type of call, an investor is 
compensated, or "made whole." 

MARGIN. The difference between the market value of a security and the loan a broker makes 
using that security as collateral. 

MARKET RISK. The risk that the value of securities will fluctuate with changes in overall market 
conditions or interest rates. 

MARKET VALUE. The price at which a security can be traded.  
MATURITY. The final date upon which the principal of a security becomes due and payable. The 

investment’s term or remaining maturity is measured from the settlement date to final 
maturity. 

MEDIUM TERM NOTES. Unsecured, investment-grade senior debt securities of major corporations 
which are sold in relatively small amounts on either a continuous or an intermittent basis. 
MTNs are highly flexible debt instruments that can be structured to respond to market 
opportunities or to investor preferences.  

MODIFIED DURATION. The percent change in price for a 100-basis point change in yields. 
Modified duration is the best single measure of a portfolio’s or security’s exposure to 
market risk.  

MONEY MARKET. The market in which short-term debt instruments (T-bills, discount notes, 
commercial paper, and banker’s acceptances) are issued and traded.  

MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUND. A mutual fund that invests exclusively in short-term securities.  
Examples of investments in money market funds are certificates of deposit and U.S. 
Treasury securities. Money market funds attempt to keep their net asset values at $1 per 
share. 

MORTGAGE PASS-THROUGH SECURITIES. A securitized participation in the interest and principal 
cash flows from a specified pool of mortgages. Principal and interest payments made on 
the mortgages are passed through to the holder of the security.  

MUNICIPAL SECURITIES. Securities issued by state and local agencies to finance capital and 
operating expenses. 

MUTUAL FUND. An entity which pools the funds of investors and invests those funds in a set of 
securities which is specifically defined in the fund’s prospectus. Mutual funds can be 
invested in various types of domestic and/or international stocks, bonds, and money 
market instruments, as set forth in the individual fund’s prospectus. For most large, 
institutional investors, the costs associated with investing in mutual funds are higher than 
the investor can obtain through an individually managed portfolio.  

NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED STATISTICAL RATING ORGANIZATION (NRSRO). A credit rating agency 
that the Securities and Exchange Commission in the United States uses for regulatory 
purposes. Credit rating agencies provide assessments of an investment's risk. The 
issuers of investments, especially debt securities, pay credit rating agencies to provide 
them with ratings. The three most prominent NRSROs are Fitch, S&P, and Moody's. 

NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT (CD). A short-term debt instrument that pays interest and 
is issued by a bank, savings or federal association, state or federal credit union, or state-
licensed branch of a foreign bank. Negotiable CDs are traded in a secondary market. 

 

29

http://www.investopedia.com/terms/m/make-wholecall.asp


 

PRIMARY DEALER. A financial institution (1) that is a trading counterparty with the Federal 
Reserve in its execution of market operations to carry out U.S. monetary policy, and (2) 
that participates for statistical reporting purposes in compiling data on activity in the U.S. 
Government securities market. 

PRUDENT PERSON (PRUDENT INVESTOR) RULE. A standard of responsibility which applies to 
fiduciaries. In California, the rule is stated as “Investments shall be managed with the 
care, skill, prudence and diligence, under the circumstances then prevailing, that a 
prudent person, acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters, would use in the 
conduct of an enterprise of like character and with like aims to accomplish similar 
purposes.”  

REPURCHASE AGREEMENT. Short-term purchases of securities with a simultaneous agreement to 
sell the securities back at a higher price. From the seller’s point of view, the same 
transaction is a reverse repurchase agreement.  

SAFEKEEPING. A service to bank customers whereby securities are held by the bank in the 
customer’s name.  

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (SEC). The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC) is an independent federal government agency responsible for protecting 
investors, maintaining fair and orderly functioning of securities markets and facilitating 
capital formation. It was created by Congress in 1934 as the first federal regulator of 
securities markets. The SEC promotes full public disclosure, protects investors against 
fraudulent and manipulative practices in the market, and monitors corporate takeover 
actions in the United States.  

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION SEC) RULE 15C3-1. An SEC rule setting capital 
requirements for brokers and dealers. Under Rule 15c3-1, a broker or dealer must have 
sufficient liquidity in order to cover the most pressing obligations. This is defined as 
having a certain amount of liquidity as a percentage of the broker/dealer's total 
obligations. If the percentage falls below a certain point, the broker or dealer may not be 
allowed to take on new clients and may have restrictions placed on dealings with current 
client.  

STRUCTURED NOTE. A complex, fixed income instrument, which pays interest, based on a 
formula tied to other interest rates, commodities or indices. Examples include inverse 
floating rate notes which have coupons that increase when other interest rates are 
falling, and which fall when other interest rates are rising, and "dual index floaters," 
which pay interest based on the relationship between two other interest rates - for 
example, the yield on the ten-year Treasury note minus the Libor rate. Issuers of such 
notes lock in a reduced cost of borrowing by purchasing interest rate swap agreements.  

SUPRANATIONAL.  A Supranational is a multi-national organization whereby member states 
transcend national boundaries or interests to share in the decision making to promote 
economic development in the member countries. 

TOTAL RATE OF RETURN. A measure of a portfolio’s performance over time. It is the internal rate 
of return, which equates the beginning value of the portfolio with the ending value; it 
includes interest earnings, realized and unrealized gains, and losses in the portfolio. 

U.S. TREASURY OBLIGATIONS. Securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and backed by the full 
faith and credit of the United States. Treasuries are considered to have no credit risk and 
are the benchmark for interest rates on all other securities in the US and overseas. The 
Treasury issues both discounted securities and fixed coupon notes and bonds.  

TREASURY BILLS. All securities issued with initial maturities of one year or less are issued as 
discounted instruments and are called Treasury bills. The Treasury currently issues 
three- and six-month T-bills at regular weekly auctions. It also issues “cash 
management” bills as needed to smooth out cash flows.  

30



 

TREASURY NOTES. All securities issued with initial maturities of two to ten years are called 
Treasury notes and pay interest semi-annually.  

TREASURY BONDS. All securities issued with initial maturities greater than ten years are called 
Treasury bonds. Like Treasury notes, they pay interest semi-annually.  

YIELD TO MATURITY. The annualized internal rate of return on an investment which equates the 
expected cash flows from the investment to its cost. 

 
(Originally Adopted February 2018; Re-adopted January 2019; Revised February 2020, 
February 2021, February 2022, October 2022 and October 2023.) 
 

 

31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

32



BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
SUMMARY 
 
The revised Customer Service Policy transfers the workflow for temporary meter connections 
from the Engineering Department to the Customer Care Department, as well as updates the 
deposit schedule to reflect current cost of service for temporary meter connections.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
SCV Water currently provides two types of temporary service connections: portable and 
flanged. Portable hydrant meters are issued for temporary connection to an approved fire 
hydrant for construction use of a limited duration and are typically disconnected at the end of 
each workday. These services are applied for and processed by the Customer Service 
Department. Flanged meters are stationary connections to fire hydrants for construction and 
other use of a limited duration. These services are applied for, approved and processed by the 
Engineering Department. Monthly service and consumption charges for both connection types 
are billed by the Customer Care Department using the Customer Information System (CIS), and 
both connection types require deposit. Hydrant meter deposits are tracked in the CIS by the 
Customer Care Department. Flanged meter deposits are tracked in Oracle by the Engineering 
and Accounting Departments. 
 
To streamline the application, deposit and billing processes for both the customer and the 
Agency, staff has modified the flanged-type workflow to leverage the existing portable-type 
workflow and system automation by transitioning the application and deposit process from 
Engineering to Customer Care. As part of this process, staff reassessed the deposit and cost-of-
service fees associated with both types of temporary service connections.  
 
These changes have been worked into the current Customer Service Policy as reflected in the 
redlines on the next page. Rather than attach the entire policy, shown here are the changes to 
be made in the following sections of the policy:  Part 3: Service Connection; Appendix A-4 – 
Temporary Service Connection Monthly Fixed Charge; and Appendix A-7 – Temporary Service 
Connection Installation Charge.  
 
Underlined red text has been added, while struck red text will be deleted.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DATE: September 26, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Rochelle Patterson 
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 

SUBJECT: Approve a Revised Customer Service Policy 

33

ajacobs
Item 5.3

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson



PART 3: SERVICE CONNECTION 
 

3.3 Temporary Service Connection 
 

3.3.1  General Provisions 
 
1. Purpose 
 

Provided no undue hardship is caused to customers, the Agency will furnish 
temporary service for construction purposes when the applicant has 
requested service on this basis, or the Agency reasonably expects the 
service to be temporary and the applicant has paid advances and established 
credit. The Agency contemplates temporary service will be provided for a 
term of six (6) months or less or as established by the Agency can be 
extended on a case-by-case basis as determined by the Agency, and 
requires the applicant to comply with the following:  

 
APPENDIX A-4 – TEMPORARY SERVICE CONNECTION MONTHLY FIXED CHARGE 
 

MONTHLY FIXED CHARGES  

Size Effective  
7/1/2021 

Effective  
7/1/2022 

Effective  
7/1/2023 

Effective  
7/1/2024 

Effective  
7/1/2025 

Fire Hydrant/ 
Construction Meter      

 

2-in NA NA $90.83 $96.73 $103.02 
2 1/2-in $94.32 $100.45 $106.97 $113.93 $121.33 
4-in NA NA $273.84 $291.64 $310.60 
6-in $478.72 $509.84 $542.98 $578.27 $615.86 
Jumper*      
¾-in $28.83 $30.68 $32.70 $34.81 $37.05 
1-in $38.32 $40.79 $43.47 $46.27 $49.26 
*Jumper includes 5 billing units 
 
APPENDIX A-7 – TEMPORARY SERVICE CONNECTION INSTALLATION CHARGE 
 
The Temporary Service Connection charge is assessed on a one-time basis and payment is 
required prior to the Agency providing Potable or Recycled Water Service. 
 
The cost to install or relocate an existing Temporary Service Connection is listed below.  
 
Table A-7 
 

 

Installation Type 
Deposit by Meter Size 

2 ½-3 inch 6 inch 

From a Fire Hydrant 
(Meter Only) $    1,200.00 $   1,500.00 

Fire Hydrant (Billing 
Deposit) $       500.00 $      500.00 

 
34



 
  
 Installation Type  

Deposit by Meter Size* 

2-inch 2 ½-inch  4-inch  6-inch  

Installation Cost     $    790  NA  $    790  $     790  

Meter Only     $ 2,405  $ 1,424  $ 4,130  $  7,001  

Billing Deposit $ 1,055  $ 1,004  $ 5,692  $10,816  

*Deposits, less lost or damaged meter charges are applied to final bill upon account closure and   
unused balances are refunded.  
 
No other changes to the policy are recommended at this time. To view the current Customer 
Service Policy in its entirely, it may be accessed here: 
https://yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/customer-care/Customer-Service-Policy-
Feb-2023.pdf. 
 
On September 25, 2023, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve the proposed changes in the revised Customer Service Policy. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
The revision of this Customer Service Policy helps support SCV Water’s Strategic Plan  
Strategy A – Provide “best-in-class” customer service; Objective F.1.3 – Update, develop and 
maintain clear and comprehensive policies for SCV Water 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve 
the proposed changes in the revised Customer Service Policy. 
 
RP 

35

https://yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/customer-care/Customer-Service-Policy-Feb-2023.pdf
https://yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/customer-care/Customer-Service-Policy-Feb-2023.pdf
ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

36



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

On October 1, 2017, Castaic Lake Water Agency (predecessor-in-interest to the Santa Clarita 
Valley Water Agency (Agency) entered into the Ground Lease By and Between Action Family 
Counseling (Ground Lease) for the property known as 22722 Soledad Canyon Road, located on 
Los Angeles County Assessor’s Number 2836-011-909. Action Family Counseling (Action) 
exercised the option to extend the Ground Lease in 2022, which now expires on  
September 30, 2023.  

Staff developed three options to address the expiring lease, and presented these at the  
July 17, 2023 regular Finance and Administration (F&A) Committee meeting. The Committee 
discussed the item and agreed to move forward with Option 2 as described below and directed 
staff to begin work on terms for a new Lease.  

DISCUSSION 

Since 2011, the building at 22722 Soledad Canyon Road (Attachment 1) has been leased to 
Action Family Counseling to be used to provide drug and alcohol treatment and counseling 
services for the benefit of the community. Action is an organization that provides services to the 
local community, including drug and alcohol treatment and non-profit support services in group 
settings to parents and teenagers to instill and teach positive behavior and life-skills for personal 
and family development.  

The property that Action leases on Soledad includes a one-story office building built in 1976 that 
is approximately 5,520 square feet (SF). The lot is 95,832 SF and zoned Community 
Commercial (CC) with a Mixed-Use Overlay (can be used for both commercial/retail and 
residential use). There is approximately 52,388 SF of buildable area and 43,444 SF of steep 
rolling hillside terrain. See Attachment 2 for the current Ground Lease. 

There were three viable options for addressing the expiration of the lease: 

1. Enter into a month-to-month tenancy upon the expiration date of September 30, 2023 on
the same or new lease terms

2. Enter into a new lease on the same or new terms
3. Dispose of the property through the Surplus Lands Act (SLA) process

DATE: September 26, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Rochelle Patterson 
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 

SUBJECT: Approve the First Addendum to the Ground Lease for the Property at 
22722 Soledad Canyon Road 

37

ajacobs
Item 5.4

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson



Option 1: 

Section 26 of the current lease is a no holdover clause. This type of clause is meant to preclude 
a month-to-month tenancy or any other post-expiration tenancy period. Without this clause, the 
acceptance of rent or continued possession may be considered an implied consent to a month-
to-month tenancy or some other post-expiration lease period. The holdover clause provides that 
the rent shall be increased to 150% of the base rent at the time of the lease expiration. The 
longer the holdover period goes without clarification, the more the situation can be interpreted to 
mean a month-to-month tenancy based on current lease terms. If a longer holdover period is 
required, a formal month-to-month tenancy should be considered, as it would allow the Agency 
to control the terms of the month-to-month tenancy, such as whether the rent should remain the 
same or be increased. 

Option 2: 

Entering into a new lease with Action would allow for the Agency to clarify terms, negotiate a 
rent escalator similar to the current lease, and identify new terms or language needed to ensure 
consistency with current Agency standards and policies. 

Option 3 

Disposal of the property would be governed by the SLA. Action and local developers have 
expressed only a general interest in acquiring the property. To-date, no formal offers or detailed 
proposals have been presented.  

Disposal of the property would require the Agency’s Board to declare the property as either 
“surplus land” or “exempt surplus land.” There are specific exemptions that could apply, but if 
they do not, then the property is considered surplus land. 

A written notice of availability would need to be sent to certain qualifying entities, including 
districts with jurisdiction over the area (such as local agencies) and housing sponsors identified 
in a list maintained by the California Department of Housing and Community Development 
(HCD). Any interested qualifying entity would have 60 days to notify the Agency in writing of its 
interest. If a qualifying entity were to provide such notice, then the Agency would be required to 
enter into “good faith negotiations” regarding price and terms for 90 days with any such entity.  

If the Agency were to receive no such interest or cannot come to terms with an entity that has 
expressed interest within the 90-day negotiation period, the Agency would obtain a letter of 
compliance from HCD allowing disposition of the property without regard to the SLA. Prior to 
sale, the Agency would record a covenant against title to the property providing that if 10 or 
more units of housing are ever built on the land, at least 15% of those units must be affordable. 

Although there is no requirement that the property be sold for less than fair market value or to 
seek a zoning change for the purpose of residential development, the SLA process may, as a 
practical matter, deter private developers and result in less than a full fair market price.  

The property’s highest and best use was found by the Agency’s appraiser to be its present use. 
Highest and best use is generally defined as the reasonably probable and legal use of vacant 
land or an improved property, that is physically possible, appropriately supported, and financially 
feasible, and that results in the highest value. 

38



At the July 17, 2023 meeting, the F&A Committee selected Option 2. Staff worked with Agency 
Counsel Best, Best & Krieger to draft the first addendum to the Ground Lease, which extends 
the term of the lease to September 30, 2028, with an option for one additional 12-month 
extension. This was acceptable to Action and was signed on September 29, 2023 and is 
attached as Attachment 3. 

On September 25, 2023, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve the first addendum to the Ground Lease for property at 22722 
Soledad Canyon Road. 

STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 

Consideration of this ground lease property helps to support SCV Water’s Strategic Plan 
Objective F.1.5. – “Optimize use of SCV Water Real Estate,” as well as Objective E.5.2 – 
“Evaluate opportunities to improve the relationship between fixed costs and fixed revenues in 
rate and fee structures.” 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

The Agency’s appraiser found the property’s highest and best use to be the Agency’s present 
use. Rent through September 30, 2023 is $13,545 per month (5,520 SF X $2.45 per SF). It is 
comparable to the rental rates for the local market ($1.99 to $2.65 per SF). The appraised fair 
market value of the property in its current condition is $2,420,000.00. 

The base rent for the lease extension remains unchanged ($13,545 per month) for the first year 
of the lease extension (through September 30, 2024) and will increase thereafter in accordance 
with the terms of the lease.  

RECOMMENDATION 

The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve 
the first addendum to the Ground Lease for property at 22722 Soledad Canyon Road. 

RP 

Attachments 

39

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

40



Bureau of Land Management, Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P, NGA,
USGS

Primary

Minor

Railroad

Santa Clara River

Street Centerlines

Parcel  Outlines
0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:9,749

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
The City of Santa Clarita does not warrant

Attachment 1 - Location Map

41



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

42



AIR COMMERGIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION

STANDARD INDUSTRIAL/COMMERCIAL SINGLE.TENANT LEASE .- GROSS
(DO NOT USE TH|S FORM FOR MULTT-TENANT BUtLDtNcS)

'1, Basic Provisions ("Basic Provisions").
1.1 Panies: This Lease ("Lease"), dated for reference purposes only

is made by and between Castaic Lake Vüater Agency
("Lessor")

and Action Famifv Counsel ing - SCV, fnc. Speciflcallv excluded as lessees are Action - A
Parent Teen Support Program; Action Familv Counselinq Bakersf ield, Inc. ,' Action

Familv Coun se f ino fnc.; 30035-39 Bouquet Canvon, LLC; 30010 Bousuet Canvon
Road, LLC; 2855'l Bud Canyont LLC; Connectmyself.com, Inc; and any other person or
entitv except than Action Famil- V Counselinq - SCV, fnc. Anv use or occupancv of

the premises bv anv other person or entitv other than Action Familv Counselinq -
SCV, Inc. , shal-l constitute an unauthorized assiqnment of this Ìease and,
therebv, a material breach of this fease ("Lessee"),
(collectively the "Parties," or individually a "Party").

1.2 Premises: That certain real property, includ¡ng all improvements therein or to be provided by Lessor under the terms of this Lease,

and commonly known as 22122 Soledad Canvon Road, Santa Cfarita ,CA
located in the County of Los Andê les , State of Caf ifornia
and generally described as (describe briefly the nature ofthe property and, if applicable, the "Project", ifthe property is located within a Project)

Stand alone buiÌdinq a 5,564 sf situated on approx. 2.2 acres. Lessor makes no
representation or warrant V reqardlnq either the size of the buil-ding or the propertv
Tenant is advised to confirm for itseff the sizes of both. Lease
is continqent upon the approval of the CLWA Board of Directors.

("Premises"). (See also Paragraph 2)
1.3 Term:5 years and 0 months ("Original Term") commencing October 1 2077

("Commencement Date") and ending September 30, 2022 ("Expiration Date").
(See also Paragraph 3)

1.4 Early Possession: lf the Premises are available Lessee may have non-exclusive possession of the Premises commencing
("Early Possession Date"). (See also Paragraphs 3.2 and 3.3)

'1.5 Base Rent: $11- 685.00 per month ("Base Rent"), payable on the First
day of each month commencing October period of Auqust 2016 to September 20717, 201,7 (rent for the
shall be $11 1 9 9,/month ) (See also Paragraph 4)

Ø f tn¡s box is checked, there are provisions ¡n this Lease for the Base
1.6 Base Rent and Other Monies Paid Upon Execution

(a) Base Rent: $

Rent to be adiusted. See Paragraph 51

for the per¡od

(b)

(c)

(d)

Security Depos¡t: $11, 000 (previously pald)

Other: $ for

("Security Deposit"). (See also Paragraph 5)

PAGE 1 OF I8
ttu

rt:+
INIÏALS

@2OOI . AR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATON FORM STG-21-ll/l4E

Attachment 2 - Current Ground Lease

43



(e) Total Due Upon Execution ofthis Lease: $

1.7 Agreed Use: Corpor ate Headquarters. Group counsefing meeting for teens and their
famifies conducted under close P rofessional aduft supervísion. Any medical, medication,
or residential use is strlctlY Prohiblted.
(See also Paragraph 6)

1.8 lnsuring Pafi: Lessor is the "lnsuring Party" The annual "Base Premium" is $ (See also Paragraph 8)

1,9 Real Estate Brekers: (See alee Paragraph 15 and 25)

(a) Repreeentat¡en: The fellewing real eetate brekere (the "Brekerc") and brekerage relatienships exist in thi€Jransaetien (ehe€k

€ppl€abl€$sxe+

tr represents both Lessor and Lessee ("Dual Agency").

Rent) fer the brekerage terv¡€es render€d by the BrekerÊ,

,1.10 Guarantor. The obligations of the Lessee under this Lease are to be guaranteed by

Carv Ouashen and Kirsten Ouashen

_ ("Guaranto¡"'). (See also Paragraph 37)
,1.11 Attachments, Attached hereto are the following, all of which constitute a part of this Lease:

EI an Addendum consisting of Paragraphs 51 through 53

Ef a pbt plan depicting the Premises;

E a current set ofthe Rules and Regulations;

E a Work Letter;

E a energy disclosure addendum is attached;

EI other (speciû): Rent Adiustmenti Option to Extend

2. Premises,
2.1 Letting, Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor, the Premises, for the term, at the rental, and

upon all of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in this Lease. While the approximate square footage of the Premises may have been used in

tËe marketing of the premises for purposes of comparison, the Base Rent stated herein is NOT tied to square footage and is not subject to adjustment

should the aòtual size be determined to be different. Note: Lessee is advised to verify the actual size pr¡or to executing this Lease.

2.2 Gondition, Lessor shall deliver the Premises to Lessee broom clean and free of debris on the Commencement Date or the Early

Premises may no be allowed.

shall be the obligation of Lessee at Lessee's sole cost and expense. lf the Applicable Requirements are hereafter
correction of that
changed so as tonon-comoliance

fy
tl /l)
r-(

INITIALS'

PAGE 2 OF I8

@2OO.I . AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION FORM STG-21.1Il14E

44



require during the term of th¡s Lease the construction of an addition to or an alteration of the Premises and/or Building, the remediation of any
Hazardous Substance, or the re¡nforcement or other physical modification of the Unit, Premises and/or Building ("Capital Expenditure"), Lessor and
Lessee shall allocate the cost of such work as follows:

(a) Subject to Paragraph 2.3(c) below, if such Capital Expenditures are required as a result of the specific and unique use of the
Premises by Lessee as compared with uses by tenants in general, Lessee shall be fully responsible for the cost thereof, provided, however that if such
Capital Expenditure is required during the last 2 years of this Lease and the cost thereof exceeds 6 months' Base Rent, Lessee may instead terminate
this Lease unless Lessor notifies Lessee, in writing, within 10 days after receipt of Lessee's termination notice that Lessor has elected to pay the
difference between the actual cost thereof and an amount equal to 6 months' Base Rent. lf Lessee elects termination, Lessee shall immediately cease
the use of the Premises wñich requires such Capital Expenditure and deliver to Lessor written notice speciffing a termination date at least 90 days
thereafier. Such termination date shall, however, in no event be earlier than the last day that Lessee could legally utilize the Premises without
commencing such Capital Expenditure.

(b) lf such Capital Expend¡ture is not the result of the specific and unique use of the Premises by Lessee (such as, governmentally
mandated seismic modifications), then Lessor shall pay for such Capital Expenditure and Lessee shall only be obligated to pay, each month during the
remainder ofthe term ofthis Lease or any extension thereof, on the date that on which the Base Rent is due, an amount equal to 1/144th ofthe portion
of such costs reasonably attributable to the Premises. Lessee shall pay lnterest on the balance but may prepay its obligation at any time. lf, however,
such Capital Expenditure is required during the last 2 years of this Lease or ¡f Lessor reasonably determines that it is not economically feasible to pay
its share thereof, Lessor shall have the option to terminate this Lease upon 90 days prior written notice to Lessee unless Lessee notifies Lessor, in
writing, within 10 days after receipt of Lessor's termination notice that Lessee will pay for such Capital Expenditure. lf Lessor does not elect to
terminate, and fails to tender its share of any such Capital Expenditure, Lessee may advance such funds and deduct same, with lnterest, from Rent
until Lessor's share of such costs have been fully paid. lf Lessee is unable to finance Lessor's share, or if the balance of the Rent due and payable for
the remainder of this Lease is not sufficient to fully reimburse Lessee on an offset basis, Lessee shall have the right to terminate this Lease upon 30
days written notice to Lessor.

(c) Notwithstanding the above, the provisions concerning Capital Expenditures are intended to apply only to non-voluntary,
unexpected, and new Applicable Requirements. lf the Capital Expenditures are instead triggered by Lessee as a result of an actual or proposed
change in use, change in intensity of use, or modifìcation to the Premises then, and in that event, Lessee shall either: (i) immediately cease such
changed use or intensity of use and/or take such other steps as may be necessary to eliminate the requirement for such Capital Expenditure, or (ii)
compfete such Capital Expenditure at its own expense. Lessee shall not, however, have any right to terminate this Lease.

2.4 Acknowledgements. Lessee acknowledges that: (a) it has been given an opportunity to inspect and measure the Premises, (b) it
has been advised by Lessor andl.ef-gr€ke+Ê to satisfo itself with respect to the size and condition of the Premises (including but not limited to the
electrical, HVAC and-fÌe-€prinkl€f+y€tem€, security, environmental aspects, and compliance with Applicable Requirements and the Americans with
Disabilities Act), and their suitability for Lessee's intended use, (c) Lessee has made such investigation as it deems necessary with reference to such
matters and assumes all responsibility therefor as the same relate to its occupancy of the Premises, (d) it is not relying on any representat¡on as to the
size of the Premises made by Brekers-e+ Lessor, (e) the square footage of the Premises was not material to Lessee's decision to lease the Premises
and pay the Rent stated herein, and (f) neither Lessor, Lessor's agents, ner€reke¡s-have made any oral or wr¡tten representations or warranties with
respect to said matters other than as set forth in this Lease. ln additien; tesser aeknewledges that: (i) Brekers have made ne representatiens,

investigate the finaneial eapability and/er suitability ef all prepesed tenants,
2.5 Lessee as Pr¡or Owner/Occupant. The warranties made by Lessor in Paragraph 2 shall be of no force or effect if immediately

prior to the Start Date Lessee was the owner or occupant of the Premises. ln such event, Lessee shall be responsible for any necessary conective
wolk. Leøøee aoknowleàqeø Nhal it haa been þhe øole Leøøee occupant of the Tremiøeø for lhe paøt five yearø.

3. Term.
3.1 Term. The Commencement Date, Expiration Date and Original Term of this Lease are as specified in Paragraph 1.3.
3.2 Early Possess¡on. Any provis¡on herein grant¡ng Lessee Early Possession of the Premises is subject to and conditioned upon the

Premises being available for such possession prior to the Commencement Date. Any grant of Early Possession only conveys a non-exclusive right to
occupy the Premises. lf Lessee totally or partially occupies the Premises prior to the Commencement Date, the obligation to pay Base Rent shall be
abated for the period of such Early Possession. All other terms of this Lease (including but not limited to the obligat¡ons to pay Real Property Taxes
and insurance premiums and to maintain the Premises) shall be in effect during such period. Any such Early Possession shall not affect the Expiration
Date.

enj

written netiee is net reeeived by tesser within said '10 day peried, tessee's right te eaneel shall terminate, lf pessessien ef the-Premises ie net

in-,¡*it¡n+
3.4 Lessee Compliance, Lessor shall not be required to deliver possession of the Premises to Lessee until Lessee complies with its

obligation to provide evidence of insurance (Paragraph 8.5). Pending delivery of such evidence, Lessee shall be required to perform all of its
obligations under th¡s Lease from and after the Start Date, including the payment of Rent, notwithstanding Lessor's election to withhold possession
pending receipt of such evidence of insurance. Further, if Lessee is required to perform any other conditions prior to or concurrent with the Start Date,
the Start Date shall occur but Lessor may elect to withhold possession until such conditions are satisfied.
4. Rent.

4.1. Rent Defined, All monetary obligations of Lessee to Lessor under the terms of th¡s Lease (except for the Security Deposit) are
deemed to be rent ("Rent").

4.2 Payment. Lessee shall cause payment of Rent to be received by Lessor in lawful money of the United States, without offset or
deduction (except as specifically permitted in this Lease), on or before the day on wh¡ch it is due. All monetary amounts shall be rounded to the nearest
lvtlole dollar. ln the event that any ¡nve¡ce prepar€d by tesser iÊ inaeGurate euch ¡naeeureÊy ehell net €€nEtitute e waiv€r an*r eseee 6hall be ebligated

w-tr
INITIALS

PAGE 3 OF .I8 /ßs
C (v.
INIÏALS

@2001 - AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIA]ION FORM STG-21-ll/14E

45



fherewlllbenoinvoiceø.lI'iølheLeøøee'øàulytor'imely?ayRenþevenlhouøhlherearenoinvoiae6'Rentforany
period during the term hereof lvhich is for less than one full calendar month shall be prorated based upon the actual number of days of said month.
Payment of Rent shall be made to Lessor at its address stated herein or to such other persons or place as Lessor may from time to time designate in
writing. Acceptance of a payment which is less than the amount then due shall not be a waiver of Lessor's rights to the balance of such Rent,
regardless of Lessor's endorsement of any check so stating. ln the event that any check, draft, or other ¡nstrument of payment given by Lessee to
Lessor is dishonored for any reason, Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor the sum of $25 in addition to any Late Charge and Lessor, at its option, may
require all future payments to be made by Lessee to be by cashier's check. Payments will be applied first to accrued late charges and attorney's fees,
second to accrued ¡nterest, then to Base Rent, lnsurance and Real Property Taxes, and any remaining amount to any other outstanding charges or
costs.

4.3

Base€ent
5. Security Deposit. Lessee shall depos¡t with Lessor upon execution hereof the Security Deposit as security for Lessee's fa¡thful performance
of its obligations under this Lease. lf Lessee fails to pay Rent, or otherwise Defaults under this Lease, Lessor may use, apply or retain all or any portion
of said Security Deposit for the payment of any amount already due Lessor, for Rents wftich will be due in the future, and/ or to reimburse or
compensate Lessor for any liability, expense, loss or damage which Lessor may suffer or incur by reason thereof. lf Lessor uses or applies all or any
portion of the Security Deposit, Lessee shall within 10 days after written request therefor deposit monies with Lessor sufficient to restore sa¡d Secur¡ty
Deposit to the full amount required by this Lease. lf the Base Rent increases during the term of this Lease, Lessee shall, upon written request from
Lessor, deposit additional monies with Lessor so that the total amount of the Security Depos¡t shall at all times bear the same proportion to the
increased Base Rent as the initial Security Deposit bore to the initial Base Rent. Should the Agreed Use be amended to accommodate a material
change in the business of Lessee or to accommodate a sublessee or assignee, Lessor shall have the rlght to increase the Security Deposit to the
extent necessary, in Lessor's reasonable judgment, to account for any increased wear and tear that the Premises may suffer as a result thereof. lf a

change in control of Lessee occurs during this Lease and following such change the financial condition of Lessee is, in Lessor's reasonable judgment,

significantly reduced, Lessee shall deposit such additional monies with Lessor as shall be sufficient to cause the Security Deposit to be at a
commercially reasonable level based on such change in financial condition. Lessor shall not be required to keep the Security Deposit separate from its
general accounts. W¡thin 90 days after the exp¡ration or termination of this Lease, Lessor shall return that portion of the Security Deposit not used or
applied by Lessor. No part of the Security Depos¡t shall be considered to be held in trust, to bear interest or to be prepayment for any monies to be paid

by Lessee under this Lease.
6. Use.

6.1 Use. Lessee shall use and occupy the Premises only for the Agreed Use, er any ether legal use vjhieh is reasenably eemParable
the¡eterand for no other purpose. Lessee shall not use or permit the use of the Premises in a manner that is unlawful, creates damage, waste or a
nuisance, or that disturbs occupants of or causes damage to neighboring premises or properties. Other than gu¡de, signal and seeing eye dogs, Lessee
shallnotkeeporallowinthePremisesanypets,animals,birds,fish,orreptiles.
written request fer a medifieatien ef the^greed Use' se leng ae the same will net impair the struetural integrity ef the imprevemente en the Premises er
the meehanieal er eleetrieal systeme therein, and/er is net signif¡eantly mere þurdenseme te the Premieee, lf teseer eleets te YvithhelC eensent; tesser

iâ
me+g+ee¿-l¡se,

6.2 Hazardous Substances.
(a) Reportable Uses Require Consent, The term "Hazardous Substance" as used in this Lease shall mean any product,

substance, or waste whose presence, use, manufacture, d¡sposal, transportation, or release, either by itself or in combination with other materials
expected to be on the Premises, is either: (i) potentially injurious to the public health, safety or welfare, the environment or the Premises, (ii) regulated
or monitored by any governmental authority, or (iii) a basis for potential liability of Lessor to any governmental agency or third party under any applicable
statute or common law theory. Hazardous Substances shall include, but not be limited to, hydrocarbons, petroleum, gasoline, andior crude oil or any
products, by-products or fractions thereof. Lessee shall not engage in any activity in or on the Premises wttich constitutes a Reportable Use of
Hazardous Substances without the express prior written consent of Lessor and timely compliance (at Lessee's expense) with all Applicable
Requirements. "Reportable Use" shall mean (i) the installation or use of any above or below ground storage tank, (ii) the generation, possession,
storage, use, transportation, or disposal of a Hazardous Substance that requires a permit from, or with respect to which a report, not¡ce, registration or
business plan is required to be filed with, any governmental authority, and/or (iii) the presence at the Premises of a Hazardous Substance with respect
to wfiich any Applicable Requirements requires that a notice be given to persons entering or occupy¡ng the Premises or neighboring properties.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee may use any ordinary and customary materials reasonably required to be used in the normal course of the
Agreed Use, ordinary office supplies (copier toner, liquid paper, glue, etc.) and common household cleaning materials, so long as such use is in
compliance with all Applicable Requirements, is not a Reportable Use, and does not expose the Premises or neighboring property to any meaningful
risk of contamination or damage or expose Lessor to any liability therefor. ln addition, Lessor may condition ¡ts consent to any Reportable Use upon
receiving such additional assurances as Lessor reasonably deems necessary to protect itself, the public, the Premises and/or the environment against
damage, contamination, injury and/or liability, including, but not limited to, the installation (and removal on or before Lease expiration or termination) of
protective modifications (such as concrete encasements) and/or increasing the Security Deposit. Leoøee øhall not kee?, 6tore, à16þribuþe, øell, or 6ive away

any conlrolleà øubøLance or preøcrlbeà meàicâtiono on lhe Tremiøe6.

(b) Duty to lnform Lessor, lf Lessee knows, or has reasonable cause to believe, that a Hazardous Substance has come to be
located in, on, under or about the Premises, other than as previously consented to by Lessor, Lessee shall immediately give written notice of such fact
to Lessor, and provide Lessor with a copy of any report, notice, claim or other documentat¡on which it has concerning the presence of such Hazardous
Substance.

(c) Lessee Remediation. Lessee shall not cause or perm¡t any Hazardous Substance to be spilled or released in, on, under, or
about the Premises (including through the plumbing or sanitary sewer system) and shall promptly, at Lessee's expense, comply with all Applicable
Requirements and take all investigatory and/or remedial action reasonably recommended, whether or not formally ordered or required, for the cleanup
of any contamination of, and for the maintenance, security and/or monitoring of the Premises or neighboring properlies, that was caused or materially
contributed to by Lessee, or pertaining to or involving any Hazardous Substance brought onto the Premises during the term of this Lease, by or for
Lessee, or any third party.

(d) Lessee lndemnification. Lessee shall ¡ndemnify, defend and hold Lessor, its agents, employees, lenders and ground lessor,
if any, harmless from and against any and all loss of rents and/or damages, liabilities, judgments, claims, expenses, penalties, and attorneys' and
consultants' fees arising out of or involving any Hazardous Substance brought onto the Premises by or for Lessee, or any third party (provided,

k PAGE 4 OF I8 sÈ.v\r
INIÏALS

FORM STG-21-ll/,t4EO2OO1 . AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOC¡AÏON

46



however, that Lessee shall have no liability under this Lease with respect to underground migration of any Hazardous Substance under the Premises
from adjacent properties not caused or contributed to by Lessee). Lessee's obligations shall include, but not be limited to, the effects of any
contamination or injury to person, property or the environment created or suffered by Lessee, and the cost of ¡nvestigation, removal, remediation,
restorat¡on andior abatement, and shall survive the expiration or terminat¡on of this Lease. No tefm¡nation, cancellation or release agreement
entered into by Lessor and Lessee shall release Lessee from its obligations under this Lease with respect to Hazardous Substances, unless
specifically so agreed by Lessor in writing at the time of such agreement,

(e) Lessor Indemnification. Except as otherwise provided in paragraph 8.7, Lessor and its successors and assigns shall
indemni!, defend, reimburse and hold Lessee, its employees and lenders, harmless from and against any and all environmental damages, including
the cost of remediation, which result from Hazardous Substances which existed on lhe Premises prior to Lessee's occupancy or which are caused by
the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Lessor, its agents or employees. Lessor's obligations, as and when required by the Applicable
Requirements, shall include, but not be limited to, the cost of investigation, removal, remediation, restoration and/or abatement, and shall survive the
expiration or termination of this Lease.

(f) lnvestigations and Remediations. Lessor shall retain the responsibil¡ty and pay for any investigations or remediation
measures required by governmental entities having jurisdiction with respect to the existence of Hazardous Substances on the Premises prior to
Lessee's occupancy, unless such remediation measure is required as a result of Lessee's use (including "Alterations", as defined in paragraph 7.3(a)
below) of the Premises, in which event Lessee shall be responsible for such payment. Lessee shall cooperate fully in any such activities at the request
of Lessor, including allowing Lessor and Lessor's agents to have reasonable access to the Premises at reasonable times in order to carry out Lessor's
investigative and remedial responsibilities.

(g) Lessor Terminat¡on Opt¡on. lf a Hazardous Substance Condition (see Paragraph g.l (e)) occurs during the term of this Lease,
unless Lessee is legally responsible therefor (in which case Lessee shall make the investigation and remediation thereof required by the Applicable
Requirements and th¡s Lease shall continue in full force and effect, but subject to Lessor's rights under Paragraph 6.2(d) and Paragraph 13), Lessor
may, at Lessor's opt¡on, either (i) investigate and remediate such Hazardous Substance Condition, if required, as soon as reasonably possible at
Lessor's expense, in which event this Lease shall continue in full force and effect, or (¡i) if the estimated cost to remediate such condition exceeds 12
times the then monthly Base Rent or $100,000, whichever is greater, give vwitten notice to Lessee, within 30 days afier receipt by Lessor of knowledge
of the occurrence of such Hazardous Substance Condition, of Lessor's desire to terminate this Lease as of the date 60 days following the date of such
notice. ln the event Lessor elects to give a termination notice, Lessee may, within 10 days thereafter, give written notice to Lessor of Lessee's
commitment to pay the amount by which the cost of the remediation of such Hazardous Substance Condition exceeds an amount equal to 12 times the
then monthly Base Rent oÍ $100,000, whichever is greater. Lessee shall provide Lessor with said funds or satisfactory assurance thereof within 30
days following such commitment. ln such event, th¡s Lease shall continue in full force and effect, and Lessor shall proceed to make such remediation
as soon as reasonably possible afier the required funds are available. lf Lessee does not give such notice and provide the required funds or assurance
thereof within the time provided, this Lease shall terminate as of the date specified in Lessor's notice of termination.

6.3 Lessee's Compliance with Applicable Requirements. Except as otherwise provided in this Lease, Lessee shall, at Lessee's
sole expense, fully, diligently and in a timely manner, materially comply with all Applicable Requ¡rements, the requirements of any applicable fire
insurance underwriter or raling bureau, and the recommendations of Lessor's engineers and/or consultants which relate in any mannerto the Premises,
without regard to whether said Applicable Requirements are now in effect or become efiective after the Start Date. Lessee shall, within 10 days after
receipt of Lessor's written request, provide Lessor with copies of all perm¡ts and other documents, and other information evidencing Lessee's
compliance with any Applicable Requirements specified by Lessor, and shall immediately upon receipt, notiry Lessor in writing (with copies of any
documents involved) of any threatened or actual claim, notice, citation, warning, complaint or report pertaining to or involving the failure of Lessee or the
Premises to comply with any Applicable Requirements. Likewise, Lessee shall immediately give wr¡tten notice to Lessor of: (i) any water damage to the
Premises and any suspected seepage, pooling, dampness or other condition conducive to the production of mold; or (ii) any mustiness or other odors
that m¡ght indicate the presence of mold in the Premises. ln addition, Lessee shall provide Lessor with copies of its business license, certificate of
occupancy and/or any similar document within 10 days of the receipt of a written request therefor.

6.4 lnspection; Compliance. Lessor and Lessor's "Lender" (as defined in Paragraph 30) and consultants shall have the right to
enter into Premises at any time, in the case of an emergency, and otherwise at reasonable times after reasonable notice, for the purpose of inspecting
the condition of the Premises and for verifoing compliance by Lessee with this Lease. The cost of any such inspect¡ons shall be paid by Lessor, unless
a violation of Applicable Requirements, or a Hazardous Substance Condition (see paragraph 9.1) is found to exist or be imminent, or the inspection is
requested or ordered by a governmental authority. ln such case, Lessee shall upon request reimburse Lessor for the cost of such inspeclion, so long
as such inspection is reasonably related to the violation or contamination. ln addition, Lessee shall provide copies of all relevant material safety data
sheets (MSDS) to Lessor within l0 days of the receipt of a written request therefor.
7. Maintenance; Repaírs; Utility Installations; Trade Fixtures and Alterations,

7.1 Lessee's Obligations.
(a) ln General. Subject to the provisions of Paragraph 2.2 (Condition), 2.3 (Compliance), 6.3 (Lessee's Compliance with Applicable

Requirements), 7.2 (Lessofs Obligations), 9 (Damage or Destruction), and 14 (Condemnation), Lessee shall, at Lessee's sole expense, keep the
Premises, Utility lnstallations (intended for Lessee's exclusive use, no matter where located), and Alterations in good o¡der, condition and repair
(whether or not the polion of the Premises requiring repairs, or the means of repairing the same, are reasonably or readily accessible to Lessee, and
whether or not the need for such repairs occurs as a result of Lessee's use, any prior use, the elements or the age of such portion of the Premises),
including, but not limited to, all equipment or facilities, such as plumbing, HVAC equipment, electrical, lighting facilities, boilers, pressure vessels, fire
protection system, fixtures, walls (interior and exterior), ceilings, floors, windows, doors, plate glass, skylights, landscaping, driveways, parking lots,
fences, retain¡ng walls, signs, sidewalks and parkways located in, on, or adjacent to the Premises. Lessee is also responsible for keeping the roof and
roof drainage clean and free of debr¡s. Lessor shall keep the surface and structural elements of the roof foundat¡ons, and bearing walls in good repair
(see paragraph 7.2). Lessee, in keeping the Premises in good order, condition and repair, shall exercise and perform good maintenance practices,
specifically including the procurement and maintenance of the service contracts required by Paragraph 7.1(b) below. Lessee's obligations shall include
restorations, replacements or renewals when necessary to keep the Premises and all improvements thereon or a part thereof ¡n good order, condition
and state of repair. Lessee shall, during the term of this Lease, keep the exterior appearance of the Building in a firsþclass condition (including, e.g.
graffiti removal) consistent with the exterior appearance of other similar facilities of comparable age and size in the v¡cinity, including, wtren necessary,
the eferior repainting of the Building.

(b) Service Contracts. Lessee shall, at Lessee's sole expense, procure and maintain contracts, with copies to Lessor, in
customary form and substance for, and with contractors specializing and experienced in the maintenance of the following equipment and
improvements, if any, if and when installed on the Premises: (i) HVAC equipment, (ii) boiler, and pressure vessels, (iii) fire extinguishing systems,
includingfirealarmandiorsmokedetection,(iv)clarifiers.However,Lessorreservestheright,uponnotice
to fessee, to procure and maintain any or all ofsuch service contracts, and Lessee shall re¡mburse Lessor, upon demand, forthe cost thereof.

k, PA.E soF 18 46[ffi
TNTTLALS ¡iññ-5-
@2OOI - AR COÍI,IMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATON FORM STG-2I.III14E

47



(c) Failure to Perform, lf Lessee fails to perform Lessee's obligations under th¡s Paragraph 7.1, Lessor may enter upon the
Premises after 10 days' prior wr¡tten notice to Lessee (except in the case of an emergency, in which case no notice shall be required), perform such

obligat¡ons on Lesseás behalf, and put the Premises in good order, condition and repair, and Lessee shall promptly pay to Lessor a sum equal lo 115o/o

of the cost thereof. Alternâtively, Leøøor may aonøiàer Lhiø falure lo pertorm by Leøøee aø a maþerial breâch of lhiø Agreemenl anà Vrooeeà aø ?roviàe¿ ln thi6

A,øreemenþ.

(d) Replacement, Subject to Lessee's indemnification of Lessor as set forth in Paragraph 8.7 below, and without relieving Lessee

of liability resulting from Lessee's failure to exercise and perform good maintenance practices, if an item described in Paragraph 7.1(b) cannot be

repaired other thañ at a cost wtrich is in excess of 50o/o of the cost of replacing such item, then such item shall be replaced by Lessor, and the cost

thereof shall be prorated between the Parties and Lessee shall only be obligated to pay, each month during the remainder of the term of this Lease, on
the date on lvftich Base Rent is due, an amount equal to the product of multiplying the cost of such replacement by a fraction, the numerator of which is

one, and the denominator of which is 144 (i.e. 1/l44th of the cost per month). Lessee shall pay lnterest on the unamortized balance but may prepay its

obligation at any t¡me.
7 .2 Lessor's Obligations. Subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 2.2 (Condition), 2.3 (Compliance), I (Damage or Destruct¡on) and

14 (Condemnation), it is intended by the Parties hereto that Lessor have no obligation, in any manner whatsoever, to repair and maintain lhe Premises,

or the equipment therein, all of wtrich obligations are intended to be that of the Lessee, except for the surface and structural elements of the roof,

foundations and bearing walls, the repair of which shall be the responsibility of Lessor upon receipt of written notice that such a repair is necessary. lt is
the intention of the Parties that the terms of this Lease govern the respective obligations of the Parties as to maintenance and repair of the Premises,

and they expressly waive the benefit of any statute now or hereafter in effect to the extent ¡t ¡s ¡nconsistent with the terms of this Lease. Leaøor wlll be

Leøøor) that' Leøøee believeø iø neceøøary,

7.3 Ut¡lity lnstallations; Trade Fixtures; Alterations.
(a) Definitions. The term "Utility lnstallations" refers to all floor and window coverings, air and/or vacuum lines, power panels,

electrical distribution, security and lire protect¡on systems, communication cabling, lighting fifures, HVAC equipment, plumbing, and fencing in or on

the Premises. The term "Trade Fixtures" shall mean Lessee's machinery and equipment that can be removed without doing material damage to the

Premises. The term "Alterations" shall mean any modification of the improvements, other than Utility lnstallations or Trade Fixtures, whether by

addition or deletion. "Lessee Owned Alterations and/or Utility lnstallations" are defined as Alterations and/or Utility lnstallations made by Lessee
that are not yet owned by Lessor pursuant to Paragraph 7.4(a).

(b) Consent Lessee shall not make any Alterations or Utility lnstallations to the Premises without Lessor's prior written consent.

Lessee may, however, make non-structural Alterations or Utility lnstallations to the interior of the Premises (excluding the roo0 without such consent but

upon notice to Lessor, as long as they are not visible from the outside, do not involve puncturing, relocating or removing the roof or any existing walls,
will not affect the etectrical, plumbing, HVAC, and/or life safety systems, and the cumulative cost thereof during this Lease as extended does not

exceed a sum equal to 3 month's Base Rent in the aggregate or a sum equal to one month's Base Rent ¡n any one year. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Lessee shall not make or permit any roof penetrations and/or install anything on the roof without the pr¡or wr¡tten approval of Lessor. Lessor
may, asã precond¡tion to granting such approval, require Lessee to utilize a contraclor chosen and/or approved by Lessor. Any Alterations or Utility

lnsiallations that Lessee sñall deõire to make and which require the consent of the Lessor shall be presented to Lessor in vwitten form with detailed
plans. Consent shall be deemed conditioned upon Lessee's: (i) acquiring all applicable governmental permits, (ii) furnishing Lessor with copies of both

ihe permits and the plans and spec¡fications prior to commencement of the work, and (¡¡¡) compliance with all cond¡t¡ons of said permits and other

Appiicable Requ¡rements in a prompt and expeditious manner. Any Alterations or Utility lnstallations shall be performed in a workmanlike manner with
good and sufücient materials. Lessee shall promptly upon completion furnish Lessor with as-built plans and specifìcations. For work which costs an

ãmount in excess of one month's Base Rent, Lessor may condition its consent upon Lessee prov¡ding a lien and completion bond in an amount equal

to 150% of the estimated cost of such Alteration or Utility lnstallation and/or upon Lessee's posting an additional Security Deposit with Lessor. L¿øøae

øhalluøeonlyllcenøeà,bonàeà,anàlnøurcàaontractorøânàøubconlraclotøforanyworktobe?erlormeàâlI'he7remi5e6, LeøøeeøhallnoiftyLeø6orinwrilinøof âll

VroVoøeà conl,racl,otø anà øubconÍrâciorø. Leøøee øhall nol hire, uøe, or rcNain any contrâclorø or øubcontractors wllhoul Leøøor'ø ?rlor wrlffien aonøenÌ' anà

?roviàinø e\llàence to lhe øaþiølâctlon of the Leøøor that lhe ?ro?oøeà conlractoy or øubconþractor lø àuly lioenøeà by the Calilornia Cont'râclorø 5lârÆ Liôen^e

toarà, haø workerø comVenøalion anà qeneral liabiliïy inøurânce in an âmour'l øâliø|aatory to Leøøor, anà haø aààeà Leøøor aø an aààit'ional inøureà on al of ftø

inøurânce Volioieø anà proviàeà proof of øame, Leøøor øhall be notiñoà aT, leâøþ 3O àayø ?rlor þo the beølnnlnø of any work øo lhaþ it mây ?oøt a Nol'ice of

Non-ReøVonøiblllby. Leøøee øhall noï øuffer or ?ermiN any mechanic'ø lienø No be ltleà againøt, lhe Tremiøeø or lhe lm?rovemenNø, not aøâinøt Le6øee'6 leaaeholà

inf,ereøt in fhe Lanà by reaaon of work, labor, øewiaeø or maþerialø øuVVlieà or clalrneà to have been øuVplieà to Leøøee or anyone holàinq any inlereôl in ihe Lanà

anàlor lmprovementø or any ?aft f.hereol throu¡h or unàer Leøøee. l1 any øuch meohanic'ø llen øhall aN âny llme be ñleà,Tenant øhall wiühin ølxt'y (60) àayø atLer

nof,lce of the llinø thereof, aauøe the Õame to be àiøcharqeà of reaorà W paymenr,, àe?o^lt,, bonà, oràer of a courl' of coñ?eterfi iuriøàiction or or,herwiøe, Vroviàeà,

however,thât, Leøøee øhall have the riøhï No conteøþ with àue àlliTence,'the valiàity or âmount of any øuch lien or claimeà lien, if Leøøee øhâll øive lo Leøøor reaøonable

øeaurity Nhereof, in an amount, reaøonably requeøteà by Leøøor (but in any event not leøø lhan 15O% of fhe amounþ claimeà lo be oweà by lhe lien alaimant'), jubiecf

to 1'he loreøolnø ?rcviøionø, 11 Leøøee øhall lail to cauøe øuah lien to be àiøoharqeà wll,hin the perioà aloreøaià, Nhen, ln âààltion lo any olher riøhl or remeày of Leøøor,

Leøøor may, but øhall not be obliøâteà to, àiøcharqe the øame ellher W ?ayinø the âmounf, alaimeà to be àue or by Vrocurinq lhe àiøcharqe of øuah lien W àe?o6il or

by bonàlnT proceeàinqø, anà ln any øuah eventø Leøøor øhall be enlllleà, if Le1øor øo eleçI,ø, r,o comVel lhe ?rooecution of ân action for lhe lorecloøure of øuch

mechanic'ø lien W f,he lienor anà to ?ây the amount 01 iuàømenl in favor o1 the lienor wilh lnlereøv, aoøLî ânà allowanceø. Noi,hlnø conlaineà in þhiø Leaøe øhall be

àeemeà or conølrueà in any wây aø conølilulinø the conøeßl of Leøøor, ex?reøø or im?lleà, fo any cont'raolor, øubcorfiractor, laborer or mâterlalmân for lhe

perlormanoe of any labor or Nhe furniøhln1 o1 any materlalø lor any øVecÊtc lm?rcvenentø, âlleraïion or reVair of lhe lmprovemenlø or any ?arl r'hereof, nor aø givlnq

Leøøee a riøht, ?ower of auqhority to contrâct for or ?ermll lhe renàerinø of any øerviceø or lhe fwniøhinø of any materlalø lhal woulà ølve rløe to lhe fllinø of âny

meahanidø lienø âøainøL Leøøor'ø inlereøN in the ?remiøeø,

(c) Liens; Bonds, Lessee shall pay, when due, all claims for labor or materials furnished or alleged to have been furnished to or

for Lessee at or for use on the Premises, which claims are or may be secured by any mechanic's or materialmen's lien against the Premises or any
interest there¡n. Lessee shall give Lessor not less than 10 days notice prior to the commencement of any work in, on or about the Premises, and

Lessor shall have the right to post notices of non-responsibility. lf Lessee shall contest the validity of any such lien, claim or demand, then Lessee

shall, at its sole expense defend and protect itself, Lessor and the Premises against the same and shall pay and satisfy any such adversejudgment that

may be rendered thereon before the enforcement thereof. lf Lessor shall require, Lessee shall furnish a surety bond in an amount equal to 1 50o/o of the

amôunt of such contested lien, claim or demand, indemniffing Lessor against liabilily for the same. lf Lessor elects to partic¡pate in any such action,

Lessee shall pay Lessor's attorneys'fees and costs.

rFX PA.E 6 oF rB ft'\¡hEiT- rr\_
¡ñirñf lNlrALs

@2001 - AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATON FOR]'' STG-2I.IIII4E

48



7.4 Ownership; Removal; Surrender; and Restoration,
(a) Ownership. Subject to Lessor's right to require removal or elect ownership as hereinafter provided, all Alterations and Util¡ty

lnstallations made by Lessee shall be the property of Lessee, but considered a part of the Premises. Lessor may, at any time, elect in writing to be thê
owner of all or any specified part of the Lessee Ovvned Alterations and Util¡ty lnstallations. Unless otherwise instlucted þer paragraph 7.4(b) hereof all
Lessee Owned Alterations and Util¡ty lnstallations shall, at the expiration or termination of this Lease, become the propeiy of Leèsor and be
surrendered by Lessee with the Premises.

(b) Removal. By delivery to Lessee of written notice from Lessor not earf ier than 90 and not later than 30 days prior to the end of
the term of this Lease, Lessor may require that any or all Lessee Owned Alterations or Utility lnstallations be removed by the expirátion or termination of
this Lease. Lessor may require the removal at any time of all or any part of any Lessee Owned Alterat¡ons or Utility lnstallations made without the
required consent.

(c) Surrender; Restoration. Lessee shall surrender the Premises by the Expiration Date or any earlier termination date, with all of
the improvements, parts and surfaces thereof broom clean and free of debris, and in good operating order, condition and state of repair, ordinary wear
and tear excepted. "Ordinary wear and tear" shall not include any damage or deterioration that would have been prevented by good maintenance
practice. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if this Lease is for 12 months or less, then Lessee shall surrender the Premises in thê éame condition as
delivered to Lessee on the Start Date with NO allowance for ordinary wear and tear. Lessee shall repair any damage occasioned by the installation,
maintenance or removal of Trade Flxtures, Lessee owned Alterations and/or Utility lnstallations, furnishings, and eqúpment as well ás the removal of
any storage tank installed by or for Lessee. Lessee shall remove from the Premises any and all Hazardous Substances brought onto the Premises by
or for Lessee, or any third party (except Hazardous Substances which were depos¡ted via underground migration from areas outside of the premises) tó
the level specified in Applicable Requirements. Trade Fixtures shall remain the property of Lessee and shall be removed by Lessee. Any persónal
property of Lessee not removed on or before the Expiration Date or any earlier term¡nation date shall be deemed to have been abandoned 

'by 
Lessee

and may be disposed of or retained by Lessor as Lesso¡ may desire. The failure by Lessee to timely vacate the Premises pursuant to this pãragraph
7.4(c) without the express written consent of Lessor shall constitute a holdover under the provisions of Paragraph 26 below
8. lnsurance; lndemnity.

8.1 Payment of Premium lncreases.
(a) Lessee shall pay to Lessor any insurance cost ¡ncrease ("lnsurance Cost lncrease") occurring during the term of thls Lease.

lnsurance Cost lncrease is defined as any increase ¡n the actual cost of the insurance required under Paragraph 8.2(b), S.d(a) and g.3(b), over and
above the Base Premium as hereinafterdefined calculated on an annual basis. lnsurance Cost lncrease shall include but noi be limited'to increases
resulting from the nature of Lessee's occupancy, any act or omission of Lessee, requirements of the holder of mortgage or deed of trust covering the
Premises, increased valuation of the Premises and/or a premium rate ¡ncrease. The parties are encouraged to fìll in tñe Base premium in paragrap-h 1.g
with a reasonable premium for the Required lnsurance based on the Agreed Use of the Premises. lf the parties fail to insert a doliar amount in
Paragraph 1.8, then the Base Premium shall be the lowest annual premium reasonably obtainable for the Required lnsurance as of lhe commencement
of the Original Term for the Agreed Use of the Premises. ln no event, however, shall Lessee be responsible for any portion of the increase in the
prem¡um cost atlributable to liability insurance carried by Lessor under Paragraph 8.2(b) in excess of $2,000,000 per occurrence.

(b) Lessee shall pay any such lnsurance Cost lncrease to Lessor with¡n 30 days after receipt by Lessee of a copy of the premium
statement or other reasonable evidence of the amount due. lf the insurance policies maintained hereunder cover other property besid'es the Premises,
Lessor shall also deliver to Lessee a statement of the amount of such lnsurance Cost lncrease attributable only to the Premisei showing in reasonable
detail the manner in which such amount was computed. Premiums for policy periods commencing prior to, or éxtending beyond the terrñ of this Lease,
shall be prorated to correspond to the term ofthis Lease.

8.2 L¡ab¡lity lnsurance.
(a) carried by Lessee. Lessee shall obtain and keep in force a Commercial General Liability policy of insurance protecting Lessee

and Lessor as an additional insured against claims for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage based upon or arising out of the oünership,
use, occupancy or maintenance of the Premises and all areas appurtenant thereto. Such ¡nsurance shall be on an occurrence basis providing singie
limit coverage in an amount not less than $+0e0p0& qS,ooo,oo) per occurrence with an annual aggregate of not less than g3p€0f0e q5.poo,ooo.
Lessee shall add Lessor as an additional insured by means of an endorsement at least as broad as the lnsurance Service Organization's "Add¡t¡onal
lnsured-Managers or Lessors of Premises" Endorsement. The policy shall not contain any intra-insured exclusions as betweén insured persons or
organizations, but shall include coverage for liability assumed under this Lease as an "insured contract" for the performance of Lessee's indemnity
obligations under this Lease. The limits of said insurance shall not, however, limit the liability of Lessee nor rel¡eve Lessee of any obligation hereunder.
Lessee shall provide an endorsement on its liability policy(ies) wfrich provides that its insurance shall be primary to and not contiibutory with any similar
insurance carried by Lessor, whose insurance shall be cons¡dered excess insurance only.

(b) Carried by Lessor' Lessor shall maintain liability insurance as described in Paragraph 8.2(a), in add¡tion to, and not in lieu of,
the insurance required to be mainta¡ned by Lessee. Lessee shall not be named as an additional insured tñerein.

8.3 Property lnsurance - Building, lmprovements and Rental Value.
(a) Building and lmprovements, The lnsuring Party shall obtain and keep in force a policy or policies in the name of Lessor, with

loss payable to Lessor, any groundJessor, and to any Lender insuring loss or damage to the Premises. The amount of such insurance shall be equal to
the full insurable replacement cost of the Premises, as the same shall exist from time to time, or the amount required by any Lender, but in no event
more than the commercially reasonable and available insurable value thereof. Lessee Owned Alterations and Ut¡lity lnstãllations, Trade Fixtures, and
Lessee's personal property shall be insured by Lessee not by Lessor. lf the coverage is available and commercially appropr¡ate, such policy or policies
shall insure against all risks of direct physical loss or damage (except the perils of flood and/or earthquake unless required by a Lender oi inciuded in
the Base Premium), including coverage for debris removal and the enforcement of any Applicable Requirements requiring the upgrading, demolition,
reconstruction or replacement of any portion of the Prem¡ses as the result of a covered loss. Said policy or policies sñall also-contaln an agreed
valuation provision in lieu of any coinsurance clause, waiver of subrogation, and inflation guard protecúon óausing an increase in the annual prõperty
insurance coverage amount by a factor of not less than the adjusted U.S. Department of Labor Consumer Price lnãex for All Urban Consumers for thé
city nearest to where the Premises are located. lfsuch insurance coverage has a deductible clause, the deductible amount shall not exceed $5,000 per
occurrence, and Lessee shall be liable for such deductible amount in the event of an lnsured Loss.

(b) Rental Value. The lnsuring Party shall obtain and keep in force a policy or policies in the name of Lessor with loss payable to
Lessor and any Lender, insuring the loss of the full Rent for one yearwith an efended period of indemnity for an additional 180 days 1,'Réntãl value
insurance"). Said insurance shall contain an agreed valuation provision in lieu of any coinsurance clause, and the amount of cbverage snall Oe
adjusted annually to reflect the projected Rent otherwise payable by Lessee, for the next 12 month per¡od. Lessee shall be liable for any- deductible
amount in lhe event of such loss.

I ¡ (c) Adiacent Premises. lf the Premises are part of a larger building, or of a group of buildings owned by Lessor which are adjacentItWt,>' PAGE ? oF l8 /4þ¿-CF
lñlïALs -lt¡ll¡l_s

@2OOI . AR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATON FORM STG.21-lrlr4E

49



to the prem¡ses, the Lessee shall pay for any increase in the premiums for the property insurance of such building or buildings ¡f said increase is

caused by Lessee's acts, omissions, use or occupancy ofthe Premises.
8.4 Lessee's Property; Business lnterruption lnsurance; Worker's Compensation lnsurance.

(a) Property Damage, Lessee shall obtain and maintain insurance coverage on all of Lessee's personal property, Trade Fixtures,

and Lessee Or¡¡red Àlterations-and Utility lnstallations. Such insurance shall be full replacement cost coverage with a deductible of not.to exceed

$1,000peroccurrence. Theproceedsfrómanysuchinsuranceshall beusedbyLesseeforthereplacementofpersonal property,TradeFixturesand

Lessee Owned Alterations and Utility lnstallations.
(b) Business lnterruption. Lessee shall obtain and maintain loss of income and extra expense insurance in amounts as will

reimburse Lessee foi direct or indirect losó of earnings attributable to all perils commonly insured against by prudent lessees in the business of Lessee

or attributable to prevention of access to the Premises as a result of such perils.
(c) Worker's Compensation Insurance. Lessee shall obtain and maintain Worker's Compensation lnsurance in such amount as

may be required by Applicable Requirèments. Such policy shall include a 'Waiver of Subrogation' endorsement. Lessee shall provide Lessor with a

copy of such endoisement along with the certifìcate of insurance or copy of the policy required by paragraph 8.5.

(d) No Repiesentation of Adequate Coverage. Lessor makes no representation that the lim¡ts or forms of coverage of insurance

specified herein are adequate to cover Lessee's property, business operations or obligations underthis Lease.

B.S Insurance Policies. lnsurance required herein shall be by companies maintaining during the policy term a "General Policyholders

Rating" of at least A-, Vll, as set forth in the most current issue of "Best's lnsurance Guide", or such other rating as may b9 re_quire{ by a Lender'

Lessãe shall not do or permit to be done anything which invalidates the required insurance policies. Lessee shall, prior to the Start Date, deliver to

Lessor certified copies óf policies of such insurance or certificates with copies of the required endorsements evidencing the existence and amounts of

the required insurance. N'o such policy shall be cancelable or subject to modificat¡on except after 30 days priorwritten notice to Lessor. Lessee shall,

at leasi 10 days prior to the expiration-of such policies, furnish Lessor with evidence of renewals or "insurance binders" evidencing renewal thereof' or

Lessor may oider such insurance and charge ihe cost thereof to Lessee, wtrich amount shall be payable by Lessee to Lessor upon demand. Such

policies shãll be for a term of at least one yèar, or the length of the rema¡n¡ng term of this Lease, whichever is less. lf eithe+*aÉy Leøøee shall lail lo

procure and maintain the insurance required to be carried by it, the etherfa*y Leøøor may, but shall not be required to, procure and maintain the same.

8.6 Waiver of Subrogation. Without affecting any other rights or remedies, Lessee and Lessor each hereby release and relieve the

other, and waive their entire right to iecover damages againsi the other, for loss of or damage to its property arising out of or inc¡dent to the perils

requiied to be ¡nsured against ñerein. The effect oisuch releases and waivers is not limited by the amount of insurance carried or required, or by any

deäuctibles applicable hãreto. The Parties agree to have their respective property damage insurance carrìers waive any right to subrogation that such

companies may have against Lessor or Lessee, as the case may be, so long as the ¡nsurance is not invalidated thereby.

8.7 lndemnity. Except for Lessor's gross negligence or willful misconduct, Lessee shall indemnifl, protect, defend and hold harmless

the premises, Lessor and its ágents, Lessor's mastei or ground lessor, partners and Lenders, from and against any and all claims, loss of rents and/or

damages, liens, judgments, peñalties, attorneys' and coniultants'fees, expenses and/or liabilities arising out of, involving, or in connection with, the use

and/oi occupancy oT ttre premises by Lessee. lf any action or proceeding is brought against Lessor by reason of any of the foregoing matters, Lessee

shall upon noticá defend the same ät Lessee's expénse by counsel reasonably satisfactory to Lessor and Lessor shall cooperate with Lessee in such

defense. Lessor need not have first paid any such claim in order to be defended or indemnified.
B.B Exemption of Lessor and ¡ts Agents from Liability. Notwithstanding the negligence or breach of this Lease by Lessor or its

agents, neither Lessor noi ¡ts agents shall be liable under any circumstances for: (i) injury or damage to the person or goods, wares, merchandise or

oiher property of Lessee, Lessee's employees, contractors, ¡nvitees, customers, or any other person in or about the Premises, whether such damage or

injury is óauóeO ny or results from fire, sieam, electricity, gas, water or rain, indoor air quality, the presence of mold or from the breakage, leakage,

obstiuction or othér defects of pipes, fire sprinklers, wirès, appliances, plumbing, HVAC or light¡ng fixtures, or from any other cause, wl'ìether the said

injury or damage results from conditions arising upon the Premises or upon other portions of the building of lvhich the Premises are a part, or from other

róurc"r or plaões, (ii) any damages arising frõm'any act or neglect of any other tenant of Lessor or from the failure of Lessor or its agents to enforce

the provisions ot any'othér leasJin the Project, or 1íii¡ injury to Lessee's business or for any loss of income or prof¡t therefrom. lnstead, it is intended

that Lessee's sole rêcourse in the event of-such damagès or injury be to file a claim on the insurance policy(ies) that Lessee is required to maintain

pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 8.
g.9 Failure to Provide lnsurance. Lessee acknowledges that any failure on its part to obtain or maintain the insurance required

herein will expose Lessor to risks and potentially cause Lessor to incur costs not contemplated by th¡s Lease, the extent of which will be extremely

difficult to ascertain. Accordingly, for any month ôr portion thereof that Lessee does not maintain the required insurance and/or does not provide Lessor

with the required binders or ce-rtíficates évidencing ihe existence of the required insurance, the Base Rent shall be automat¡cally increased, without any

requiremeni for notice to Lessee, by an amount equal to 10olo ofthe then ex¡sting Base Rent or $100, whichever is greater. The partjes agree that such

increase in Base Rent represents fãir and reasonable compensation for the additional risk/ costs that Lessor will incur by reason of Lessee's failure to

maintain the required insurance. Such increase in Base Rent shall in no event constitute a waiver of Lessee's Default or Breach with respect to the

fa¡lure to maintain such insurance, prevent the exercise of any of the other rights and remedies granted hereunder, nor relieve Lessee of its obligation to

maintain the insurance specified in this Lease.Alvernatlvely,Leøøor may treat Leøøee'ø lailure r,o ohâin anà malnlain the inøurance requireà herein a6 â mâlerial

breach anà proceeà aø Vrovlàeàherein lor øuch breacheø,

9. Damage or Destruction.
9.1 Definitions.

(a) "Premises Partial Damage" shall mean damage or destruction to the improvements on the Premises, other than Lessee

Owned Alterations and Utility lnstallations, which õan reasonably be repaired in 6 months or less from the date of the damage or destruction. Lessor

shall notiff Lessee in writing within 30 days from the date of the damage or destruction as to whether or not the damage is Partial or Total.

(b) .,premises Total Destruction" shall mean damage or destruction to the Premises, other than Lessee Owned Alterations and

Utility lnstallations anó Trade Fixtures, which cannot reasonably be repaired in 6 months or less from the date of the damage or destruction. Lessor

shalinoti! Lessee in writing within 30 days from the date of the damage or destruction as to whether or not the damage is Partial or Total.

(c) "lnJured toss" shall mean damage or destruction to improvements on the Premises, other than Lessee Owned Alterations and

Utility lnstallations ân'd Trade Fixtures, wh¡ch was causid by an event required to be covered by the insurance described in Paragraph 8.3(a)'

irrespective of any deductible amounts or coverage limits involved.
(d) ,'Replacement Cost" shall mean the cost to repair or rebuild the ¡mprovements owned by Lessor at the time of the 

-occunence
to their condition eiiéting immeCiately prior thereto, including demolition, debris removal and upgrading required by the operation of Applicable

Requirements, and without deduction for depreciation.

V (e) "Hazardous Substance Condition" shall mean the occurrence or discovery of a condit¡on involving the presence of, or a

,!tY" PAGE I oF rB FAhÂ

-ßqq
¡1,¡lr¡nlS INIT|ALS

@2OOI . AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATON FORM STG-2I'I1/I4E

50



contaminat¡on by, a Hazardous Substance, in, on, or under the Premises wtrich requires restorat¡on.
9.2 Partial Damage - Insured Loss. lf a Premises Part¡al Damage that is an lnsured Loss occurs, then Lessor shall, at Lessois

expense, repair such damage (but not Lessee's Trade Fixtures or Lessee Owned Alterations and Utility lnstallations) as soon as reasonably possible
and this Lease shall continue in full force and effect; provided, however, that Lessee shall, at Lessor's election, make the repair of any damage or
destruct¡on the total cost to repair of which is $10,000 or less, and, in such event, Lessor shall make any applicable insurance proceeds available to
Lessee on a reasonable basis for that purpose. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the required insurance was not in force or the insurance proceeds are
not sufficient to effect such repair, the lnsuring Party shall promptly contribute the shortage in proceeds (except as to the deductible which is Lessee's
responsibility) as and when required to complete said repairs. ln the event, however, such shortage was due to the fact that, by reason of the unique
nature of the improvements, full replacement cost insurance coverage was not commercially reasonable and available, Lessor shall have no obligation
to pay for the shortage in insurance proceeds or to fully restore the unique aspects of the Premises unless Lessee provides Lessor with the funds to
cover same, or adequate assurance thereof, within t 0 days following receipt of written notice of such shortage and request therefor. lf Lessor receives
said funds or adequate assurance thereof within said l0 day period, the party respons¡ble for making the repa¡rs shall complete them as soon as
reasonably possible and this Lease shall remain in full force and effect. lf such funds or assurance are not received, Lessor may nevertheless elect by
written notice to Lessee within 10 days thereafter to: (i) make such restoration and repair as is commercially reasonable with Lessor paying any
shortage in proceeds, in which case this Lease shall remain in full force and effect, or (ii) have this Lease terminate 30 days thereafter. Lessee shall
not be entitled to reimbursement of any funds contributed by Lessee to repair any such damage or destruction. Premises Parlial Damage due to flood
or earthquake shall be subject to Paragraph 9.3, notwithstanding that theÍe may be some insurance coverage, but the net proceeds of any such
insurance shall be made available for the repairs if made by either Party.

9.3 Partial Damage - Uninsured Loss. lf a Premises Partial Damage that is not an lnsured Loss occurs, unless caused by a
negligent or willful act of Lessee (in which event Lessee shall make the repairs at Lessee's expense), Lessor may either: (i) repair such damage as
soon as reasonably possible at Lessor's expense, in wfiich event this Lease shall continue in full force and effect, or (ii) term¡nate this Lease by giving
wr¡tten not¡ce to Lessee within 30 days after receipt by Lessor of knowledge of the occurrence of such damage. Such terminat¡on shall be effective 60
daysfollowingthedateofsuchnotice. lntheeventLessorelectstoterm¡nateth¡sLease,Lesseeshallhavetherightwithinl0daysafterreceiptofthe
termination notice to give written notice to Lessor of Lessee's commitment to pay for the repair of such damage without reimbursement from Lessor.
Lessee shall prov¡de Lessor with said funds or satisfactory assurance thereof within 30 days after making such comm¡tment. ln such event this Lease
shall continue in full force and effect, and Lessor shall proceed to make such repairs as soon as reasonably possible afrer the required funds are
available. lf Lessee does not make the required comm¡tment, this Lease shall terminate as of the date specified in the term¡nation notice.

9.4 Total Destruction. Notwithstanding any other prov¡sion hereof, if a Premises Total Destruction occurs, this Lease shall terminate
60 days following such Destruction. lf the damage or destruction was caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Lessee, Lessor shall
have the right to recover Lessor's damages from Lessee, except as provided ¡n Paragraph 8.6.

9.5 Damage Near End of Term, lf at any time during the last 6 months of this Lease there is damage for which the cost to repair
exceeds one month's Base Rent, whether or not an lnsured Loss, Lessor may terminate this Lease effective 60 days following the date of occurrence of
such damage by giving a written termination notice to Lessee within 30 days after the date of occurrence of such damage. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if Lessee at that time has an exercisable option to extend this Lease or to purchase the Premises, then Lessee may preserve this Lease by,
(a) exercising such option and (b) providing Lessor with any shortage in insurance proceeds (or adequate assurance thereof) needed to make the
repairs on or before the earlier of (i) the date which is 10 days after Lessee's receipt of Lessofs written notice purporting to terminate this Lease, or (ii)
the day prior to the date upon which such option expires. lf Lessee duly exercises such option during such period and provides Lessor with funds (or
adequate assurance thereof) to cover any shortage in insurance proceeds, Lessor shall, at Lessofs commercially reasonable expense, repair such
damage as soon as reasonably possible and this Lease shall continue in full force and effect. lf Lessee fails to exercise such oplion and provide such
funds or assurance during such per¡od, then this Lease shall terminate on the date specified in the termination notice and Lessee's option shall be
extinguished.

9.6 Abatement of Rent; Lessee's Remedies.
(a) Abatement, ln the event of Premises Partial Damage or Premises Total Destruction or a Hazardous Substance Condition for

wttich Lessee is not responsible under th¡s Lease, the Rent payable by Lessee for the period required for the repair, remediation or restoration of such
damage shall be abated in proportion to the degree to which Lessee's use of the Premises is impaired, but not to exceed the proceeds received from
the Rental Value insurance. All other obligations of Lessee hereunder shall be performed by Lessee, and Lessor shall have no liability for any such
damage, destruction, remediation, repair or restoration except as provided herein.

(b) Remed¡es. lf Lessor is obligated to repair or restore the Premises and does not commence, in a substantial and meaningful
way, such repair or restoration within 90 days after such obligation shall accrue, Lessee may, at any time prior to the commencement of such repair or
restoration, give vwitten notice to Lessor and to any Lenders of which Lessee has actual notice, of Lessee's election to terminate this Lease on a date
not less than 60 days following the giving of such notice. lf Lessee gives such notice and such repair or restoration is not commenced within 30 days
thereafter, this Lease shall terminate as of the date specified in said notice. lf the repair or restoration is commenced within such 30 days, th¡s Lease
shall continue in full force and effect. "Commence" shall mean either the unconditional authorization of the preparation of the required plans, or the
beginning of the actual work on the Premises, whichever f¡rst occurs.

9.7 Termination; Advance Payments. Upon terminalion of this Lease pursuant to Paragraph 6.2(9) or Paragraph 9, an equitable
adjustment shall be made concerning advance Base Rent and any other advance payments made by Lessee to Lessor. Lessor shall, ¡n addition, return
to Lessee so much of Lessee's Security Depos¡t as has not been, or is not then required to be, used by Lessor.
10. RealPropertyTaxes,

10.1 Definition. As used herein, the term "Real Property Taxes" shall include any form of assessment; real estate, general, special,
ordinary or extraordinary, or rental levy or tax (other than inheritance, personal income or estate taxes); improvement bond; and/or license fee imposed
upon or levied against any legal or equitable interest of Lessor in the Premises or the Project, Lessor's right to other income therefrom, and/or Lessor's
business of leasing, by any authority having the direct or indirect power to tax and wfrere the funds are generated with reference to the Building address
and where the proceeds so generated are to be applied by the c¡ty, county or other local taxing authority of a jurisdiction within which the Prem¡ses are
located. Real Property Taxes shall also include any tax, fee, levy, assessment or charge, or any increase therein: (i) imposed by reason of events
occurring during the term of this Lease, including but not limited to, a change in the ownership of the Premises, and (ii) levied or assessed on
machinery or equipment provided by Lessor to Lessee pursuant to this Lease.

10.2
(a) Payment of Taxes. Lessor shall pay the Real Property Taxes applicable to the Premises provided, however, that Lessee shall

pay to Lessor the amount, if any, by which Real Property Taxes applicable to the Premises increase over the fiscal tax year during which the
Commencement Date Occurs ("Tax lncrease"). Payment of any such Tax lncrease shall be made by Lessee to Lessor within 30 days after receipt of
Lessor's written statement sett¡ng forth the amount due and computation thereof. lf any such taxes shall cover any period of time prior to or after the

lfu 
'AGE 

s oF iB /,6Á-L-
¡þ.ft; 

PAGEsoFlE '(;x*
ñrrALil ìñmÀl-s-

@2OOI . AR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION FORM STG-2I-I1/I4E

51



expiration or termination of th¡s Lease, Lessee's share of such taxes shall be prorated to cover only that portion of the tax bill applicable to the period

that this Lease is in effect. ln the event Lessee incurs a late charge on any Rent payment, Lessor may estimate the current Real Property Taxes, and

require that the Tax lncrease be paid in advance to Lessor by Lessee monthly in advance with the payment of the Base Rent. Such monthly payment

shall be an amount equal to the amount of the estimated installment of the Tax lncrease divided by the number of months remaining before the month
in which said installment becomes delinquent. When the actual amount of the applicable Tax lncrease is known, the amount of such equal monthly
advance payments shall be adjusted as required to provide the funds needed to pay the applicable Tax lncrease. lf the amount collected by Lessor is
insufficient to pay the Tax lncrease when due, Lessee shall pay Lessor, upon demand, such additional sums as are necessary to pay such obligations.
Advance payments may be intermingled with other moneys of Lessor and shall not bear ¡nterest. ln the event of a Breach by Lessee in the
performance of its obligations under this Lease, then any such advance payments may be treated by Lessor as an additional Security Deposit.

(b) Additional lmprovements, Notwithstanding anything to the contrary ¡n this Paragraph 10.2, Lessee shall pay to Lessor upon

demand therefor the entirety of any increase in Real Property Taxes assessed by reason of Alterat¡ons or Utility lnstallations placed upon the Premises
by Lessee or at Lessee's request or by reason of any alterations or improvements to the Premises made by Lessor subsequent to the execution ofthis
Lease by the Parties.

10.3 Jo¡nt Assessment lf the Premises are not separately assessed, Lessee's liability shall be an equitable proportion of the Tax

lncrease for all of the land and improvements included within the tax parcel assessed, such proportion to be conclusively determined by Lessor from the
respective valuations assigned in the assessor's work sheets or such other information as may be reasonably available.

'10.4 Perconal Propefi Taxes. Lessee shall pay, prior to delinquency, all taxes assessed against and levied upon Lessee Owned

Alterations, Utility lnstallations, Trade Fixtures, furnishings, equipment and all personal property of Lessee. When possible, Lessee shall cause its

Lessee Owned Alterations and Utility lnstallations, Trade Fifures, furnishings, equipment and all other personal property to be assessed and billed

separately from the real property of Lessor. lf any of Lessee's said property shall be assessed with Lessols real property, Lessee shall pay Lessor the
taxes attr¡butable to Lessee's property within l0 days afier receipt of a wr¡tten statement setting forth the taxes applicable to Lessee's property.

1'1. Utilities and Services. Lessee shall pay for all water, gas, heat, light, power, telephone, trash d¡sposal and other utilities and services
supplied to the Premises, together with any taxes thereon. lf any such services are not separately metered or billed to Lessee, Lessee shall pay a

reasonable proportion, to be determined by Lessor, of all charges jointly metered or billed. There shall be no abatement of rent and Lessor shall not be
liable in any respect whatsoever for the inadequacy, stoppage, interruption or discontinuance of any utility or serv¡ce due to riot, strike, labor dispute,

breakdown, accident, repair or other cause beyond Lessois reasonable control or ¡n cooperation with governmental request or directions.
12. Assignment and Subletting.

'12.1 Lessor's Consent Required,
(a) Lessee shall not voluntar¡ly or by operation of law ass¡gn, transfer, mortgage or encumber (collectively, "assign or

assignment") or sublet all or any part of Lessee's interest in this Lease or in the Premises without Lessofs prior written consent.
(b) Unless Lessee is a corporat¡on and its stock is publicly traded on a national stock exchange, a change in the control of Lessee

shall constitute an assignment requiring consent. The transfer, on a cumulative basis, of 25% or more of the voting control of Lessee shall constitute a

change in control for this purpose.
(c) The involvement of Lessee or its assets in any transaction, or series of transactions (by way of merger, sale, acquisition,

financing, transfer, leveraged buy-out or otherwise), whether or not a formal assignment or hypothecation of this Lease or Lessee's assets occurs,

which results or will result in a reduction of the Net Worth of Lessee by an amount greater than 25% of such Net Worth as it was represented at the
time of the execution of this Lease or at the time of the most recent assignment to which Lessor has consented, or as it ex¡sts immediately prior to said

transaction or transactions constitut¡ng such reduction, whichever was or is greater, shall be considered an assignment of this Lease to wh¡ch Lessor
may withhold its consent. "Net Worth of Lessee" shall mean the net worth of Lessee (excluding any guarantors) established under generally accepted
accounting principles.

(d) An assignment or subletting without consent shall, at Lessor's option, be a Default curable after notice per Paragraph 13.1(d), or
a noncurable Breach without the necessity of any notice and grace period. lf Lessor elects to treat such unapproved assignment or subletting as a
noncurable Breach, Lessor may either: (i) terminate this Lease, or (ii) upon 30 days written notice, increase the monthly Base Rent lo '110o/o of the Base
Rent then in effect. Further, in the event of such Breach and rental adjustment, (i) the purchase price of any opt¡on to purchase the Premises held by
Lessee shall be subject to similar adjustment to 110% of the price previously in effect, and (ii) all fixed and non-f¡xed rental adjustments scheduled
during the remainder of the Lease term shall be increased lo 110o/o of the scheduled adjusted rent.

(e) Lessee's remedy for any breach of Paragraph 1 2.1 by Lessor shall be limited to compensatory damages and/or injunctive relief.
(f) Lessor may reasonably úthhold consent to a proposed assignment or sublett¡ng if Lessee is in Default at the time consent is

requested.
(g) Notwithstanding the foregoing, allowing a de minimis portion of the Premises, ie. 20 square feet or less, to be used by a third

party vendor in connection with the installation of a vending machine or payphone shall not constitute a subletting.
12.2 Terms and Conditions Applicable to Assignment and Subletting.

(a) Regardless of Lessor's consent, no assignment or subletting shall: (i) be effective without the express written assumption by

such assignee or sublessee of the obligations of Lessee under this Lease, (ii) release Lessee of any obligations hereunder, or (iii) alter the primary

liability of Lessee for the payment of Rent or for the performance of any other obligations to be performed by Lessee.
(b) Lessor may accept Rent or performance of Lessee's obligations from any person other than Lessee pend¡ng approval or

disapproval of an assignment. Neither a delay in the approval or disapproval of such assignment nor the acceptance of Rent or performance shall
constitute a waiver or estoppel of Lessor's right to exercise its remedies for Lessee's Default or Breach.

(c) Lessor's consent to any assignment or subletting shall not constitute a consent to any subsequent assignment or subletting.
(d) ln the event of any Default or Breach by Lessee, Lessor may proceed directly aga¡nst Lessee, any Guarantors or anyone else

respons¡ble for the performance of Lessee's obligations under this Lease, including any assignee or sublessee, without fìrst exhausting Lessor's
remedies against any other person or entity respons¡ble therefor to Lessor, or any security held by Lessor.

(e) Each request for consent to an assignment or subletting shall be in writing, accompanied by information relevant to Lessor's
determination as to the financial and operational responsibility and appropriateness of the proposed assignee or sublessee, including but not limited to
the intended use and/or required modification of the Premises, if any, together with a fee of $500 as consideration for Lessor's cons¡dering and
processing said request. Lessee agrees to provide Lessor with such other or additional information and/or documentation as may be reasonably
requested. (See also Paragraph 36)

(f) Any assignee of, or sublessee under, this Lease shall, by reason of accept¡ng such assignment, entering into such sublease, or
entering into possession of the Premises or any portion thereof, be deemed to have assumed and agreed to conform and comply with each and every
term, covenant, condition and obligation herein to be observed or performed by Lessee during the term of said assignment or sublease, other than such
obligations as are contrary to or inconsistent with provisions of an assignment or sublease to which Lessor has specifically consented to in writing.

thh PAGEiooFIB UÏJ'-KtF rrj-
¡N¡T¡ALS INITIALS

G)2OOI - AR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATON FORM STG-2I-II/I4E

52



(g) Lessor's consent to any assignment or subletting shall not transfer to the assignee or sublessee any Option granted to the
or¡ginal Lessee by this Lease unless such transfer is specif¡cally consented to by Lessor in w'¡t¡ng. (See Paragraph 39.2)

12.3 Additional Terms and Conditions Applicable to Subletting. The following terms and condit¡ons shall apply to any subletting by
Lessee of all or any part ofthe Premises and shall be deemed included in all subleases under this Lease vvhether or not expressly incorporated therein:

(a) Lessee hereby asslgns and transfers to Lessor all of Lessee's interest in all Rent payable on any sublease, and Lessor may
collect such Rent and apply same toward Lessee's obligations under th¡s Lease; provided, however, that until a Breach shall occur in the performance
of Lessee's obligations, Lessee may collect said Rent. ln the event that the amount collected by Lessor exceeds Lessee's then outstanding obligations
any such excess shall be refunded to Lessee. Lessor shall not, by reason of the foregoing or any assignment of such sublease, nor by reason of the
collection of Rent, be deemed liable to the sublessee for any failure of Lessee to peform and comply with any of Lessee's obligations to such
sublessee. Lessee hereby irrevocably authorizes and directs any such sublessee, upon receipt of a written notice from Lessor stating that a Breach
exists in the performance of Lessee's obligations under this Lease, to pay to Lessor all Rent due and to become due under the sublease. Sublessee
shall rely upon any such notice from Lessor and shall pay all Rents to Lessor without any obligation or right to inquire as to whether such Breach exists,
notwithstanding any claim from Lessee to the contrary.

(b) ln the event of a Breach by Lessee, Lessor may, at its option, require sublessee to attorn to Lessor, in which event Lessor shall
undertake the obligations of the sublessor under such sublease from the time of the exercise of said option to the expiration of such sublease; provided,
however, Lessor shall not be liable for any prepaid rents or security deposit paid by such sublessee to such sublessor or for any prior Defaults or
Breaches of such sublessor.

(c) Any matter requ¡ring the consent ofthe sublessor under a sublease shall also require the consent of Lessor.
(d) No sublessee shall further assign or sublet all or any part of the Premises without Lessor's prior written consent.
(e) Lessor shall deliver a copy of any notice of Default or Breach by Lessee to the sublessee, who shall have the right to cure the

Default of Lessee within the grace period, if any, specified in such notice. The sublessee shall have a right of reimbursement and offset from and
against Lessee for any such Defaults cured by the sublessee.
13. Default; Breach; Remedies,

13.1 Default; Breach, A "Default" is defined as a failure by the Lessee to comply with or perform any of the terms, covenants,
conditions or Rules and Regulations under th¡s Lease. A "Breach" is defined as the occurrence of one or more of the following Defaults, and the
failure of Lessee to cure such Default within any applicable grace period:

(a) The abandonment of the Premises; or the vacating of the Premises without providing a commercially reasonable level of
security, or where the coverage of the property insurance described in Paragraph 8.3 is jeopardized as a result thereof, or without providing reasonable
assurances to m¡nimize potential vandalism.

(b) The failure of Lessee to make any payment of Rent or any Security Depos¡t required to be made by Lessee hereunder, whether
to Lessor or to a third party, vvhen due, to provide reasonable evidence of insurance or surety bond, or to fulfill any obligation under this Lease which
endangers or threatens life or property, where such failure continues for a period of 3 business days following written notice to Lessee.

(c) The failure of Lessee to allow Lessor and/or its agents access to the Premises or the commission of waste, act or acts
constituting public or private nuisance, and/or an illegal activity on the Prem¡ses by Lessee, where such actions continue for a period of 3 business days
following written not¡ce to Lessee. ln the event that Lessee commits waste, a nuisance or an illegal act¡vity a second time then, the Lessor may elect to
treat such conduct as a non-curable Breach rather than a Default.

(d) The failure by Lessee to provide (¡) reasonable wr¡tten ev¡dence of compliance ûth Applicable Requirements, (ii) the service
contracts, (iii) the rescission of an unauthorized assignment or subletting, (iv) an Estoppel Certificate or f¡nancial statements, (v) a requested
subordination, (vi) evidence concerning any guaranty and/or Guarantor, (vii) any document requested under Paragraph 42, (viii) material safety data
sheets (MSDS), or (ix) any other documentation or information which Lessor may reasonably require of Lessee under the terms of this Lease, where
any such failure continues for a period of l0 days following wiften notice to Lessee.

(e) A Default by Lessee as to the terms, covenants, conditions or provisions ofthis Lease, or ofthe rules adopted under Paragraph
40 hereof, other than those described in subparagraphs 1 3.1 (a), (b), (c) or (d), above, where such Default continues for a period of 30 days after written
notice; provided, however, that if the nature of Lessee's Default is such that more than 30 days are reasonably required for its cure, then it shall not be
deemed to be a Breach if Lessee commences such cure within said 30 day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes such cure to completion.

(f) The occurrence of any of the following events: (i) the making of any general arrangement or assignment for the benefit of
creditors; (ii) becoming a "debtor" as defined in 1 1 U.S.C. $101 or any successor statute thereto (unless, in the case of a petition filed against Lessee,
the same is dismissed within 60 days); (iii) the appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of Lessee's assets located at
the Premises or of Lessee's interest in this Lease, where possession is not restored to Lessee within 30 days; or (iv) the attachment, execution or other
judicial seizure of substantially all of Lessee's assets located at the Premises or of Lessee's interest in this Lease, where such seizure is not discharged
with¡n 30 days; provided, however, in the event that any provision ofthis subparagraph (e) is contrary to any applicable law such provision shall be of
no force or effect, and not affect the validity of the remain¡ng provis¡ons.

(g) The discovery that any financial statement of Lessee or of any Guarantor given to Lessor was materially false.
(h) lf the performance of Lessee's obligations under this Lease is guaranteed: (¡) the death of a Guarantor, (ii) the termination of a

Guarantor's liability with respect to this Lease other than in accordance with the terms of such guaranty, (iii) a Guarantor's becoming insolvent or the
subject of a bankruptcy filing, (iv) a Guarantor's refusal to honor the guaranty, or (v) a Guarantor's breach of its guaranty obligation on an anticipatory
basis, and Lessee's failure, within 60 days following witten notice of any such event, to provide written alternative assurance or security, wtrich, when
coupled with the then existing resources of Lessee, equals or exceeds the combined financial resources of Lessee and the Guarantors that existed at
the time of execution of this Lease.

13.2 Remedies. lf Lessee fails to perform any of its affirmative duties or obligations, within 10 days after written notice (or in case of an
emergency, without not¡ce), Lessor may, at its option, perform such duty or obligation on Lessee's behalf including but not limited to the obtaining of
reasonably required bonds, insurance policies, or governmental licenses, permits or approvals or Leøøor âr, lþø o?þton mây tenninate Nhl6 Leâøe in

aaaoràanoe wlth þhe termø of thiø Aqreement. Lessee shall pay to Lessor an amount equal to 1 1 5% of the costs and expenses incurred by Lessor in such
performance upon receipt of an invoice therefor. ln the event of a Breach, Lessor may, with or without further notice or demand, and without limiting
Lessor in the exercise of any right or remedy wtrich Lessor may have by reason of such Breach:

(a) Termlnate Lessee's right to possession of the Premises by any lawful means, in which case this Lease shall terminate and
Lessee shall immediately surrender possession to Lessor. ln such event Lessor shall be entitled to recover from Lessee: (i) the unpaid Rent which had
been earned at the time of termination; (ii) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid rent which would have been earned after
termination until the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that the Lessee proves could have been reasonably avoided; (iii) the worth at
the time of award of the amount by wlrich the unpaid rent for the balance of the term afier the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that
the Lessee proves could be reasonably avoided; and (iv) any other amount necessary to compensate Lessor for all the detriment proximately caused by# PAGE I1 OF 18

l'lþs ^ '
-u.!-(-(v
INITIALS-

@2OOI - AlR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATON FORM STG-21-11/l4E

53



the Lessee's failure to perform its obligations under th¡s Lease or which in the ordinary course of things would be likely to result therefrom, including but
not limited to the cost of recovering possession of the Premises, expenses of reletting, including necessary renovat¡on and alteration of the Premises,
reasonable attorneys' fees, and that portion of any leasing commission paid by Lessor in connection with this Lease applicable to the unexpired term of
this Lease. The worth at the time of award of the amount referred to in provision (iii) of the ¡mmediately preceding sentence shall be computed by
discounting such amount at the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of the District within which the Premises are located at the time of award
plus one percent. Efforts by Lessor to mitigate damages caused by Lessee's Breach of this Lease shall not waive Lessor's right to recover any
damages to which Lessor is otherwise entitled. lf termination of this Lease is obtained through the provisional remedy of unlawful detainer, Lessor shall
have the right to recover in such proceeding any unpaid Rent and damages as are recoverable therein, or Lessor may reserve the right to recover all or
any part thereof in a separate suit. lf a notice and grace period required under Paragraph 13.1 was not previously given, a notice to pay rent or quit, or
to perform or qu¡t given to Lessee under the unlalvful detainer statute shall also constitute the notice required by Paragraph 13.1. ln such case, the
applicable grace period required by Paragraph 13.1 and the unlawful detainer statute shall run concurrenlly, and the failure of Lessee to cure the
Default within the greater of the two such grace periods shall constitute both an unlawful detainer and a Breach of this Lease ent¡tling Lessor to the
remedies prov¡ded for in this Lease and/or by said statute.

(b) Continue the Lease and Lessee's right to possession and recover the Rent as it becomes due, in wttich event Lessee may
sublet or assign, subject only to reasonable limitãtions. Acts of maintenance, efforts to relet, and/or the appointment of a receiver to protect the
Lessor's interests, shall not constitute a termination ofthe Lessee's right to possession.

(c) Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter available under the laws or judicial decisions of the state wherein the Premises are
located. The expiration or termination of this Lease and/or the termination of Lessee's right to possess¡on shall not relieve Lessee from liability under
any indemnity provis¡ons of this Lease as to matters occurring or accruing during the term hereof or by reason of Lessee's occupancy of the Premises.

1 3.3 lnducement Recapture. Any agreement for free or abated rent or other charges, the cost of tenant improvements for Lessee paid

for or performed by Lessor, or for the giving or paying by Lessor to or for Lessee of any cash or other bonus, inducement or consideration for Lessee's
entering into this Lease, all of which concessions are hereinafier referred to as "lnducement Provisions," shall be deemed conditioned upon Lessee's
full and faithful performance of all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease. Upon Breach of this Lease by Lessee, any such lnducement
Provision shall automatically be deemed deleted from this Lease and of no further force or effect, and any rent, other charge, bonus, inducement or
consideration theretofore abated, given or paid by Lessor under such an inducement Provision shall be immediately due and payable by Lessee to
Lessor, notwithstanding any subsequent cure of said Breach by Lessee. The acceptance by Lessor of rent or the cure of the Breach which initiated the
operation of this paragraph shall not be deemed a waiver by Lessor of the provisions of this paragraph unless specifically so stated in writing by Lessor
at the time of such acceptance.

13.4 Late Gharges. Lessee hereby acknowledges that late payment by Lessee of Rent will cause Lessor to ¡ncur costs not
contemplated by this Lease, the exact amount of which will be extremely diff¡cult to ascertain. Such costs include, but are not limited to, processing and
accounting charges, and late charges which may be imposed upon Lessor by any Lender. Accordingly, ¡f any Rent shall not be received by Lessor
within 5 days after such amount shall be due, then, without any requirement for notice to Lessee, Lessee shall immediately pay to Lessor a one-time
late charge equal to 10% of each such overdue amount or $1 00, whichever is greater. The Parties hereby agree that such late charge represents a fair
and reasonable estimate of the costs Lessor will incur by reason of such late payment. Acceptance of such late charge by Lessor shall in no event
constitute a waiver of Lessee's Default or Breach with respect to such overdue amount, nor prevent the exercise of any ofthe other rights and remedies
granted hereunder. ln the event that a late charge is payable hereunder, whether or not collected, for 3 consecutive installments of Base Rent, then
notwithstanding any prov¡s¡on of this Lease to the contrary, Base Rent shall, at Lessor's opt¡on, become due and payable quarterly in advance.

13.5 lnterest. Any monetary payment due Lessor hereunder, other than late charges, not received by Lessor, wlìen due shall bear
interest from the 31 st day after it was due. The interest ("lnterest") charged shall be computed at the rate of 1 0% per annum but shall not exceed the
maximum rate allowed by law. lnterest is payable in addition to the potential late charge provided for in Paragraph 13.4.

13.6 Breach by Lessor.
(a) Notice of Breach, Lessor shall not be deemed in breach of this Lease unless Lessor fails within a reasonable time to perform

an obligation required to be performed by Lessor. For purposes of this Paragraph, a reasonable time shall ¡n no event be less than 30 days after
receipt by Lessor, and any Lender whose name and address shall have been furnished Lessee in writing for such purpose, of written notice specify¡ng
wherein such obligation of Lessor has not been performed; provided, however, that if the nature of Lessor's obligation ¡s such that more than 30 days
are reasonably required for its performance, then Lessor shall not be in breach if peformance is commenced within such 30 day period and thereafter
diligently pursued to completion.

(b) Performance by Lessee on Behalf of Lessor, ln the event that neither Lessor nor Lender cures said breach with¡n 30 days
after receipt of said notice, or if hav¡ng commenced said cure they do not diligently pursue it to completion, then Lessee may elect to cure said breach
at Lessee's expense and offset from Rent the actual and reasonable cost to perform such cure, provided however, that such offset shall not exceed an
amount equal to the greater of one month's Base Rent or the Secur¡ty Deposit, reserving Lessee's right to seek reimbursement from Lessor for any
such expense in excess of such offset. Lessee shall document the cost of said cure and supply said documentation to Lessor.
14. Condemnation, lf the Premises or any portion thereof are taken under the power of eminent domain or sold under the threat of the exercise
of said power (collectively "Condemnation"), this Lease shall terminate as to the part taken as of the date the condemning authority takes title or
possession, whichever first occurs. lf more than 1 0olo of the Building, or more than 25o/o of that portion of the Premises not occupied by any building, is

taken by Condemnation, Lessee may, at Lessee's option, to be exercised in writing within 10 days after Lessor shall have given Lessee written notice of
such laking (or in the absence of such notice, within I 0 days after the condemning authority shall have taken possession) terminate this Lease as of the
date the condemning authority takes such possession. lf Lessee does not term¡nate this Lease in accordance with the foregoing, this Lease shall
remain in full force and effect as to the portion of the Premises remaining, except that the Base Rent shall be reduced in proportion to the reduction in
utility of the Premises caused by such Condemnation. Condemnation awards and/or payments shall be the property of Lessor, whether such award
shall be made as compensation for diminution in value of the leasehold, the value of the part taken, or for severance damages; provided, however, that
Lessee shall be entitled to any compensation paid by the condemnor for Lessee's relocat¡on expenses, loss of bus¡ness goodwill and/or Trade Fixtures,
without regard to wtrether or not this Lease is terminated pursuant to the provisions of this Paragraph. All Alterations and Util¡ty lnstallations made to
the Premises by Lessee, for purposes of Condemnat¡on only, shall be considered the property ofthe Lessee and Lessee shall be entitled to any and all

compensation wfiich is payable therefor. ln the event that this Lease is not terminated by reason of the Condemnation, Lessor shall repair any damage
to the Premises caused by such Condemnation.
15. Brokerage Fees.

15,1 Add¡tienal eemm¡6Êien- ln additisn te the paymentÊ ewed pur6uent ts Paragraph 'l,9 abevei anC unles8 teÊser and the Brekers

PAGE t2 OF I8

IN

$lft,ît.r
INITALS-

@2OOI . AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIAÏON FORM STG-2I-4I/I4E

54



agreerFent er eperetien ef an es€alat¡en €lause herein; then; tesssr shall pay Brekers a fee-¡n aeeerdanee with the fee sehedule ef the Brekers in
effeet aÈthe time the tease was exeested,

15 2 lssumptien ef Obligatien6, 
^ny 

buyer er tranÉferee ef teÊêer'ê interest in thiÊ t€a6e shall be deemed te have aÊÊumed teÊeer's
ebl¡gati€n hereunder, Brekers shall be third party benefê¡eriee ef the-pr€viÊ¡ons ef Paragraphs 1 ,9; 16; 32 and 31, lf teÊoer fails to pay to Brekers any
emeuntÊ due aÊ end fsr brekerage fees perla¡n¡ng ts th¡Ê tea€e vyhen due; then Ês€h emeHnts 6hall ae€rue lnter€st, ln additieni ¡f teeEer fa¡16 te pay
any ameunts to teÊ$

í5,3 RepreÊentatiena anC lndemn¡ties ef Brsksr Relat¡€Feh¡pc tessee and te6Êer each repreoent and warrant te the ether lhat it
has had ne dealings with any persen; firm; breker er finder (ether than the Brekers' if any) in eenneetien with this tease' and that ne ene ether than said
named Brekers is entitled te any eemmissien er finder's fee in eenneetien herewith, teesee and tesser de eaeh hereby agree te indemnit, preteet,

wth respeet therete.
16. EstoppelCertificates.

(a) Each Party (as "Responding Party") shall within 10 days after written notice from the other Party (the "Requesting Party")
execute, acknowledge and deliver to the Requesting Party a statement in writing in form similar to the then most current "Estoppel Certificate" form
published by the AIR Commercial Real Estate Association, plus such additional information, confirmation and/or statements as may be reasonably
requested by the Requesting Party.

(b) lf the Responding Party shall fail to execute or deliver the Estoppel Certificate within such 10 day period, the Requesting Party
may execute an Estoppel Certificate stating that: (i) the Lease is in full force and effect without modification except as may be represented by the
Requesting Party, (ii) there are no uncured defaults in the Requesting Party's performance, and (iii) if Lessor is the Requesting Party, not more than one
month's rent has been paid in advance. Prospective purchasers and encumbrancers may rely upon the Requesting Party's Estoppel Certificate, and the
Responding Party shall be estopped from denying the truth of the facts contained in said Certificate. ln addition, Lessee acknowledges that any failure
on its part to provide such an Estoppel Certificate will expose Lessor to risks and potentially cause Lessor to ¡ncur costs not contemplated by this
Lease, the extent of which will be extremely difficult to ascertain. Accord¡ngly, should the Lessee fail to execute and/or deliver a requested Estoppel
Certificate in a timely fashion the monthly Base Rent shall be automatically increased, without any requirement for notice to Lessee, by an amount
equal to 10% of the then existing Base Rent or $100, whichever is greater for remainder of the Lease. The Parties agree that such increase in Base
Rent represents fair and reasonable compensation for the additional risk/costs that Lessor will incur by reason of Lessee's failure to provide the
Estoppel Certificate. Such increase in Base Rent shall in no event const¡tute a waiver of Lessee's Default or Breach with respect to the failure to
provide the Estoppel Certificate nor prevent the exercise of any of the other rights and remedies granted hereunder.

(c) lf Lessor desires to finance, refinance, or sell the Premises, or any part thereof, Lessee and all Guarantors shall within 10 days
after vwitten notice from Lessor deliver to any potential lender or purchaser designated by Lessor such financial statements as may be reasonably
required by such lender or purchaser, including but not limited to Lessee's financial statements for the past 3 years. All such financial statements shall
be received by Lessor and such lender or purchaser in confidence and shall be used only for the purposes herein set forth.
17 . Definition of Lessor. The term "Lessor" as used herein shall mean the owner or ovvners at the time in question of the fee title to the
Premises, or, if this is a sublease, of the Lessee's interest in the prior lease. ln the event of a transfer of Lessor's title or interest in the Premises or this
Lease, Lessor shall deliver to the transferee or assignee (in cash or by credit) any unused Security Deposit held by Lessor. Upon such transfer or
assignment and delivery of the Security Deposit, as aforesaid, the prior Lessor shall be relieved of all liability with respect to the obligations and/or
covenants under this Lease thereafter to be performed by the Lessor. Subject to the foregoing, the obligations and/or covenants in this Lease to be
performed by the Lessor shall be binding only upon the Lessor as hereinabove defined.
'18. Severability. The invalidity of any prov¡s¡on of this Lease, as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, shall in no way affect the
validity of any other provision hereof.
19. Days, Unless otherwise spec¡fically indicated to the contrary, the word "days" as used in this Lease shall mean and refer to calendar days.
20. Limitation on Liability. The obligations of Lessor under th¡s Lease shall not const¡tute personal obligations of Lessor or its parlners,
members, directors, off¡cers or shareholders, and Lessee shall look to the Premises, and to no other assets of Lessor, for the satisfaction of any liability
of Lessor with respect to this Lease, and shall not seek recourse against Lessor's partners, members, directors, ofücers or shareholders, or any of their
personal assets for such satisfaction.
21. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to the performance of all obligations to be performed or observed by the Parlies under
this Lease.
22. No Prior or Other Agreements; Broker Disclaimer. This Lease contains all agreements between the Parties with respect to any matter
mentionedherein,andnootherpriororcontemporaneouSagreementorunderstand¡ngshallbeeffective.@
warrants te the Brekers that it has made; and ¡s relying selely upen; its elvn ¡nvestigatisn as te the naturer quality; €haracter and f¡naneiel respenÊibility
ef the ether Party te this tease and aÊ te the u6e; nature; qual¡ty end ehera€ter ef the Prem¡ees, Brekers+rave ne respsnsiþility with reepeêt therote er
with respeet te any default er breaeh hereef b.'either Party, -
23. Notices.

23j Notice Requirements. All notices required or permitted by this Lease or applicable law shall be in witing and may be delivered in
person (by hand or by courier) or may be sent by regular, certified or registered mail or U.S. Postal Serv¡ce Express Mail, with postage prepaid, or by
facsimile transmission, or by email, and shall be deemed sufücientfy given if served in a manner specified in this Paragraph 23. The addresses noted
adjacent to a Party's signature on this Lease shall be that Party's address for delivery or mailing of notices. Either Party may by wr¡tten notice to the
other specifo a different address for notice, except that upon Lessee's taking possession of the Premises, the Premises shall constitute Lessee's
address for notice. A copy of all notices to Lessor shall be concurrently transmitted to such party or parties at such addresses as Lessor may from time
to time hereafter designate in writing.

23.2 Date of Notice, Any notice sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, shall be deemed given on the date of
delivery shown on the receipt card, or if no delivery date is shown, the postmark thereon. lf sent by regular mail the notice shall be deemed given 72
hours after the same is addressed as required herein and mailed with postage prepaid. Notices delivered by United States Express Mail or overnight
courier that guarantees next day delivery shall be deemed given 24 hours after delivery of the same to the Postal Service or courier. Notices delivered
by hand, or transmitted by facsimile transmission or by email shall be deemed delivered upon actual receipt. lf notice is received on a Saturday,
Sunday or legal holiday, it shall be deemed received on the next business day.

PAGE 13 OF I8
'&::""* t'tþs

@'
INITIALS!NITIALS

@2001 . AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIA]ION FORM STG-21-fi/l4E

55



(a) No waiver by Lessor of the Default or Breach of any term, covenant or condition hereof by Lessee, shall be deemed a
waiver of any other term, covenant or condition hereof, or of any subsequent Default or Breach by Lessee of the same or of any other term, covenant or
condition hereof. Lessor's consent to, or approval of, any act shall not be deemed to render unnecessary the obtaining of Lessor's consent to, or
approval of, any subsequent or sim¡lar act by Lessee, or be construed as the basis of an estoppel to enforce the provision or provisions of this Lease
requiring such consent.

(b) The acceptance of Rent by Lessor shall not be a waiver of any Default or Breach by Lessee. Any payment by Lessee
may be accepted by Lessor on account of moneys or damages due Lessor, notwithstanding any qualifying statements or conditions made by Lessee in
connection therewith, which such statements and/or conditions shall be of no force or effect whatsoever unless specifically agreed to in writing by
Lessor at or before the time of deposit of such payment.

(c) THE PARTIES AGREE THAT THE TERMS OF THIS LEASE SHALL GOVERN WITH REGARD TO ALL MATTERS

RELATED THERETO AND HEREBY WAIVE THE PROVISIONS OF ANY PRESENT OR FUTURE STATUTE TO THE EXTENT THAT SUCH

STATUTE IS INCONSISTENT WITH THIS LEASE.

25. Diseleeuree Regarding The Nature ef a Real Estate Ageney Relatienship.
(a) When entering inte a d¡ÊGus6¡en with a reel eGtate agent regard¡ng a real estat€ transaetien; e te6Êer er te€êee Êheuld

frem the eutset understand våat-lype ef ageney relat¡ensh¡p er representetien it has with the agent er agents in the transaet¡sn, tes8er end tessee
eeknswleCge b€¡ng adv

(¡) I ^..^d. ^^^-r, ^ 
tesssr'Ê agent under a liÊting agreement with the teÊÊer aÊts aÊ the agent fer the t€Êser

enly, 
^ 

tesser's agent er subagent has the fellewing aff¡rmative ebligatiens: T^ th^ | ^'^^': A fidueiary duty ef utmest eare; integrity; henesty; and

ef the preperty that are net knewn tsr er with¡F the dil¡gent ettent¡en and eb6eryel¡sn efi the PertieÊ, An agent i6 net ebligeted te reveel te e¡ther Perty
any eenfidential infermatien ebtained frem the ether Party wtieh dees net invelve the affirmative duties set ferth abeve,

(ii) ' ^-.^^'. ^^^-t, Ân agent ean agree teaeÈas agent fer the teseee enly, ln these sitsatiens; the agent-¡s net
the tesser's agent, even if by agreement the agent may r€€€ive eempensatien fer servieee rendered¡ either in full epin pan frem the teeeer, An agent
aeting enly-fer a tessee has the fellewing affirmative ebligatiens, T^ *h^ 

' ^"^^: A fidu€iary du9 ef utmest eare; integrity; henesty; and leyalty in
dealings with the tessee, T^ rh^ | ^^.^^ ^^¡ +h^ 

' ^..^': a, Ðiligent exereise ef reasenable skille and eare in perfermanee ef the agent's duties, b, 
^

preperty that are net kner¡r¡ te-er within the diligent attentien and ebservatien ef, the Parties, An agent is net ebligated te reveal te either Party any

(iii) ^^À6r 
DÃhrâôÀht;6ã a^th I áêô^F ^hr I ÀèôÀô¡ 

^ 
reel eslate agent. eithel a€ting c¡rectly erthreugh ene er mere

es€eeiate lieenses; €an legal'y be-the agent ef beth the tesser and the tessee in a transaetien; þut enly with the knewledge and €€ngenLef bêth the

¡\¡e

Party, diselese te the ether Party that the tesser will aeeept rent in an ameunt leesthan that indieated in the listing er that the tessee is willingF{e p^y a
higher rent than that effered, The abeve dut¡es ef the agent in a real eÊtete kanse€t¡en de net relieve a tes6€r er teÊÊee frem the{e€penÊibil¡ty ts
preteet their ewn inûer€sts, tesser anC tessee sheuld earefully read all agreements te assure that they adequately express their understanding ef the
transaetien, A real estate agent is a persen gualified te adviee abeut real eetate, lf legal er tax adviee ie desired; seneult-a eempetent prefessienal,

(b) Brekerô have ne respensibil¡ty with respeGt te any default-or þrea€h hereef by e¡ther Party, The PartieÊ agree that ns

year after the Start Ðate anC that the liability (ineluding eeurt eests and atterneys' fees); ef any Breker with respeet te any sueh lawsuit and/er legal
preeeeding ehall net exeeed the fee reeeived by sueh Breker pursuant te this tease; previded; hewever; that the feregeing limitatien en each BFeker's

(e) tesser and teseee agree te identify te Brekers as "Cenf¡dential" any eemmunieatien er infermatien given Brekere that is

26. No Right To Holdove¡, Lessee has no right to retaìn possession of the Premises or any part thereof beyond the expiration or term¡nation of
this Lease. ln the event that Lessee holds over, then the Base Rent shall be increased to 150% ofthe Base Rent applicable immediately preceding the
expiration or termination. Holdover Base Rent shall be calculated on monthly basis. Nothing contained herein shall be conslrued as consent by Lessor
to any holding over by Lessee.
27. Cumulative Remedies. No remedy or election hereunder shall be deemed exclusive but shall, wîerever possible, be cumulative with all
other remedies at law or in equity.
28. Covenants and Condltlons; Construction of Agreement, All provisions of th¡s Lease to be observed or performed by Lessee are both
covenants and conditions. ln construing this Lease, all headings and titles are for the convenience of the Parties only and shall not be considered a
part of this Lease. Whenever required by the contef, the singular shall include the plural and vice versa. This Lease shall not be construed as if
prepared by one of the Parties, but rather according to its fair meaning as a whole, as if both Part¡es had prepared,it.

29. Binding Effect; Choice of Law. This Lease shall be binding upon the Parties, their personal representatives, successors and ass¡gns and
be governed by the laws of the State in which the Premises are located. Any litigation between the Parties hereto concerning this Lease shall be
initiated ¡n the county in which the Premises are located.
30. Subordination; Attornment; Non-Disturbance.

30.1 Subordination. This Lease and any Option granted hereby shall be subject and subordinate to any ground lease, mortgage, deed
of trust, or other hypothecation or security device (collectively, "Security Device"), now or hereafter placed upon the Premises, to any and all advances
made on the security thereof, and to all renewals, mod¡fìcations, and extensions thereof. Lessee agrees that the holders of any such Security Devices
(in this Lease together referred to as "Lender") shall have no liability or obligation to perform any of the obligations of Lessor under this Lease. Any
Lender may elect to have this Lease and/or any Option granted hereby superior to the lien of its Security Device by giving written notice thereof to
Lessee, whereupon this Lease and such Options shall be deemed prior to such Security Device, notwithstand¡ng the relative dates of the
documentation or recordation thereof.

30.2 Attornment. ln the event that Lessor transfers title to the Prem¡ses, or the Premises are acquired by another upon the foreclosure
or termination of a Security Device to which this Lease is subordinated (i) Lessee shall, subject to the non-disturbance provisions of Paragraph 30.3,
attorn to such new owner, and upon request, enter into a new lease, containing all of the terms and provisions of this Lease, with such new owner for

lt¡Y',Cr\ $$ù.r''' n PAGE 14 OF l8++ PAGEl4oFrs {+-
INITIALS

@2001 - AR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION

INIÏALS

FORM STG-21-lt/14E

56



the remainder of the term hereof, or, at the election of the new owner, this Lease will automatically become a new lease between Lessee and such new
owner, and (ii) Lessor shall thereafier be relieved of any further obligations hereunder and such new owìer shall assume all of Lessor's obl¡gations,
except that such new owner shall not: (a) be liable for any act or omission of any prior lessor or with respect to events occurring prior to acquisition of
ownership; (b) be subject to any ofisets or defenses wtr¡ch Lessee might have against any prior lessor, (c) be bound by prepayment of more than one
month's rent, or (d) be l¡able for the return of any security deposit paid to any prior lessor wftich was not paid or credited to such new owner.

30.3 Non-Disturbance. With respect to Security Dev¡ces entered into by Lessor after the execution of this Lease, Lessee's
subordination of this Lease shall be subject to receiving a commercially reasonable non-disturbance agreement (a "Non-Disturbance Agreement")
from the Lenderwhich Non-Disturbance Agreement provides that Lessee's possession ofthe Premises, and this Lease, including any options to efend
the term hereof, will not be disturbed so long as Lessee is not in Breach hereof and attorns to the record owner of the Premises. Further, within 60
days after the execution of this Lease, Lessor shall, if requested by Lessee, use its commercially reasonable efforts to obtain a Non-Disturbance
Agreement fÍom the holder of any pre-existing Security Device wlrich is secured by the Premises. ln the event that Lessor is unable to provide the
Non-Disturbance Agreement within said 60 days, then Lessee may, at Lessee's option, directly contact Lender and attempt to negotiate for the
execution and delivery of a Non-Disturbance Agreement.

30.4 Self.Executing. The agreements contained in this Paragraph 30 shall be effective without the execution of any further documents;
provided, however, that, upon written request from Lessor or a Lender in connection with a sale, financing or refinancing of the Premises, Lessee and
Lessor shall execute such further writings as may be reasonably required to separately document any subordination, attornment and/or
Non-D¡sturbance Agreement provided for herein.
3l . Attorneys' Fees. lf any Party e+€rekeç brings an action or proceeding involving the Premises whether founded in tort, contract or equity, or
to declare r¡ghts hereunder, the Prevailing Party (as hereafter defined) in any such proceeding, action, or appeal thereon, shall be entitled to reasonable
attorneys'fees. Such fees may be awarded in the same suit or recovered in a separate suit, whether or not such action or proceeding is pursued to
decision or judgment. The term, "Prevailing Party" shall include, without limitation, a Party er€+eker who substantially obtains or defeats the relief
sought, as the case may be, whether by compromise, settlement, judgment, or the abandonment by the other Party e+€+eke+of its claim or defense.
The attorneys'fees award shall not be computed in accordance with any court fee schedule, but shall be such as to fully reimburse all attorneys'fees
reasonably incurred. ln add¡tion, Lessor shall be entitled to attorneys' fees, costs and expenses incurred in the preparation and service of notices of
Default and consultations in connection therewith, wfiether or not a legal action is subsequently commenced in connection with such Default or resulting
Breach ($200 is a reasonable minimum per occurrence for such services and consultat¡on).
32. Lessor's Access; Showing Premises; Repairs. Lessor and Lessor's agents shall have the right to enter the Premises at any time, in the
case of an emergency, and otheruise at reasonable times after reasonable pr¡or notice for the purpose of showing the same to prospective purchasers,
lenders, or tenants, and making such alterat¡ons, repairs, improvements or additions to the Premises as Lessor may deem necessary or desirable and
the erecting, using and maintaining of utilities, serv¡ces, pipes and conduits through the Premises and/or other premises as long as there is no material
adverse effect to Lessee's use of the Premises. All such activities shall be without abatement of rent or liability to Lessee.
33. Auctions. Lessee shall not conduct, nor permit to be conducted, any auction upon the Premises without Lessor's prior written consent.
Lessor shall not be obligated to exercise any standard of reasonableness in determining wtether to permit an auction.
34. Signs. Lessor may place on the Premises ordinary "For Sale" signs at any time and ordinary "For Lease" signs during the last 6 months of
the term hereof. Except for ordinary "for sublease" signs, Lessee shall not place any sign upon the Premises without Lessor's pr¡or written consent. All

signs must comply with all Applicable Requirements.
35. Termination; Merger, Unless specifically stated otherwise in writing by Lessor, the voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by Lessee, the
mutual terminat¡on or cancellation hereof, or a termination hereof by Lessor for Breach by Lessee, shall automatically terminate any sublease or lesser
estate in the Premises; provided, however, that Lessor may elect to continue any one or all existing subtenancies. Lessor's failure within 10 days
following any such event to elect to the contrary by written notice to the holder of any such lesser ¡nterest, shall constitute Lessor's election to have
such event constitute the termination of such interest.
36. Consents, Except as otherwise provided herein, wherever in this Lease the consent of a Party is required to an act by or for the other Party,

such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Lessor's actual reasonable costs and expenses (including but not limited to architects',
attorneys', engineers' and other consultants' fees) incurred in the consideration of, or response to, a request by Lessee for any Lessor consent,
including but not limited to consents to an assignment, a subletting or the presence or use of a Hazardous Substance, shall be paid by Lessee upon
receipt of an invo¡ce and supporting documentation therefor. Lessor's consent to any act, assignment or subletting shall not const¡tute an
acknowledgment that no Default or Breach by Lessee of this Lease exists, nor shall such consent be deemed a waiver of any then existing Default or
Breach, except as may be otherwise specifically stated in w1ting by Lessor at the time of such consent. The failure to speciff herein any particular
condition to Lessor's consent shall not preclude the imposition by Lessor at the time of consent of such further or other conditions as are then
reasonable with reference to the particular matter for wtrich consent is being given. ln the event that either Party disagrees with any determination
made by the other hereunder and reasonably requests the reasons for such determination, the determining party shall furnish its reasons in writing and
in reasonable deta¡l within 10 business days following such request.
37. Guarantor.

37.1 Execution. The Guarantors, if any, shall each execute a guaranty in the form most recently published by the AIR Commercial Real
Estate Association.

37 .2 Default, lt shall constitute a Default of the Lessee if any Guarantor fails or refuses, upon request to provide: (a) evidence of the
execution of the guaranty, including the authority of the party signing on Guarantor's behalf to obligate Guarantor, and in the case of a corporate
Guarantor, a certified copy of a resolut¡on of its board of direetors authorizing the making of such guaranty, (b) current financial statements, (c) an
Estoppel Certificate, or (d) w'itten confirmation that the guaranty is still in effect.
38. Quiet Possession. Subject to payment by Lessee of the Rent and performance of all of the covenants, conditions and provisions on
Lessee's part to be observed and performed under this Lease, Lessee shall have quiet possession and quiet enjoyment ofthe Premises during the term
hereof.
39. Options. lf Lessee is granted any Option, as defined below then the following provisions shall apply:

39.1 Definition. "Opt¡on" shall mean: (a) the right to extend or reduce the term of or renew this Lease or to extend or reduce the term
of or renew any lease that Lessee has on other property of Lessor; (b) the right of first refusal or f¡rst offer to lease either the Premises or other property
of Lessor; (c) the right to purchase, the right offìrst offer to purchase or the right offirst refusal to purchase the Premises or other property of Lessor.

39.2 Opt¡ons Personal To Original Lessee. Any Option granted to Lessee in this Lease is personal to the original Lessee, and cannot
be assigned or exercised by anyone other than said original Lessee and only wtile the original Lessee is in full possession of the Premises and, if
requested by Lessor, with Lessee certifying that Lessee has no intention of thereafter assign¡ng or subletting.

39.3 Multiple Options. ln the event that Lessee has any multiple Options to extend or renew this Lease, a later Option cannot be

f{rF
INIÏM

PAGE I5 OF I8
tlbs ^
æ'
INIllALS

FORM STG-21-11/l4EO2OOI - AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION

57



exerc¡sed unless the pr¡or Options have been validly exercised.
39.4 Effect of Default on Options,

(a) Lessee shall have no right to exercise an Option: (i) during the period commencing with the giving of any notice of Default and
cont¡nuing until sa¡d Default is cured, (ii) during the period of time any Rent is unpaid (without regard to whether notice thereof is given Lessee), (¡i¡)
during the time Lessee is in Breach of this Lease, or (iv) in the event that Lessee has been given 3 or more notices of separate Default, whether or not
the Defaults are cured, during the 12 month period immediately preceding the exerc¡se of the Oplion.

(b) The period of time within which an Option may be exercised shall not be efended or enlarged by reason of Lessee's inability to
exercise an Option because of the provisions of Paragraph 39.4(a).

(c) An Option shall term¡nate and be of no further force or effect, notwithstanding Lessee's due and limely exercise of the Option, if,
after such exercise and prior to the commencement of the extended term or completion of the purchase, (i) Lessee fails to pay Rent for a period of 30
days after such Rent becomes due (without any necessity of Lessor to give notice thereof), or (ii) if Lessee commits a Breach of this Lease.
40. Multiple Buildings. lf the Premises are a part of a group of buildings controlled by Lessor, Lessee agrees that it will abide by and conform to
all reasonable rules and regulations which Lessor may make from time to time for the management, safety, and care of said propert¡es, including the
care and cleanliness of the grounds and includ¡ng the parking, loading and unloading of vehicles, and to cause ¡ts employees, suppliers, shippers,
customers, contractors and invitees to so abide and conform. Lessee also agrees to pay its fair share of common expenses incurred in connection with
such rules and regulations.
41 . Security Measures. Lessee hereby acknowledges that the Rent payable to Lessor hereunder does not ¡nclude the cost of guard service or
other security measures, and that Lessor shall have no obligation whatsoever to provide same. Lessee assumes all responsibility for the protection of
the Premises, Lessee, its agents and invitees and their property from the acts of third parties.
42. Resen ations. Lessor reserves to itself the r¡ght, from time to time, to grant, without the consent or joinder of Lessee, such easements,
r¡ghts and dedications that Lessor deems necessary, and to cause the recordation of parcel maps and restrictions, so long as such easements, rights,
dedications, maps and restrictions do not unreasonably interfere with the use of the Premises by Lessee. Lessee agrees to sign any documents
reasonably requested by Lessor to effectuate any suÇh easement rights, dedication, map or restrictions.
43. Performance Under Protest, lf at any time a dispute shall arise as to any amount or sum of money to be paid by one Party to the other
under the provisions hereof, the Party against wfìom the obligation to pay the money ¡s asserted shall have the right to make payment "under protest"
and such payment shall not be regarded as a voluntary payment and there shall survive the right on the part of said Party to institute suit for recovery of
such sum. lf it shall be adjudged that there was no legal obligation on the part of said Party to pay such sum or any part thereof, said Party shall be
entitled to recover such sum or so much thereof as it was not legally required to pay. A Party who does not initiate suit for the recovery of sums paid
"under protest" within 6 months shall be deemed to have waived its right to protest such payment.
44. Author¡ty; Multiple Parties; Execution.

(a) lf either Party hereto ¡s a corporation, trust, limited liability company, partnersh¡p, or similar entity, each individual
executing this Lease on behalf of such ent¡ty represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized to execute and deliver th¡s Lease on its behalf.
Each Party shall, within 30 days after request, deliver to the other Party satisfactory evidence of such authority.

(b) lf this Lease is executed by more than one person or entity as "Lessee", each such person or entity shall be jointly and
severally liable hereunder. lt is agreed that any one of the named Lessees shall be empowered to execute any amendment to this Lease, or other
document ancillary thereto and bind all of the named Lessees, and Lessor may rely on the same as if all of the named Lessees had executed such
document.

(c) This Lease may be executed by the Parties in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
45. Conflict. Any conflict between the printed provisions of this Lease and typewritten or handwritten provisions shall be controlled by the
typewritten or handwritten provisions.
46. Offer. Preparation of this Lease by either Party or their agent and submission of same to the other Party shall not be deemed an offer to
lease to the other Party. This Lease is not intended to be binding until executed and delivered by all Parties hereto.
47 . Amendments. This Lease may be modified only in writing, signed by the Parties in interest at the time of the modifìcation. As long as they
do not materially change Lessee's obligations hereunder, Lessee agrees to make such reasonable non-monetary modifications to this Lease as may be
reasonably required by a Lender in connection with the obtaining of normal financing or refinancing of the PÍemises.
48. WAiVE¡ of Jury TTiaI. THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RESPECTVE RIGHTS TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR
PROCEEDING INVOLVING THE PROPERTY OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT.
49. Arb¡tration of D¡sputes, An Addendum requiring the Arbitration of disputes between the Parties andleç€rekere arising out of this Lease El
is E is not attached to this Lease.
50. Accessib¡lity; Arnericans with Disabilit¡es Act.

(a) The Premises: E have not undergone an inspection by a Certified Access Specialist (CASp). E have,lnde¡C€n€ an
i

E

Cerr,iñeà Acceøø SVecialiøi (CA1?) aan inø?ecl þhe øubJect ?remiøeø anà àelermine whelher þhe øubJect ?reml6eô comVly wilh all of the applioable con;trucT,ion
relâteà acceøølblllty øtanàaràø unàer alale law. l\llhouøh ølale law àoeø not require a CAO? lnøVection of lhe øubJect ?remiøe6. lhe commeroial ?ro?erty owner or
leøøor may not prohibit. T,he leøøee or lenant from oÙlaininT a CA,p inøpection of lhe øubiect ?remiøeø lor Nhe ooouVanoy or ?olential occu?ancy of the leøøee or
tenant. if requeøleà W lhe leøøee or tenanr,. fhe ?ârlieø øhall mufually aqree ort lhe affangemanlø lor the lime anà manner of fhe CAq? inø?ecþlon. the payment of
Í'he fee br lhe CAS? inø?ecr,ion. anà the ôoør, of makinq any re?airø neceøøâry þo correcï violaþionø of aonøtrualion-relaleà acoeøaiblllty øtânàaràø within lhe

?remiøeø. (b) Since compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) is dependent upon Lessee's specifìc use of the
Premises, Lessor makes no warranty or representation as to whether or not the Premises comply with ADA or any similar legislation. ln the event that
Lessee's use of the Premises requires modifications or add¡tions to the Premises in order to be in ADA compliance, Lessee agrees to make any such
necessary modifications and/or additions at Lessee's expense.

LESSOR AND LESSEE HAVE CAREFULLY READ AND REVIEWED THIS LEASE AND EACH TERM AND PROVISION CONTAINED HEREIN, AND
BY THE EXECUTION OF THIS LEASE SHOW THEIR INFORMED AND VOLUNTARY CONSENT THERETO. THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE
THAT, AT THE TIME THIS LEASE IS EXECUTED, THE TERMS OF THIS LEASE ARE COMMERCIALLY REASONABLE AND EFFECTUATE THEtt'.lpt NN\^
l#r PAGE 16 oF r8 +{_

-

INITIALS INITIALS

@2001 - AR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOC|AÏON FORM STG-21-lt/l4E

58



INTENT AND PURPOSE OF LESSOR AND LESSEE WITH RESPECT TO THE PREMISES.
ATTENÏON: NO REPRESENTATION OR RECOMMENDATION IS MADE BY THE AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION OR BY ANY
BROKER AS TO THE LEGAL SUFFICIENCY, LEGAL EFFECT, OR TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THIS LEASE OR THE TRANSACTION TO WHICH
IT RELATES, THE PARÏES ARE URGED TO:

I, SEEK ADVICE OF COUNSEL AS TO THE LEGAL AND TAX CONSEOUENCES OF THIS LEASE.

2. RETAN APPROPRIATE CONSULTANTS TO REVIEW AND INVESTIGATE THE CONDITION OF THE PREMISES. SAID INVESTIGATION
SHOULD INCLUDE BUT NOT BE LIMITED TO: THE POSSIBLE PRESENCE OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES, THE ZONING OF THE PREMISES,
THE STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY, THE CONDITION OF THE ROOF AND OPERATNG SYSTEMS, AND THE SUITABILIW OF THE PREMISES FOR

LESSEE'S INTENDED USE.

WARNING: IF THE PREMISES IS LOCATED ¡N A STATE OTHER THAN CALIFORNIA CERTAN PROVISIONS OF THE LEASE MAY NEED TO
BE REV]SED TO COMPLY WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE IN WHICH THE PREMISES IS LOCATED.

The parties hereto have executed this Lease at the place and on the dates specified above their respective signatures
Executed at: Santa Clarita CA Executed at: Santa Clarita CA

On: On

By LESSOR: By LESSEE:

Castaic Lake Water Agency Action Family Counsefi ng - SCV, Ïnc.

By:

Name Printed: Matt Stone
By:

Title: General r
Name hen
Title:

By:

Name Printed: Kirsten Quashen
Title: CFO

Address

By: {tal^
Name Printed: Keith Abercrombie
Title: Retail Manager
Address

Telephone: ( ) Telephone:

Facsimile: (_)
Email:

Email:

Federal lD No. 95-4 6332 0B

BROKER:

Facsimile: ( )

Email:

Ema¡l:

Federal lD No.

BROKER:

Att:Att:

Title: Title:

Address: Address:

Telephone:(_) Telephone:(_)
Facsimile

Email:

Facsimile:

Email

Federal lD No. Federal lD No.

gro¡s¡/Agent BRE License #: Broker/Agent BRE License #:

It6rf,l\
æ

PAGE 17 OF I8 @
lNITIALS

@2OOI . AR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION

INIÏALS

FORM STG-21-11/r4E

59



NOTICE: These forms are often modified to meet changing requirements of law and industry needs, Always write or call to make sure you
are utilizing the most current form: AIR Commercial Real Estate Assoc¡at¡on, 500 N Brand Blvd, Suitê 900, Glendale, CA 91203,

Telephone No. (213) 687-8777. Fax No.: (213) 687-8616.

@ Copyr¡ght 2001 - By AIR Commercial Real Estate Associat¡on. All rights reserued.

No part of these works may be reproduced in any form without permission in writing.

PAGE 18 OF ,l8 &ft(]G
INITIALS

@2OOI . AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION

INITIALS.

FORM STG-2í-lr/'l4E

60



RENT ADJUSTMENT(S)
STANDARD LEASE ADDENDUM

Dated october 1, 2017

By and Between (Lessor) Castaic Lake Water Agency

(Lessee) Actíon Famify Counsefíng-SCv, Inc

AddreSS Of PremiS¿5,2 22722 Sofedad Canyon Road

Santa Cfarita cA 91350

Paragraph 51

A. RENTADJUSTMENTS:

The monthly rent for each month of the adjustment period(s) specified below shall be increased using the method(s) indicated below:

(Check Method(s) to be Used and Fill in Appropriately)

tr

the Base Rent shall be adjssted by the ehange' if any' frem the Base Menth epeeified bele\¡/r in the Censumer Priee lndex ef the Bureau ef taber

fe+{e+Un-t¡+Uan+rea)"

All ltems

(1 982-1 984 = 1 00), herein referred to as "CPl"

ferth in paragraph 1,6 ef the attaehed tease; shall þe multiplied þy a fraetien the numerater ef rvftieh shall þe the CPI ef the ealendar menth 2 menths
prier te the menth(s) specified in paragraph AJ,a, abeve during whieh the adjustment is te take effeet, and the deneminator ef whieh shall be the CPI ef
the ealendar menth whieh is 2 menths prier te (seleet ene): the El first menth ef the term ef this tease as set ferth in paragraph 1,3 ("Base Menth") er

e, ln th+event the eempilatien andler publieatien ef the CPI shall be lransferred te any ether gevernmental department er bureas er ageney
er ehall be diseentinued' then the index mest nearly the eame as the ePl shall be used te make sueh ealeulatien, ln the event that the Parties eannet
agree en sueh alternative index, then the matter shall be submitted fer deeisien te the American Arbitratien Aseec¡atien in aeeordanee with the then rules

¡e€=

l{$

+G-
INITIALS

@2OOO - AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION

PAGE,I OF 3

FORM RA.5.O4/I4E

tu
61



E ll. Market Rentel Valss Adjsstmen(€) (MRu

the Base Rent 6hell be edjHÊted te the "Mark€t Rental Velue" ef lhe preperty e6 fellewÊ;

I ) Feur menthÊ prier tê eaÊh Market Rentel Value 
^djuÊtment 

Date deser¡þed abever the Partiee 6hell attempt te agree spen what the

(a) tesser and tessee shall immediately appeint a mutually aeeeptable appraiser er breker te eetablish the new MRV within
the next 30 days, r\ny asseeiated eests will be split equally between the Parties' er

(b) Beth tesser and tessee shall eaeh immediately make a reasenable determinat¡en ef the MRV and submit sueh
ing+Fevi€i€fi€,

(i) Wthin 15 days thereafter, teeser and tessee shall eaeh seleet an El appraiser er El breker ("Ceneultanf'
eheek ene) ef their ehei€e te aet as an arbitrater, The twe arbitraters se appeinted shall immeCiately seleet a third mutually aeeeptable êensultant te aet
as-a+h¡C-arþit¡a+ec

(¡i) The 3 arbitreterÊ shall+/¡thin 30 day€ ef the appe¡ntment ef the third erbitrater reaêh a deG¡Êien eÊ te what the
aetual MRV fer the Premises is' and whether teseer's er tessee's submitted MRV is the elesest therete, The deeisi€n ef a m4erity ef the arbitraters shall

¡e€',

2) W4îen determining MRV, the tesser, teesee and êeneultants shall eensider thelerrns ef eemparable market transaetiens whieh shall
-

3) Netwithstanding the feregeing, the new Base Rent shall net- be less than the rent payaþle fer lhe menth immediately pree€ding the
r€êt€diustmeng

b, Upen the establishment ef eaeh New Market Rental Valse:
1) the-new MRV will beeeme the new "Base Rent' feF{he purpese ef €al€ulating any further 

^djustments; 
and -

2) the f¡rÊt menth ef eeÊh Market-Rental Value term shell beeeme the new 'BaÊe Menth' fer the purpese ef €alGulet¡ng any further
Adju€tments,

ø ll!. Fixed Rental Adjustment(s) (FRA)

The Base Rent shall be increased to the following amounts on the dates set forth below:

On (Fill in FRA Adjustment Date(s)): The New Base Rent shall be:

October 01 201_B q12 ô?6 nn

$12,400.00
October 01 2020 ç12 765.00
October $13 150.00

D@
The fermula used te ealeulate adjsstmente te the Base Rate during the eriginal Term ef the tease shall eentinse te be ssed during the extended term,

B. NOTICE:
Unless specified otherwise herein, notice of any such adjustments, other than Fixed Rental Adjustments, shall be made as specif¡ed in

paragraph 23 of the Lease.

C. BROKER'S FEE:
The Brokers shall be paid a Brokerage Fee for each adjustment specified above in accordance with paragraph 1 5 of the Lease or if applicable,

paragraph 9 of the Sublease.

NOTICE: These forms are often modified to meet changing requirements of law and industry needs. Always write or call to make sure you are
r - utilizing the most current form: AIR Gommercial Real Estate Association, 500 N Brand Blvd, Suite 900, Glendale, CA 91203,

& 
pAcE2oF3 

WINITIAES INITIALS

October 01 201_9

O2OOO. AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION FORM RA-5-04/,|4E

62



Wt-
INITIALS

Telephone No. (213) 687-8777. Fax No.: (213) 687-8616.

O2OOO - AR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOC]ATION

PAGE 3 OF 3

FORM RA-5.ø/14E

&s
n/nL{)\-

INITIALS

63



64



a
AIR

oPTroN(s) To EXTEND
STANDARD LEASE ADDENDUM

Dated October 1 20\'t

By and Between (Lessor) Castaic Lake Water Agency

By and Between (Lessee) Action Famifv Counseli ng

Address of Premisesi 22722 soledad canvon Road

Santa Cfarita cA 91350

SCV, fnc

Paragraph 52

A. OPTTON(S) TO EXTEND:
Lessor hereby grants to Lessee the option to extend the term of th¡s Lease for one additional twefve
month period(s) commencing when the prior term expires upon each and all of the following terms and conditions:

(D ln order to exercise an option to extend, Lessee must give written notice of such election to Lessor and Lessor must receive the same at
least 3 but not more than 4 months prior to the date that the option period would commence, time being of the essence. lf proper
notif¡cation ot the exercise of an option is not given and/or received, such option shall automalically expire. Options (¡f there are more than one) may
only be exercised consecutively.

(iD The provisions of paragraph 39, including those relating to Lessee's Default set forth in paragraph 39.4 of this Lease, are conditions of
this Option.

(iii) Except for the provisions of this Lease granting an option or options to extend the term, all of the terms and conditions of this Lease
except where specifically modifìed by this option shall apply.

(iv) This Option is personal to the original Lessee, and cannot be assigned or exercised by anyone other than sald original Lessee and only
while the original Lessee is in full possession of the Premises and without the intention of thereafrer assigning or subletting.

(v) The monthly rent for each month of the option period shall be calculated as follows, using the method(s) indicated below:
(Check Method(s) to be Used and Fill in Appropriately)

tr l. Ceet ef tiving 4djustment(s) (COtA)

rs) erEl-ePl U (r\ll Urþan censumers),
fer (Fill in Urban Ârea): -

h, fhe menthly BaÊe

snthg prier te

@2OOO - AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION

PAGE I OF 3

FORM OE4-04/I4E

65



in-ether "Base-Menth"): -

Basê Rent peyebl€ fer the menth immediately pre€eding the rent adjuÊtment'

e, ln the eventthe €emp¡lat¡en aFd/€r publicat¡en of the CPI shall be transfered te any sthergevernmental department er bsreeu er agen€y or
Ê.hall be diÊ€snt¡nsedr then the iFd€)cme6t nearly the 6ame e6 the e Pl Êhall be u8ed te mak€ €u6h calGulat¡ên, ln thê event that the PartiêG cannet agree
en sueh alternative index, then the matter shall be submitted fer deeisien te the Ameriean Arþitratien Asseeiatien in aeeerdan€e with the then rules ef
sa¡d 

^sseeiatien 
and the deeisien ef the arbitraters shall be þinding upen the perties- Tñe eest eÊsaid Ârbitratien ehall be paid equally by the Parties.

tr¡.

the Baee Rent shall þe adjueted te the "Market Rental Value" ef the preperty as fellews;
1) Feur m€nths prier te ee€h Market Rental Value Adjsstment Date de€€r¡bed eþever the Pertie6 6hall attempt te egree upon what the new

MRV will be en the adjuGtment det€, lf egreement €annet be ree€hedr within th¡rty dayÊr th€n;

(a) teeser and tessee ehall immediately appeint a mutually aeeeptaÞle appraieer er breker te establieh the new MP.V within the next 30

(b) Beth tesser and tessee shall eaeh immediately make a reaeenaþle determinatien ef the MRV and submit sueh determinatien; in

writing; te arbitratien in aeeerdanee with the fell€wing previsiens:

(i) VMthin 16 days thereefterr teÊser anC tesGee Êhell ea€h ÊeleÊt an E-appraiÊer er EHreker ("eenÊulten$' cheGk ene) ef their
6he¡€e te e€t as an arb¡treter, The+¡/e erbitreters Êe appeinted 6hall immed¡et€ly seleet a third mutuelly ee€eptabl€ C€nsultant ts e€t as a third arbitrater,

(i¡) The 3 arþitraters shall within 30 daye ef the appeintment€f the thirC arbitrater reaeh a de€iÊ¡en as te what theaetual MRV fer the
Premiees ¡e, anC whether teeser's er teseee'e euþmitted MRV is the elesest therete, Thedeeisien ef a majeri9 ef the arbitraþre shall þe binding en the

(¡¡i) lf either ef the Parties fails te appeint-an arbitrater within the speeified l5 daysr the arb¡trator t¡mely appsinted by one ef them
shall reaeh a deeieien en his er her ewn; and said deeisien shall be binding en the Parties,

(iv) The entire eest eÉsueh arbitratien shall be paid by the parry vyhese submitt€d MRV is net sele€ted; ie, the ene that-ie NeT the
€l€€€€t-t€4h€-a€tu€t+ÁRÀl'

2) When Ceterm¡ning MRV; the tesser; l€ÊÊee end eensultante 6hell €ensid€r the termÊ ef Gemparable market transaetienG whi€h Êhall
-

3) Netwithstend¡ng the feregeing, the new BaÊe Ren! Ehall net be less than the rent payable fer the msnth immediately preceding the
reF+€Ciustment

b, Upen th+establiehment ef eaeh New Market Rental Value;

nejustments.

ø ¡ll. F¡xed Rental Adjustment(s) (FRA)
The Base Rent shall be increased to the following amounts on the dates set forth below:

On (Fill in FRA Adjustment Date(s)): The New Base Rent shall be:

$13,545.00October 0l- 2022

tr lV. lnitia+{€rmddiusrmonts.
The fermule ueeC te eal€ulate adiustment€ te the Base Rate duiFrg the erig¡nal Term of the teeÊe Ehall oontinue te be uÊed during the extenCed term,

B. NOTICE:
Unless specified otherwise herein, notice of any rental adjustments, other than Fixed Rental Adjustments, shall be made as specified in

# ëþ

@2OOO - AR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIAÏON

PAGE 2 OF 3

FORM OE4-04/I4E

INITIALS

66



paragraph 23 of the Lease.

C. BROKERSFEE:
The Brokers shall be paid a Brokerage Fee for each adjuslment specified above in accordance with paragraph 1 5 of the Lease or if applicable,

paragraph 9 ofthe Sublease.

NOTICE: These foms are often modified to meet changing requirements of law and fndustry needs. Always write or call to make sure you are
utilizing the most current form: AIR Commercial Real Estate AssociatÍon, 500 N Brand Blvd, Suite 900, Glendale, CA 91203,

Telephone No. (213) 687-8777. Fax No.: (213) 687-8616.

W
Jrtu iltas€e-

INITIALSINITIALS

@2OOO - AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATON

PAGE 3 OF 3

FORM OE4.04/l4E

67



68



a
AIR

ADDENDUM
Date: lO / tt lz-tz
By and Between (Lessor) Castaic Lake Vrlater en

(Lessee) Action Family Counselj-ng - SCV, Tnc.

Address of Premisesi 22'722 sol-edad canyon Road

Santa Cl-arita LA

Paragraph 53

ln the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Addendum and the printed provisions of the Lease, this Addendum shall

control.

A. Any anà all conøente anà aøreemenle proviàeà for or permiÍleà by lhiø Agreemenr, øhall be in wrilinq,
fhiø Aqreemenl conlainø lhe øole âøreemônl, of the paftiee anà correclly eelø forbh lhe riqhlø, àutiee, anà

obliqalione of each to lhe olher aø of thiø àafe. Any prior arranqemenlø, promiøeø, neqoliaíionø, âqreemenlø,
or rô?reøenlaT,ionø noT, expreøely øeI forbh in íhîe Aqreemenl âre of no lorce anà effecl,

b. Whenever uøeà in thiø Aqreemenl,lhe einqular øhall incluàe lhe plural, anà the plural øhall incluàe lhe
øinqular anà r,he genàer ehall incluàe Nhe male anà female anà neuter aø well âø â lruøL, firm, comVany, or
corporation, all ae lhe conlexl anà meaninq of thie Agreemenl may require. The arbicle, eecbion, anà Varaqraph
lilleø anà heaàinqø containeà in lhie Agreemenl are inøerteà aø a mâller of convenience anà for eaee of
reference only anà øhall be àiøreqaràeà for all or,her Vurpoøeø, incluàinq lhe conølruciion or enforcemenl of lhiø
Aqreemenl or âny of itø provieionø,

C. Each Varby f,o lhie Agreemenl acknowledgeo lhat íl hae VarliciVateà in the àraflin4 of lhiø Aqreement,
anà any aVplicable rule of conef.ruclion No lhe effecl lhal ambiquilieø are lo be reeolveà againøl lhe àraft'inq

?arty ehall nor, be applieà în conneclion wilh lhe conelruclion or inlerprelalion of lhiø Agreemenl.

D. Leøøee acknowleàgee anà âøreeø lhal any conølruclion by if on or âl lhe Tremiøee iø àone for lhe
benetîl of the Leøøee alone. Leøeor reøerveø lhe riqhl to require Leøøee lo poøt, al Leøøee'ø øole exVenøe,

comVleT,ion anà paymenl bonàø prior to f,he Leeeee beginning any work (incluàing work covereà by øeclion 7 of
the Leaøe),

E. àeclion O.7 of lhe Leaøe iø reVlaceà enlirely by bhe foilowin1, ""Leøøof' tor lhe ?ur?oeeo of thiø Seclion
ehall mean anà incluàe Leøeor anà Leeøor'ø àireclorø, ofticere, øhareholàerø, agenl,e anà employeeø. To f,he

fulleøl exlenl VermilT,eà by law, Leøøee covenanlø with Leøeor lhal Leeeor ehall not be liable for any àamage or
liability of any kinà or lor any injury fo or àealh of pereono or àamage lo VroVerby of Leøøee or âny other

PAGE I OF 3

69



?erøon occurrinø àuring lhe Term of l,hiø Leaøe (incluàinq all renewal Verioàø) lrom any cauøe whaløoever

relateà to lhe uøe, occu?âncy or enjoymenl of lhe Tremiøeø by Leøøee or any ?erøon Thereon or holàinq unàer

Leøeee. Leøeee øhall pay for, àefenà (wilh an allorney approveà by Leeøor), inàemnify, anà øave Leøøor

harmleoø aqainøt anà lrom any real or alleqeà àamaqe or injury anà lrom all claimø, juàqmenlø,liabililieø, coølø

anà exVenoeø, incluàing af,f,orney'ø feee anà coølø, ariøinq oul of or connecleà wifh Leøøee'e uøe of lhe
?remiøeø anà ilø facilif,ieø, or any repairø, Alteralionø or improvementø (incluàinq oriqinal improvemenl,ø anà

lixlureø opecifieà aø Leøøee'ø Work) which Leøøee may make or cauøe lo be maàe upon lhe Tremiøeø, any

breach of uhiø Leaee by Leøøee anà any loøø or inlerruVlion of buøineøø or loeø of renr,al income reøullin7 from

any of ïhe fore¡oinq: proviàeà, however (anà lhouqh Leeoee øhall in all caøee accepl any tenàer of àefenøe of
any aclion or proceeàínq in which Leøøor iø nameà or maàe a Varly anà øhal| nolwil,hølanàing any alleqalionø

of ne4liqence or miøconàucl on lhe VarL of Leeøor, àefenà Leøøor aø proviàeà herein), Leøøee ehall nol be liable

lor øuch àamaqe or injury lo r,he extenl anà in I'he propor1ion lhal lhe øame íø ulbímaf,ely àelermineà to be

atlribulable øolely ío Í,he øroøø neqliqence or willful miøconàucl of Leoøor, anà Leøøor øhall pay for, àefenà,

inàemnify, anà øave Leøøee harmleøø a7ainøl anà from any anà all claime, juà4menle,liabililieø, coøt,ø anà

ex?enøeø, incluàin7 âllorneyø feeø anà coøtø, reøullinq from any øuch àamaqe or injury. Leøøor neeà nol have

firøt Vaià any euch claim in oràer r,o be àefenàeà or inàemnifieà or helà harmleøø. fhe obliqalionø lo inàemnify

eet lorlh in thiø gection øhall incluàe all atlorneyø' feee,liliqalion coølø, inveøligation coør'ø anà courb coølø

anà all other coøtø, ex?enøeø anà liabililieø incurreà by lhe inàemnifieà parly from lhe lirøl nolice Nhal any

claim or àemanà iø lo be maàe or may be maàe. All inàemnily obli¡alionø unàer lhiø àeclion øhall øurvive lhe
expiralion or lerminalion of r,hiø Leaøe, Leoøee'ø àufy tu inàemnify Leøøor øhall apply lo inøT,anceo of bofh

Leøøor'ø aclive anà Vaøoive negliqence, fhe parbieø exVreøøly inlenà lhal Leeoee'ø àuf,y Io inàemnify Leøøor

(1) require inàemnity for any loøø ariøinq oul of or connecXeà lo lhe aclionø of the Leøøee, nof,wil,hølanàinq lhe
Leøeor'ø aclive or Vaøøive negli4ence, (2) proviàe lor inàemnity regaràing all actø anà omieøionø,incluàin7 bul
not limiteà to lhe míeconàucf, or negliqence, of Ihe Leøøee, anà (3) T,he inàemnily Vrovieionø apply lo loøøeø

reoullinq from the Leeeee'ø neqliqence or âny oT,her cauøe olher than lhe wiilfú miøconàucl or øole øroøø

negliqence of Nhe Leeøor,

F. gection 12 of fhe Leaøe iø amenàeà lo incluàe lhe followinq,"1lanàarà for Conøenl. Leøøee aqreeø lhat
Leøøor may refuøe ilø conøenl lo lhe propoøeà lranøfer on any reaøonable qrounàø, anà (by way of example

anà wilhouT,limilation) Leøøee âøreeô lhal il øhall be reaøonable lor Leeøor lo wilhholà ilø conoenl, âmonø

any other reaøonø, iÎ any of the lollowing øif,uaT,ionø exiel or may exiøt: (a) the propoøeà lranøferee'ø financial

conàition, net wor1h or liquiàily iø leeø than lhe linancial conàilion, nel worlh or liquiàily of Leøøee aø of the

Effective Date or T,he àate of lhe requeøt lor f,ranøfier, whichever iø qrealer, or ie inaàequate to euVporl all of
the financial anà other obliqalionø ol Leøeee unàer lhiø Leaøe; (b) fhe buøineøø repulalion or characNer of lhe

Vropoøeà tranøleree iø nol reaøonably acceVlable lo Leeøor: or (c) f,he Vropoøeà Nranøleree iø nol likely to
conàuct on the ?remiøeø a buøineøø of a quality øubølantially equal to that conàucleà by Leøøee. Theøe

øihualionø âre nol' excluøive anà are øellorth aø exampleø only."

O. Section 12.2 of lhe Leaøe iø amenàeà lo incluàe lhe foilowinq,"Leøøee øhall pay lo Leøøor, aø Aààitional

Renl, concurrenlly wilh any requeøT,1or aøøignment or lranøfer, any legal feeø anà ôx?enøeø incurreà by Leøøor

in conneclion wif,h the propoøeà Aøeiqnmenl or tranøfier, lo lhe ev$enf' øuch amounlø exceeà lhe
non-refunàablefee øet,torth above,not,lo exceeàfhreeThouøanà anà OO|1OO Dollare (fi7,OOO.OO)."

H. ?araqraph 1t iø hereby amenàeà T,o proviàe, "lf any Vroviøion of lhiø Aqreement' iø àelermineà by any

&
INITIALS

PAGE 2 OF 3

INITIALS

70



aourL of aom?alenl juriøàiclion or arbilralor l,o be invalià, illegal, or unenlorceable io âny exlenl,lhal proviøion

øhall, iÎ poøøible, be conøtrueà aø lhough more narrowly àrawn, iÎ a narrower conølrucbion woulà avoià øuch

invaliàity, illeqalif,y, or unenforceabilif,y. lf a narrower conølruclion woulà nol avoíà øuch invaliàily, illeqalily, or
unenforceability,lhen lhe proviøíon helà fo be ínvalià,illegal, or unenforceable øhall be øevereà anàlhe remaininq

proviøionø of r,hiø Agreemenl ehall remain effecl."

l, Sectíon 35 of lhe Leaee iø amenàeà lo incluàe Nhe followinq, "fhe volunlary or olher øurrenàer oî Íhiø

Leaøe by fhe Leøøee, or a mulual cancellalion of lhe Leâøe, or a lerminar.ion by Leeøor, øhall nor, work aø a

merøer, anà øhall, allhe opf,ion of fhe Leeøor,terminale all or any exiølinq øublenancieø.

J. àection39 of theLeaøeie amenàeàloincluàelhefobwinø,"Any OplionølorLeøøee are conàilioneà

uVon the øaf,iøfacüon of al conàilionø in lhe Leaøe, aø well ae lhaí Leøøee ie open for buøineøø f,o lhe 7ublic
lrom lhe ?remieeø, iø nol in àefaulf unàer thiø Leaøe beyonà applicable nolice anà cure perioào anà iø currenl
on all leaøe ?âymenlø, Leeoee'ø lailure to exactrly comVly wft,h lhe l,ime requiremenlø oer'for\h ín lhe Leaøe

relaT,ive Lo lhe exerciøe of any OpNion lo Renew øhall cauøe lhe oplion proviàeà hereín to aulomaf,ically ceaøe

anà terminate anà, in øuch evenl,lhiø Leaøe øhall terminâle u?on lhe expiralion of lhe inilial Term. All

referenceø in lhie Leaøe Io lhe "f erm" øhall be àeemeà to mean lhe inílial Term aø exlenàeà by lhe OVlion

Term, aø aVplícable,"

K. Section 42 øhall be amenàeà ro incluàe Nhe followinø, "No eaøementø, ex?reøe or implieà, are hereby

granleà or conferreà uVon Leøøee in conøiàeralion of ilo uøe of the Tremiøeø, nor may any eâøemenl, exVreøø

or imVlieà, be qranleà or conferreà upon Leøøee wilhoul Leøøor'ø ex?reøø wrillen coneenl which may be

wilhhelà lor any reâøon,"

rk
#
tìltilALS

PAGE 3 OF 3

71



72



a
AIR

AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION
GUARANTY OF LEASE

WHEREAS,Castaic Lake l,Ìater Agency , hereinafter

"Lessor", and Act j-on Family Counselì-ng, SCV, lnc. , hereinafter

"Lessee", are about to execute a document entitled "Lease" dated October 1 201_1 concerning the premises commonly
knovm as 22722 Sol-edad Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA
wherein Lessor will lease the premises to Lessee, and

WHEREAS, Cary Quashen; Kirsten Quashen
hereinafter "Guarantors" have a financial interest in Lessee, and

WHEREAS, Lessor would not execute the Lease if Guarantors did not execute and deliver to Lessor this Guaranty of Lease.

NOW THEREFORE, in cons¡derat¡on of the execution of said Lease by Lessor and as a material inducement to Lessor to execute said
Lease, Guarantors hereby jointly, severally, unconditionally and irrevocably guarantee the prompt payment by Lessee of all rents and all other sums
payable by Lessee under said Lease and the faithful and prompt performance by Lessee of each and every one of the terms, conditions and covenants
ofsaid Lease to be kept and performed by Lessee.

It is specifically agreed by Lessor and Guarantors that: (i) the terms of the foregoing Lease may be modified by agreement betvræen Lessor
and Lessee, or by a course of conduct, and (ii) said Lease may be assigned by Lessor or any assignee of Lessor without consent or notice to
Guarantors and that this Guaranty shall guarantee the performance of said Lease as so modified.

This Guaranty shall not be released, modified or affected by the failure or delay on the part of Lessor to enforce any of the rights or remedies
of the Lessor under said Lease.

No notice of default by Lessee under the Lease need be given by Lessor to Guarantors, it being specifically agreed that the guarantee of the
undersigned is a continuing guarantee under \ivhich Lessor may proceed immediately against Lessee and/or against Guarantors following any breach or
default by Lessee or for the enforcement of any rights which Lessor may have as against Lessee under the terms of the Lease or at law or in equity.

Lessor shall have the right to proceed against Guarantors following any breach or default by Lessee under the Lease without f¡rst proceeding
against Lessee and without previous not¡ce to or demand upon either Lessee or Guarantors.

Guarantors hereby waive (a) notice of acceptance of this Guaranty. (b) demand of payment, presentation and protest, (c) all right to assert or
plead any statute of limitations relating to this Guaranty or the Lease, (d) any right to require the Lessor to proceed against the Lessee or any other
Guarantor or any other person or entity liable to Lessor, (e) any right to require Lessor to apply to any default any security deposit or other security it
may hold under the Lease, (f) any right to require Lessor to proceed under any other remedy Lessor may have before proceeding against Guarantors,
(g) any right ofsubrogation that Guarantors may have against Lessee.

Guarantors do hereby subordinate all existing or future indebtedness of Lessee to Guarantors to the obligations owed to Lessor under the
Lease and this Guaranty.

lf a Guarantor is married, such Guarantor expressly agrees that recourse may be had against his or her separate property for all of the
obligations hereunder.

The obligations of Lessee under the Lease to execute and deliver estoppel statements and financial statements, as there¡n provided, shall be
deemed to also require the Guarantors to do and provide the same to Lessor. The failure of the Guarantors to provide the same to Lessor shall
constitute a default under the Lease.

The term "Lessor" refers to and means the Lessor named in the Lease and also Lessor's successors and assigns. So long as Lessor's
interest in the Lease, the leased premises or lhe rents, issues and profìts therefrom, are subject to any mortgage or deed of trust or assignment for
security, no acquisition by Guarantors of the Lessor's interest shall affect the continuing obligation of Guarantors under this Guaranty wÌtich shall
nevertheless continue in full force and effect for the benefit of the mortgagee, benef¡ciary, trustee or assignee under such mortgage, deed of trust or
assignment and their successors and assigns.

The term "Lessee" refers to and means the Lessee named in the Lease and also Lessee's successors and assigns.

Any recovery by Lessor from any other guarantor or insurer shall first be credited to the portion of Lessee's indebtedness to Lessor which
exceeds the maximum liability of Guarantors under this Guaranty.

No provision of this Guaranty or right of the Lessor can be waived, nor can the Guarantors be released from their obligations except in writing
signed by the Lessor.

Any litigation concerning this Guaranty shall be initiated in a state court of competent jurisdiction in the county in which the leased premises

PAGE 1 OF 2
@1996. AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATON FORM GR-2-09/O6E

73



are located and the Guarantors consent to the jurisd¡ction of such court. This Guaranty shall be
premises are located and for the purposes of any rules regarding conflicts of law the parties shall
such State.

governed by the laws of the State in which the leased
be treated as if they were all residents or domiciles of

ln the event any action be brought by said Lessor against Guarantors hereunder to enforce the obligation of Guarantors hereunder, the
unsuccessful party in such action shall pay to the prevailing party therein a reasonable attorney's fee. The attorney's fee award shall not be computed in
accordance with any court fee schedule, but shall be such as to full reimburse all attorney's fees reasonably incuned.

lf any Guarantor is a corporation, partnership, or limited liability company, each individual executing th¡s Guaranty on said entity's behalf
represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized to execute this Guaranty on behalf of such entity.

If this Form has been filled in, ¡t has been prepared for submission to your attorney for his approval, No representation or
recommendation is made by the AIR Commercial Real Estate Association, the real estate broker or ¡ts agênts or employees as to
the legal sufficiency, legal effect, or tax consequences of this Form or the thereto.

Executed at:

On: kt ltl l rT n
Address:

wKlrsten Quashen
.GUARANTORS'

@I996, AIR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION
PAGE 2 OF 2

FORM GR.2.O9/O6E

74



75

edill
Attachment 3



76



 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Agency requires backhoes for routine maintenance, emergency repairs, pipeline 
repairs/replacements and special projects. The proposed purchases would replace two 
backhoes that have exceeded their expected lifecycle and are experiencing significant 
mechanical issues.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Backhoes are an integral tool for the Agency to complete routine maintenance, emergency 
repairs, pipeline repairs/replacements and special projects. Two (2) of the ten (10) Agency 
backhoes have exceeded their expected lifecycle, requiring constant repairs and causing 
significant downtime due to parts being difficult to locate, or are obsolete. Therefore, operating 
these backhoes is no longer cost effective. 

 

Asset Description Age Hour Meter   
(equivalent to odometer miles) 

1996 John Deere 310D 27 years 6509 
1999 New Holland 655E 24 years 6320 

 
The two backhoes scheduled for replacement are powered by diesel engines, which are Tier 0 
and Tier 1 engines that produce high emissions. Engine “tier” refers to the emissions 
certification level of an engine. According to California Air Resources Board (CARB), a single, 
older Tier 0 off‑road engine has up to 80 times higher emissions per hour compared to a new 
Tier 4 Final engine. The proposed backhoes have diesel Tier 4 Final engines that would 
produce less emissions and reduce the Agency’s Off-Road emission’s factor, complying with 
CARB regulations. Of the remaining eight (8) backhoes, two (2) are forecast to be replaced in 
2026, two (2) in 2029 and the remainder after 2033. 

Staff has researched and tested various equipment from multiple manufacturers to identify the 
best replacement option. After comparing the various available equipment, Staff determined that 
the Caterpillar product line would present the Agency with the most productivity support and 
savings over the life of the asset. Additionally, it has been the Agency’s experience that 
Caterpillar provides higher quality products and service when compared to other manufacturers. 
Caterpillar also provides operator training with the purchase, which is essential to ensure safe 
and proper operation of this heavy machinery.  

DATE: September 26, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Rochelle Patterson 
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 

SUBJECT: Approve Purchase of Two (2) Backhoe Replacements for Agency Fleet 

77

ajacobs
Item 5.5

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson



 

The manufacturer’s list price per backhoe is $225,770 (excluding fees and taxes). Staff received 
a budgetary quote (Attachment 1) from Quinn of $176,100 (excluding fees and taxes) per 
backhoe utilizing Sourcewell’s cooperative purchase agreement. Sourcewell is a government 
agency service created by legislation whose main objective is to create contracts through 
competitive bidding for government, state, and local procurement, in order to obtain the best 
pricing and allow agencies to piggyback on contracts that have been competitively bid. 
Sourcewell’s competitive bidding process meets the Agency’s procurement policy. By 
purchasing through the Sourcewell agreement, the Agency will save $49,670 per backhoe. 
 
On September 25, 2023, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve the purchase of two (2) backhoe replacements for the Agency fleet. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
This purchase helps support the following SCV Water’s Strategic Plan Strategies B.2. “Plan and 
budget for long-term replacements and improvements;” C.6 – “Actively manage natural resource 
use;” and F.5 – “Maintain a safe and secure work environment.” 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The replacement of these backhoes is included in the FY 2023/24 adopted Budget. The two 
backhoes are expected to cost approximately $420,000 including fees, taxes and a 5% 
contingency to account for any cost fluctuations, such as the cost of metal at the time of 
delivery. There is a five to six month lead time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve 
the purchase of two (2) backhoe replacements for the Agency fleet. 
 
RP 
 
Attachment 

78

ajacobs
Matt Stone



79



80



81



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

82



 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 
SUMMARY 
 
On August 16, 2022, construction of the Santa Clara and Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater 
Treatment Project (Project) began. The construction work generally consists of construction of 
a chemical building, installation of per-and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) treatment 
system, rehabilitation of the Santa Clara and Honby Wells, and installation of a well collector 
line and a drain line to the river. During construction, there were several owner-initiated scope 
changes and several unforeseen site condition change orders. 
 
Staff recommends that the Engineering and Operations Committee recommend approval of 
adopting a resolution authorizing the General Manager to execute additional change orders in 
an amount not to exceed $420,000 over the current five percent (5%) change order authority 
for the Santa Clara and Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Project. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Santa Clara Well is located at 27100 Furnival Avenue and the Honby Well is located at 
26930 Ruether Drive. The Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency owns and operates both wells 
which have a capacity of up to 1,500 and 950 gallons per minute, respectively. Currently, both 
wells are not in service as of February 2020 due to PFAS. Historically, the Santa Clara and 
Honby Wells averaged between 600 to 1,500 gallons per minute. After the PFAS treatment 
facility is installed, the anticipated required minimum flow to maintain the resin is 680 gallons per 
minute.  
 
The project includes construction of a new chemical building, installation of PFAS treatment 
system, rehabilitation of Santa Clara and Honby Wells and installation of a drain line to the river. 
These improvements will allow Santa Clara and Honby Wells to return to operation and meet 
the required PFAS level.  
 
On July 19, 2022, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) Board of Directors adopted 
Resolution NO. SCV-250, awarding a construction contract to Pacific Hydrotech Corporation for 
the Project in the amount of $8,486,950. Consistent with the Agency’s Purchasing Policy, the 
General Manager’s change order authority is equal to five percent (5%) of the original contract 
amount.  

DATE: October 9, 2023 
 

TO: Board of Directors 
 

FROM: Courtney Mael, P.E. 
Chief Engineer 
 

SUBJECT Approve Adopting a Resolution Authorizing Additional Change Order 
Authority to the General Manager for the Santa Clara and Honby Wells 
PFAS Groundwater Treatment Project 

83

ajacobs
Item 5.6

ajacobs
Courteny Mael



 

During construction, there have been two owner-initiated change orders which included pipe 
modifications to the ion-exchange system and drainage structure modifications, along with 
several change orders resulting from unforeseen site conditions.  
 
The unforeseen site condition change orders included an additional twenty-three (23) potholing 
investigations and the Honby Well Collector Line modifications. The Honby Well Collector and 
drain lines were realigned due to a conflict with a recently installed gas line that was not shown 
on the construction plans and the existing water lines were in a different location than shown on 
the record drawings. Additional potholing investigation was needed to identify and/or verify the 
location of the existing utilities. Staff and the construction manager verified the change orders 
for accuracy and negotiated with the contractor to ensure fair pricing was applied to each 
change order request. 
 
The total cost of these change orders is within the General Manager's change order authority of 
five percent (5%) for this contract. 
 
In addition to the change orders discussed above, another necessary change order for drain line 
modifications has been identified at a cost of $150,000. The drain line modifications include 
additional pipeline fittings needed for the new pipe alignment. Also, three (3) new pump-out 
facilities and an outlet valve are added to avoid standing water for the drain line. In order to 
facilitate timely completion of the Project, staff is also requesting that the Board of Directors 
provide the General Manager an additional contingency for up to $270,000 in further change 
orders. 
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) CONSIDERATIONS 
 
As the previously approved Project is not changing, and only additional funding is being 
requested at this time for Pacific Hydrotech Corporation for construction, the approval of 
additional funding is not a project subject to CEQA under State CEQA Guidelines section 15378 
and in the alternative, is exempt from CEQA under the commonsense exemption pursuant to 
State CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3). 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
The Project will help meet the Agency Objective and Strategic Plan D.2: “Proactively install, 
operate, and maintain groundwater treatment infrastructure to avoid impacts on water supply 
reliability (e.g. VOCs perchlorate, PFAS, etc.)”. 
 
On October 5, 2023 the Engineering and Operations Committee met to consider staff’s 
recommendation to approve adopting a resolution authorizing additional change order authority 
to the General Manager for the Santa Clara and Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment 
Project. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Funding for the Santa Clara and Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Project is included 
in the Agency’s FY2023/24 Capital Improvement (CIP) Budget. The CIP Budget currently 
includes $4,664,000 for the completion of the Santa Clara and Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater 
Treatment Project. 
 

84



 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve 
adopting a resolution authorizing the General Manager to execute an additional change order in 
an amount not to exceed $150,000 and provide the General Manager authority to execute 
additional change orders for up to $270,000 without returning to the Board, if necessary, for a 
total authority of $420,000 over the current 5% change order authority for the Santa Clara and 
Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Project. 
 
Attachment 

85



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

86



RESOLUTION NO. SCV-XXX 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL CHANGE ORDER AUTHORITY TO  
THE GENERAL MANAGER FOR THE SANTA CLARA AND HONBY WELLS PFAS 

GROUNDWATER TREATMENT PROJECT  
 
WHEREAS, on July 19, 2022, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) Board of Directors 
approved a resolution for a construction contract with Pacific Hydrotech Corporation for the 
Santa Clara and Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Project (Project), as it continues to 
work towards meeting the Agency’s Strategic Plan D.2: “Proactively install, operate, and 
maintain groundwater treatment infrastructure to avoid impacts on water supply reliability (e.g. 
VOCs perchlorate, PFAS, etc.)”; and  
 
WHEREAS, as the previously approved Project is not changing, and only additional funding is 
being requested at this time for Pacific Hydrotech Corporation for construction, the approval of 
additional funding is not a project subject to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under 
State CEQA Guidelines section 15301 Class 1 and 15303 Class 3 and in the alternatively, is 
exempt from CEQA under the common sense exemption pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines 
section 15061(b)(3); and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Agency’s Purchasing Policy, the General Manager’s change 
order authority is equal to five percent (5%) of the original contract amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the Agency best interest that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Board of 
Directors authorizes the General Manager to execute additional change orders in an amount not 
to exceed $420,000 over the current five percent (5%) change order authority for the Santa 
Clara and Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Project. 
 
NOW, THREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Board of 
Directors authorize the General Manager to execute an additional change order in an amount 
not to exceed $150,000 and provide the General Manager authority to execute additional 
change orders for up to $270,000 without returning to the Board, if necessary, for a total 
authority of $420,000 over the current 5% change order authority for the Santa Clara and Honby 
Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Project. 
 
 
 
 
 

87



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

88



Sa
nt

a 
Cl

ar
a 

an
d 

H
on

by
 W

el
l P

FA
S 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t

O
ct

ob
er

 1
7,

 2
02

3

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
ti

ng

89



Sa
nt

a 
Cl

ar
a 

an
d 

H
on

by
 W

el
l P

FA
S 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t

2

90



Sa
nt

a 
Cl

ar
a 

an
d 

H
on

by
 W

el
l P

FA
S 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

La
yo

ut

3

91



Sa
nt

a 
Cl

ar
a 

an
d 

H
on

by
 W

el
l P

FA
S 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ch
an

ge
 O

rd
er

s

4

Pa
ci

fic
 H

yd
ro

te
ch

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n

O
rig

in
al

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
 A

m
ou

nt
$ 

   
   

   
   

  8
,4

86
,9

50
.0

0

C
ha

ng
e 

or
de

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
 A

m
ou

nt
Pe

rc
en

t o
f C

on
tra

ct

Io
n-

ex
ch

an
ge

 a
nd

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
62

,2
02

.8
5

0.
73

%

Po
th

ol
in

g 
an

d 
H

on
by

 C
ol

le
ct

or
 L

in
e 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

$
 3

51
,3

89
.2

0
4.

14
%

Am
ou

nt
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

un
de

r G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 A
ut

ho
rit

y
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
13

,5
92

.0
5

4.
87

%
 

D
ra

in
 li

ne
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
50

,0
00

.0
0 

1.
77

%

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
(F

ut
ur

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
70

,0
00

.0
0 

3.
18

%

Ad
di

tio
na

l C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
 A

m
ou

nt
*

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
20

,0
00

.0
0

4.
95

%

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
 A

m
ou

nt
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
83

3,
59

2.
05

9.
82

%

R
ev

is
ed

 B
ud

ge
t A

m
ou

nt
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
32

0,
54

2.
05

* R
eq

ui
re

s 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
 a

pp
ro

va
l f

or
 a

n 
am

ou
nt

 e
xc

ee
di

ng
 5

%
 o

f o
rig

in
al

 c
on

tra
ct

92



Sa
nt

a 
Cl

ar
a 

an
d 

H
on

by
 W

el
l P

FA
S 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Sc
he

du
le

5

N
ot

ic
e 

To
 P

ro
ce

ed
:

 
 

 
 

Au
gu

st
 1

6,
 2

02
2

O
ri

gi
na

l C
on

tr
ac

t 
ti

m
e 

(C
al

en
da

r 
Da

ys
):

 
 

36
5 

Da
ys

O
ri

gi
na

l C
om

pl
et

io
n 

Da
te

: 
 

 
 

Au
gu

st
 1

5,
 2

02
3

A
dd

it
io

na
l D

ay
s 

Re
qu

es
te

d 
(C

al
en

da
r 

D
ay

s)
: 

22
7 

D
ay

s

Re
vi

se
d 

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e:
 

 
 

M
ar

ch
 2

8,
 2

02
4

*S
CV

 W
at

er
’s

 O
bj

ec
ti

ve
 a

nd
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
O

bj
ec

ti
ve

 D
.2

: 
“P

ro
ac

ti
ve

ly
 in

st
al

l,
 

op
er

at
e,

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 t
o 

av
oi

d 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
e 

re
lia

bi
lit

y 
(e

.g
. 

VO
Cs

 p
er

ch
lo

ra
te

, 
PF

AS
, 

et
c)

”.

93



Th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

re
co

m
m

en
ds

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ir
ec

to
rs

:

  
Ap

pr
ov

e 
ad

op
ti

ng
 a

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

au
th

or
iz

in
g 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 t
o 

ex
ec

ut
e 

an
 a

dd
it

io
na

l c
ha

ng
e 

or
de

r 
in

 a
n 

am
ou

nt
 n

ot
 t

o 
ex

ce
ed

 
$1

50
,0

00
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 t

he
 G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 a

ut
ho

ri
ty

 t
o 

ex
ec

ut
e 

ad
di

ti
on

al
 c

ha
ng

e 
or

de
rs

 f
or

 u
p 

to
 $

27
0,

00
0 

w
it

ho
ut

 r
et

ur
ni

ng
 t

o 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d,

 if
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, 
fo

r 
a 

to
ta

l a
ut

ho
ri

ty
 o

f 
$4

20
,0

00
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

5%
 c

ha
ng

e 
or

de
r 

au
th

or
it

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
Sa

nt
a 

Cl
ar

a 
an

d 
H

on
by

 W
el

ls
 P

FA
S 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t.

6

Sa
nt

a 
Cl

ar
a 

an
d 

H
on

by
 W

el
l P

FA
S 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

94



 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
SUMMARY 
 
In 2022, SCV Water received a Federal Bureau of Reclamation Water Smart Water-Energy 
Grant (WEEG) for an Automated Metering Infrastructure (AMI) project. This project consists of 
installing approximately 20,000 AMI meters during the grant funding period of July 1, 2022, 
through June 30, 2025. This request is for the installation of 4,273 meters in the Castaic area 
and is the third phase of the overall AMI project. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In 2021, staff applied for a Federal Bureau of Reclamation Water Smart Water-Energy Grant 
(WEEG) for an Automated Metering infrastructure project, and the Agency was awarded a 
$2,000,000 grant in May 2022. The grant funding period is from July 1, 2022, through June 30, 
2025, and more than 7,000 of the approximately 20,000 meters to be installed as part of the 
grant have already been installed. The 20,000 meters and associated infrastructure (base 
stations, antennas, etc.) will be installed by both staff and contract labor. The first 6,155 meters 
were replaced with contract labor. 
 
Each legacy retail water provider made a commitment to migrate their metering systems to AMI. 
The formation of SCV Water and the current WEEG funding has helped speed up this process. 
Phase One: the installation of the initial 5,000 meters was publicly bid through Planet Bids, and 
a contract was awarded to the lowest responsible bidder, Golden Meter Service. Phase Two: 
the installation of 1,155 meters was publicly bid through Planet Bids. This contract had only one 
responsible bidder and was awarded to Golden Meter Service. 
 
Staff prepared and issued a Request for Proposal for this third phase to install 4,273 meters and 
was publicly bid on Planet Bids on August 18, 2023, in accordance with the Purchasing Policy. 
SCV Water’s staff estimate for replacing 4,273 meters was $450,000. This estimate is based on 
standard prevailing wage rates, expected time for a meter replacement and 25% overhead. 
 
On September 12, 2023, staff received bids from three contractors: Golden Meter Service, 
Hemet Mfg Co., dba Genesis Construction and Lyles Utility Construction LLC. 
 
 
 
 
 

DATE: October 9, 2023 
 

TO: Board of Directors 
 

FROM: Keith Abercrombie 
Chief Operating Officer 
 

SUBJECT: Approve the Replacement of 4,273 Meters as Part of the AMI Meter 
Replacement Program 

95

ajacobs
Item 5.7

ajacobs
Keith Abercrombie



 

CONTACTOR BID AMOUNT 
Hemet Mfg. Co., dba Genesis Construction 
Lyles Utility Construction LLC 
Golden Meters Service Inc. 

$424,955.00 
$457,374.50 
$460,715.00 

 
Staff reviewed the bids and recommended awarding the contract to Hemet Mfg Co, dba 
Genesis Construction, as the lowest responsible bidder. 
 
On October 5, 2023, the Engineering and Operations Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve the replacement of 4,273 meters as part of the AMI Meter 
Replacement Program. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
This project supports SCV Water’s Strategic Plan B.2 – Plan and Budget for Long-Term 
Replacements and Improvements, B.2.1.7 – Conduct Meter Replacement Program. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Funds for this project are included in the approved FY 2023/24 Capital Improvement Meter 
Replacement Budget. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors authorize 
the General Manager to enter into a contract with Hemet Mfg. Co., dba Genesis Construction, in 
the amount of $424,955.00, to replace 4,273 meters as part of the AMI Meter Replacement 
Program. 
 
 

96

ajacobs
Matt Stone



A
ut

om
at

ed
 M

et
er

in
g 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
W

EE
G

 G
ra

nt
 (

20
22

-2
02

5)

Re
gu

la
r 

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
ti

ng

O
ct

ob
er

 1
7,

20
23

97



W
ha

t 
is

 A
M

I?

•A
ut

om
at

ed
 M

et
er

in
g 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re

•A
M

I a
llo

w
s 

m
et

er
s 

to
 b

e 
re

ad
 w

it
ho

ut
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

fi
el

d 
la

bo
r 

(w
al

ki
ng

/d
ri

vi
ng

)

•A
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 t
ow

er
s,

 b
as

e 
st

at
io

ns
, 

an
d 

re
pe

at
er

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

co
ns

ta
nt

 
st

re
am

 o
f 

da
ta

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n

2

98



W
ha

t 
ty

pe
s 

of
 m

et
er

s 
do

es
 S

CV
 W

at
er

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

ha
ve

?
M

et
er

 R
ea

d 
Ty

pe
N

um
be

r 
of

 M
et

er
s

M
an

ua
l

0

AM
I

~3
8,

00
0

AM
R

~3
6,

00
0

A
M

R 
– A

ut
om

at
ed

 M
et

er
 R

ea
di

ng
 –

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 t

hr
ou

gh
 a

 d
ri

ve
-b

y 
sy

st
em

.

3

99



M
et

er
 R

ea
di

ng
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t

4

100



W
EE

G
?

•F
ed

er
al

 B
ur

ea
u 

of
 R

ec
la

m
at

io
n 

W
at

er
 S

m
ar

t 
W

at
er

-E
ne

rg
y 

G
ra

nt
 (

W
EE

G
)

•I
ns

ta
lla

ti
on

 a
nd

 c
on

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 m

or
e 

th
an

 2
5,

00
0 

AM
I c

om
pa

ti
bl

e 
m

et
er

s

•G
ra

nt
 p

er
io

d 
Ju

ly
 2

02
2 

– 
Ju

ne
 2

02
5

5

101



A
M

I G
ra

nt
 P

ha
se

s

•P
ha

se
 1

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

02
3

•N
or

th
br

id
ge

, 
N

or
th

 P
ar

k,
 a

nd
 v

ar
io

us
 o

th
er

 a
re

as
•C

on
ve

rt
ed

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 ~

5,
00

0 
w

al
ki

ng
 m

et
er

 r
ou

te
s

•P
ha

se
 2

 T
es

or
o 

de
l V

al
le

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 J

ul
y 

20
23

•A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

1,
15

5 
m

et
er

s 
co

nv
er

te
d

•P
ha

se
 3

 C
as

ta
ic

 a
nd

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 a
re

as
•A

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
43

00
 M

et
er

s 
to

 b
e 

co
nv

er
te

d

6

102



M
et

er
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

Bi
ds

•A
n 

RF
P 

w
as

 p
ub

lic
ly

 b
id

 t
hr

ou
gh

 P
la

ne
t 

Bi
ds

 o
n 

Au
gu

st
 1

8,
 2

02
3.

•T
hr

ee
 b

id
s 

w
er

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 o

n 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

12
, 

20
23

.

 
O

pe
ra

ti
on

’s
 e

st
im

at
e 

w
as

 $
45

0,
00

0

•S
ta

ff
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 t
he

 b
id

s 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

ds
 a

w
ar

di
ng

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
to

 
H

em
et

 M
fg

. 
Co

. 
db

a 
G

en
es

is
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

as
 t

he
 lo

w
es

t 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
bi

dd
er

.

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
Bi

d 
Am

ou
nt

H
em

et
 M

fg
. 

Co
. 

db
a 

G
en

es
is

 
Co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
Ly

le
s 

U
ti

lit
y 

Co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 L
LC

G
ol

de
n 

M
et

er
s 

Se
rv

ic
e 

In
c

$4
24

,9
55

.0
0

$4
57

,3
74

.5
0

$4
60

,7
15

.0
0

7

103



St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 N

ex
us

•T
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t 
su

pp
or

ts
 S

CV
 W

at
er

’s
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
B.

2 
– 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 B
ud

ge
t 

fo
r 

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, 
an

d 
B.

2.
1.

7 
– 

Co
nd

uc
t 

M
et

er
 

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

Pr
og

ra
m

8

104



Fi
na

nc
ia

l C
on

si
de

ra
ti

on
s

•F
un

ds
 f

or
 t

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 t

he
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

 F
Y2

3/
24

 
Ca

pi
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
M

et
er

 &
 M

et
er

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

Bu
dg

et

9

105



Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

•T
he

 E
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

 a
nd

 O
pe

ra
ti

on
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

re
co

m
m

en
ds

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ir
ec

to
rs

 a
ut

ho
ri

ze
 t

he
 G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 t

o 
en

te
r 

in
to

 a
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

w
it

h 
H

em
et

 M
fg

. 
Co

.,
 d

ba
 G

en
es

is
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 n

ot
 t

o 
ex

ce
ed

 
$4

24
,9

55
, 

to
 r

ep
la

ce
 4

27
3 

m
et

er
s 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 A

M
I M

et
er

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
Pr

og
ra

m
.

10

106



 

 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
SUMMARY 
 
Saugus Well 2 is located at 25849 ½ Railroad Ave, next to the Saugus Café. It was drilled in 
1988 into the Saugus Aquifer Formation and remained in production until 1997 when it was 
removed from production due to perchlorate contamination. Saugus Well 2 was brough back 
online in 2011 after construction of the Saugus Perchlorate Treatment Facility, which treats 
water from both Saugus Well 2 and Saugus Well 1. In 2012, Saugus Well 2 was rehabilitated 
with mechanical and chemical development and outfitted with a liner casing due to holes that 
had formed in the original well casing. The well has remained in almost constant operation since 
the rehabilitation. However, over the past several years pumping capacity has decreased 
significantly going from 1,100 gallons per minute (gpm) in 2012 to the current flow rate of 700 
gpm. A 2022 downhole video of the well revealed significant plugging of well screen intervals. A 
complete downhole rehabilitation with mechanical and chemical development is being 
recommended to bring the well back to its full design capacity. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The continued operation of Saugus Well 2 has been identified as a crucial containment measure 
to protect the drinking water aquifer. Restoring the well output is critical to the efficient operation 
of the containment measures in limiting the migration of the perchlorate plume within the 
Saugus Aquifer Formation. In addition, the growth on the intake sections of the well screen has 
led to failed raw water quality bacteriological samples, which requires the well to be taken 
offline, to be flushed to waste and to be retested before returning to service. The rehabilitation of 
the well will address both the capacity and bacteriological issues within Saugus Well 2. 
 
SCVWA solicited Richard C Slade and Associates (RCS), Consulting Groundwater Geologists, 
to develop the Technical Specifications for Well Rehabilitation and to aid in bid phase support. 
This technical document was used in the process.   
 
The rehabilitation is a multistep process. After removing the motor, column, shaft, and pump 
from the well, it will undergo an initial brushing and bailing. During this process, chemical will be 
used to help remove biofilm from the well. After the brushing and bailing, air jetting will be used 
to open the well perforations further. This will be followed by an initial video inspection. Once, 
video confirms physical means of opening the perforations were effective, then the chemical 
treatment of the well will begin. Chemical treatment allows for cleaning up any material which 
physical means cannot reach. There will be two rounds of chemical treatment over the period of 

DATE: October 9, 2023 
 

TO: Board of Directors 
 

FROM: Keith Abercrombie 
Chief Operating Officer 
 

SUBJECT: Approve a Contract to Rehabilitate Saugus Well 2 and Find that the Proposed 
Action is Exempt from CEQA 

107

ajacobs
Item 5.8

ajacobs
Keith Abercrombie



 

 

24 to 36 hours. During the next step, mechanical redevelopment will happen in the form of 
simultaneous airlifting and swabbing of the well. Then a second video of the work will take place 
to monitor progress. This will be followed by drawdown pump testing to confirm the new specific 
capacity of the rehabilitated well. At the final step of flow testing, a dynamic flowmeter survey 
will be conducted. Depth-discrete groundwater water quality samples will be collected at this 
phase too. After that is conducted, there will be a final video well survey and a static non-
pumping spinner survey. Then the well will have the final disinfection before setting the pump, 
motor, and returning the well site to the previous condition. 
 
The project will not result in great impact to existing public or private structures, facilities, 
mechanical equipment, or topographical features. This project complies with both the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) under the 
following exemption and exclusion provisions. CEQA Categorical Exemption, 14 CCR Section 
15301. Existing Facilities and NEPA Categorical Exclusion, Subpart D of 10 CFR Part 1021. 
B1.3 Routine Maintenance. 
 
Using the technical documents provided by RCS, staff prepared a Request for Proposal (RFP) 
for the rehabilitation of Saugus Well 2. The RFP was posted to PlanetBids on August 7, 2023. A 
mandatory pre-bid meeting was hosted at the well site on August 23, 2023 and the bids were 
due on September 7, 2023. Out of the three companies who attended the mandatory pre-bid 
meeting, only one submitted a bid. Staff received an estimate from Weber Water Resources in 
compliance with the Purchasing Policy and recommends awarding the contract to Weber Water 
Resources CA, LLC. in the amount of $1,400,000.00.  
 
Along with the rehabilitation there are related tasks which are associated with the work to be 
performed. There may be additional standby time by Weber Water Resources. This is because 
water quality must be monitored and verified as meeting National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit requirements, before discharging the water. Also, there 
may be costs associated with replacing worn column pipe, shaft, or other well materials once 
the pump is disassembled and inspected. Lastly, RCS will be assisting with ensuring the 
rehabilitation process is conducted according to plan and will provide a written summary of 
operations after completion. Below is a table outlining the costs of these tasks. 
 

Saugus 2 Rehab and Related Tasks Cost 
Weber Water Resources Rehabilitation  $ 1,400,000.00  
Additional Standby Time (Weber)  $    200,000.00  
Water Quality Analysis (NPDES, well samples)  $        5,000.00  
Well column pipe, shaft, etc.   $    240,000.00  
RCS Field Monitoring and Rehab Summary  $      60,000.00  
Total Cost  $ 1,905,000.00  

 
On October 5, 2023, the Engineering and Operations Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve a resolution authorizing the General Manager to enter into a 
contract to rehabilitate Saugus Well 2 and find that the proposed action is exempt from CEQA. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
This project supports SCV Water’s Strategic Plan B.5.1 – Maintain all facilities and 
appurtenances in a consistent fashion to achieve operational efficiency. 
 

108



 

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Funds for this pilot plant study are included in the General Well Improvements CIP Budget for 
the current FY 2023/24. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors authorize 
the General Manager to enter into a contract with Weber Water Resources CA, LLC., in the 
amount of $1,400,000.00 for the Saugus Well 2 Rehabilitation and authorize the other 
expenditures for the project detailed above, for a grand total of $1,905,000 and find that the 
proposed action is exempt from CEQA. 
 
Attachment 

109

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

110



 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV___ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

AWARDING A CONTRACT TO WEBER WATER RESOURCES CA, LLC.,  
FOR THE SAUGUS WELL 2 REHABILITATION PROJECT AND FIND THAT THE 

PROPOSED ACTION IS EXEMPT FROM CEQA 
 
WHEREAS, all bid proposals submitted to the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) 
pursuant to the Agency’s specifications for the Saugus Well 2 Rehabilitation, were received 
at the Agency’s offices, in full accordance with the law and the Agency’s customary 
procedures; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Project qualified for an exemption under CEQA guidelines 14 CCR 
Section 15301 Existing Facilities and for an exclusion under NEPA guidelines Subpart D 
of 10 CFR Part 1021 B1.3 Routine Maintenance, because it is a minor alteration of an 
existing public facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, this project supports SCV Water’s Strategic Plan B.5.1 – Maintain all 
facilities and appurtenances in a consistent fashion to achieve operational efficiency; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds, after considering the opinion of staff, and 
recommends awarding the contract to Weber Water Resources CA, LLC., in compliance 
with the Purchasing Policy and that said bid substantially meets the requirements of said 
contract documents; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the Agency’s best interest that the Board of Directors, on behalf of 
the Agency, authorize its General Manager to accept the $1,400,000.00 bid. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s 
Board of Directors finds the Project exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA guidelines 
Section 15301, and from NEPA pursuant to NEPA guidelines Subpart D of 10 CFR Part 
1021. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s Board of Directors does authorize its General 
Manager to accept said low bid and does therefore authorize the Agency’s General 
Manager or its Chief Operating Officer to issue a Notice of Award to Weber Water 
Resources CA, LLC., for the Saugus Well 2 Rehabilitation project. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or its President and 
Secretary are thereupon authorized, upon receipt of appropriate payment and 
performance bonds, appropriate certificates of insurance and an executed Contract 
Agreement from Weber Water Resources CA, LLC. in the amount of $1,400,000.00 for 
the Saugus Well 2 Rehabilitation and authorize the other expenditures for the project, for 
a grand total of $1,905,000, all of which must be approved by General Counsel, to 
execute the said Contract Agreement on behalf of the Agency. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or Chief Operating Officer 
are thereafter authorized to execute and forward to Weber Water Resources CA, LLC., 
the appropriate Notice to Proceed. 

111



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

112



A
pp

ro
ve

 a
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

to
 

Re
ha

bi
lit

at
e 

Sa
ug

us
 W

el
l 2

O
ct

ob
er

 1
7,

 2
02

3

Re
gu

la
r 

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
ti

ng
 

113



Sa
ug

us
 W

el
l 2

 R
eh

ab
ili

ta
ti

on

•H
is

to
ry

 
•N

ee
d 

fo
r 

Re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n
•R

eh
ab

ili
ta

ti
on

 H
ig

hl
ig

ht
s

•B
id

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

•A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 C
os

ts
•R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on

2

114



H
is

to
ry

-S
au

gu
s 

W
el

l 2
•D

ri
lle

d 
in

 1
98

8
•1

99
7 

ta
ke

n 
of

fl
in

e 
du

e 
to

 p
er

ch
lo

ra
te

•2
01

1 
br

ou
gh

t 
ba

ck
 o

nl
in

e 
w

it
h 

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 o
f 

Sa
ug

us
 

Pe
rc

hl
or

at
e 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y
•2

01
2 

fu
ll 

do
w

nh
ol

e 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n

•
O

ut
fi

tt
ed

 w
it

h 
a 

lin
er

 c
as

in
g

•C
on

ta
in

m
en

t 
w

el
l t

o 
pr

ot
ec

t 
Sa

ug
us

 A
qu

if
er

 

3

115



Sa
ug

us
 W

el
l 2

4

116



Sa
ug

us
 W

el
l 2

5

117



N
ee

d 
fo

r 
Re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n

•P
um

pi
ng

 c
ap

ac
it

y 
de

cr
ea

se
•

1,
10

0 
ga

llo
ns

 p
er

 m
in

ut
e 

(g
pm

) 
in

 2
01

2
•

70
0g

pm
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

•
Re

st
or

in
g 

ra
te

 is
 c

ru
ci

al
 f

or
 c

on
ta

in
m

en
t

•B
ac

te
ri

ol
og

ic
al

 g
ro

w
th

 o
n 

w
el

l s
cr

ee
n/

co
lu

m
n 

•
H

as
 c

au
se

d 
in

st
an

ce
s 

of
 f

ai
le

d 
ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l s
am

pl
es

6

118



Re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n 
H

ig
hl

ig
ht

s
•B

ru
sh

in
g/

ba
ili

ng
 

•A
ir

 j
et

ti
ng

•C
he

m
ic

al
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
(t

w
o 

ro
un

ds
)

•
N

SF
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

ch
em

ic
al

s 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 f

or
 d

ri
nk

in
g 

w
at

er
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n

•M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t
•

A
ir

lif
ti

ng
 a

nd
 s

w
ab

bi
ng

•D
yn

am
ic

 a
nd

 s
ta

ti
c 

fl
ow

ra
te

s
•D

ep
th

 d
is

cr
et

e 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

m
on

it
or

in
g

7

119



Bi
d 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

•R
ic

ha
rd

 C
. 

Sl
ad

e 
an

d 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 t

ec
hn

ic
al

 
as

si
st

an
ce

•P
os

te
d 

to
 P

la
ne

tB
id

s 
on

 8
/7

/2
3

•M
an

da
to

ry
 p

re
-b

id
 s

it
e 

m
ee

ti
ng

 o
n 

8/
23

/2
3

•
Th

re
e 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 a

tt
en

de
d

•W
eb

er
 W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

A
, 

LL
C.

 in
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
$1

,4
00

,0
00

.0
0 

w
as

 t
he

 o
nl

y 
bi

d

8

120



Br
ea

kd
ow

n 
of

 A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 C
os

ts
Ta

sk
s

Co
st

W
eb

er
 W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 R

eh
ab

ili
ta

ti
on

$ 
1,

40
0,

00
0.

00
 

Ad
di

ti
on

al
 S

ta
nd

by
 T

im
e 

(W
eb

er
)

$ 
   

20
0,

00
0.

00

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
An

al
ys

is
 (

N
PD

ES
, 

w
el

l s
am

pl
es

)
$ 

   
   

 5
,0

00
.0

0 

W
el

l c
ol

um
n 

pi
pe

, 
sh

af
t,

 e
tc

. 
$ 

   
24

0,
00

0.
00

 

RC
S 

Fi
el

d 
M

on
it

or
in

g 
an

d 
Re

ha
b 

Su
m

m
ar

y
$ 

   
  6

0,
00

0.
00

 

To
ta

l
$ 

1,
90

5,
00

0.
00

 

9

121



Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

Th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

re
co

m
m

en
ds

 
th

at
 t

he
 B

oa
rd

 o
f 

Di
re

ct
or

s 
au

th
or

iz
e 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 
to

 e
nt

er
 in

to
 a

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
w

it
h 

W
eb

er
 W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

A,
 

LL
C.

, 
in

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

$1
,4

00
,0

00
.0

0 
fo

r 
th

e 
Sa

ug
us

 W
el

l 2
 

Re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n 
an

d 
au

th
or

iz
e 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
 f

or
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

de
ta

ile
d 

ab
ov

e,
 f

or
 a

 g
ra

nd
 t

ot
al

 o
f 

$1
,9

05
,0

00
 

an
d 

fi
nd

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

ct
io

n 
is

 e
xe

m
pt

 f
ro

m
 C

EQ
A.

10

122



Monthly

Financial

Report
 

July 2023 

123

ajacobs
Item 5.9



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

124



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Statement of 

Revenues and Expenses 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

125



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

126



SC
V 

W
at

er
 

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s 

an
d 

Ex
pe

ns
es

Fo
r t

he
 1

st
 P

er
io

d 
En

di
ng

 7
.3

1.
23

  -
 U

na
ud

ite
d

(A
)

(B
)

(C
)

(D
)

(E
)

(F
)

(G
)

(H
)

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

Va
ria

nc
e

Pe
rc

en
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

Va
ria

nc
e

Pe
rc

en
t

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s

(1
)

7,
46

4,
39

2
$ 

   
 

10
,6

41
,5

73
$ 

   
(3

,1
77

,1
81

)
$ 

   
 

(3
0%

)
( a

 )
W

at
er

 S
al

es
7,

46
4,

39
2

$ 
   

   
10

,6
41

,5
73

$ 
   

 
(3

,1
77

,1
81

)
$ 

   
 

(3
0%

)
(1

)
(2

)
25

,0
92

   
   

   
   

25
,1

80
   

   
   

   
 

(8
8)

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(0

%
)

W
at

er
 S

al
es

 - 
W

W
R

25
,0

92
   

   
   

   
  

25
,1

80
   

   
   

   
  

(8
8)

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(0

%
)

(2
)

(3
)

32
,0

77
   

   
   

   
40

,6
00

   
   

   
   

 
(8

,5
23

)
   

   
   

   
  

(2
1%

)
W

at
er

 S
al

es
 - 

R
ec

yc
le

d
32

,0
77

   
   

   
   

  
40

,6
00

   
   

   
   

  
(8

,5
23

)
   

   
   

   
  

(2
1%

)
(3

)
(4

)
73

,3
00

   
   

   
   

55
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

18
,3

00
   

   
   

   
 

33
%

M
is

c 
Fe

es
 a

nd
 C

ha
rg

es
73

,3
00

   
   

   
   

  
55

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
18

,3
00

   
   

   
   

 
33

%
(4

)
(5

)
7,

59
4,

86
1

$ 
   

 
10

,7
62

,3
53

$ 
   

(3
,1

67
,4

92
)

$ 
   

 
(2

9%
)

To
ta

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s

7,
59

4,
86

1
$ 

   
   

10
,7

62
,3

53
$ 

   
 

(3
,1

67
,4

92
)

$ 
   

 
(2

9%
)

(5
)

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
(6

)
17

8,
12

4
$ 

   
   

 
25

7,
83

7
$ 

   
   

  
(7

9,
71

3)
$ 

   
   

   
(3

1%
)

( b
 )

M
an

ag
em

en
t

17
8,

12
4

$ 
   

   
   

25
7,

83
7

$ 
   

   
   

(7
9,

71
3)

$ 
   

   
   

(3
1%

)
(6

)
(7

)
1,

51
6,

05
7

   
   

 
1,

99
3,

94
8

   
   

  
(4

77
,8

91
)

   
   

   
 

(2
4%

)
( c

 )
Fi

na
nc

e,
 A

dm
in

 &
 IT

1,
51

6,
05

7
   

   
   

1,
99

3,
94

8
   

   
   

(4
77

,8
91

)
   

   
   

 
(2

4%
)

(7
)

(8
)

13
3,

81
3

   
   

   
 

25
5,

68
5

   
   

   
  

(1
21

,8
72

)
   

   
   

 
(4

8%
)

( d
 )

C
us

to
m

er
 C

ar
e

13
3,

81
3

   
   

   
   

25
5,

68
5

   
   

   
   

(1
21

,8
72

)
   

   
   

 
(4

8%
)

(8
)

(9
)

66
2,

65
6

   
   

   
 

92
8,

13
1

   
   

   
  

(2
65

,4
76

)
   

   
   

 
(2

9%
)

( d
 )

Tr
an

s 
& 

D
is

tri
bu

tio
n

66
2,

65
6

   
   

   
   

92
8,

13
1

   
   

   
   

(2
65

,4
76

)
   

   
   

 
(2

9%
)

(9
)

(1
0)

71
4,

91
0

   
   

   
 

1,
24

8,
93

1
   

   
  

(5
34

,0
21

)
   

   
   

 
(4

3%
)

( e
 )

Pu
m

pi
ng

 W
el

ls
 &

 S
to

ra
ge

71
4,

91
0

   
   

   
   

1,
24

8,
93

1
   

   
   

(5
34

,0
21

)
   

   
   

 
(4

3%
)

(1
0)

(1
1)

31
2,

94
2

   
   

   
 

93
8,

38
5

   
   

   
  

(6
25

,4
43

)
   

   
   

 
(6

7%
)

( f
 )

W
at

er
 R

es
ou

rc
es

31
2,

94
2

   
   

   
   

93
8,

38
5

   
   

   
   

(6
25

,4
43

)
   

   
   

 
(6

7%
)

(1
1)

(1
2)

14
,7

84
   

   
   

   
20

9,
06

8
   

   
   

  
(1

94
,2

84
)

   
   

   
 

(9
3%

)
( g

 )
So

ur
ce

 o
f S

up
pl

y
14

,7
84

   
   

   
   

  
20

9,
06

8
   

   
   

   
(1

94
,2

84
)

   
   

   
 

(9
3%

)
(1

2)
(1

3)
86

4,
22

8
   

   
   

 
1,

11
6,

09
7

   
   

  
(2

51
,8

69
)

   
   

   
 

(2
3%

)
( h

 )
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y,

 T
re

at
m

en
t &

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

86
4,

22
8

   
   

   
   

1,
11

6,
09

7
   

   
   

(2
51

,8
69

)
   

   
   

 
(2

3%
)

(1
3)

(1
4)

16
4,

97
0

   
   

   
 

33
3,

30
5

   
   

   
  

(1
68

,3
35

)
   

   
   

 
(5

1%
)

( i
 )

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

16
4,

97
0

   
   

   
   

33
3,

30
5

   
   

   
   

(1
68

,3
35

)
   

   
   

 
(5

1%
)

(1
4)

(1
5)

4,
56

2,
48

5
$ 

   
 

7,
28

1,
38

6
$ 

   
  

(2
,7

18
,9

02
)

$ 
   

 
(3

7%
)

To
ta

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
4,

56
2,

48
5

$ 
   

   
7,

28
1,

38
6

$ 
   

   
(2

,7
18

,9
02

)
$ 

   
 

(3
7%

)
(1

5)

(1
6)

3,
03

2,
37

6
$ 

   
 

3,
48

0,
96

7
$ 

   
  

(4
48

,5
90

)
$ 

   
   

 
(1

3%
)

N
et

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

(E
xp

en
se

s)
3,

03
2,

37
6

$ 
   

   
3,

48
0,

96
7

$ 
   

   
(4

48
,5

90
)

$ 
   

   
 

(1
3%

)
(1

6)

N
on

-O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

an
d 

(E
xp

en
se

s)

(1
7)

62
7,

78
6

$ 
   

   
 

1,
20

3,
57

5
$ 

   
  

(5
75

,7
89

)
$ 

   
   

 
(4

8%
)

( j
 )

N
on

-O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

1
62

7,
78

6
$ 

   
   

   
1,

20
3,

57
5

$ 
   

   
(5

75
,7

89
)

$ 
   

   
 

(4
8%

)
(1

7)
(1

8)
(4

60
,6

06
)

   
   

   
(6

,3
62

,1
78

)
   

   
 

5,
90

1,
57

2
   

   
  

(9
3%

)
( k

 )
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

je
ct

s 
- P

ay
 G

o
(4

60
,6

06
)

   
   

   
  

(6
,3

62
,1

78
)

   
   

  
5,

90
1,

57
2

   
   

  
(9

3%
)

(1
8)

(1
9)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0%

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0%

(1
9)

(2
0)

(5
,1

84
)

   
   

   
   

 
(3

,3
33

)
   

   
   

   
  

(1
,8

50
)

   
   

   
   

  
56

%
Le

as
es

 a
nd

 S
BI

TA
 In

te
re

st
 E

xp
en

se
s

(5
,1

84
)

   
   

   
   

   
(3

,3
33

)
   

   
   

   
   

(1
,8

50
)

   
   

   
   

  
56

%
(2

0)
(2

1)
16

1,
99

6
$ 

   
   

 
(5

,1
61

,9
37

)
$ 

   
 

5,
32

3,
93

3
$ 

   
  

(1
03

%
)

N
et

 N
on

-O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

an
d 

(E
xp

en
se

s)
16

1,
99

6
$ 

   
   

   
(5

,1
61

,9
37

)
$ 

   
  

5,
32

3,
93

3
$ 

   
  

(1
03

%
)

(2
1)

(2
2)

3,
19

4,
37

2
$ 

   
 

(1
,6

80
,9

70
)

$ 
   

 
4,

87
5,

34
3

$ 
   

  
(2

90
%

)
In

cr
ea

se
 (D

ec
re

as
e)

 in
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
3,

19
4,

37
2

$ 
   

   
(1

,6
80

,9
70

)
$ 

   
  

4,
87

5,
34

3
$ 

   
  

(2
90

%
)

(2
2)

M
on

th
ly

 C
ha

ng
es

 o
f m

or
e 

th
an

 1
0%

 a
nd

 $
20

,0
00

(a
)

O
ve

ra
ll 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

w
as

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 d

ue
 to

 w
ea

th
er

 a
nd

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n.
(b

)
Ju

ly
 p

ay
ro

ll 
lo

w
er

 d
ue

 to
 re

ve
rs

al
 o

f y
ea

r-
en

d 
ac

cr
ue

d 
pa

yr
ol

l. 
O

ut
si

de
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

du
e 

to
 lo

w
er

 le
ga

l c
os

ts
 th

an
 o

rig
in

al
ly

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

(c
)

Ju
ly

 p
ay

ro
ll 

lo
w

er
 d

ue
 to

 re
ve

rs
al

 o
f y

ea
r-

en
d 

ac
cr

ue
d 

pa
yr

ol
l. 

O
ut

si
de

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 b
ud

ge
te

d 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

re
ve

rs
al

 o
f y

ea
r-

en
d 

ba
nk

 fe
es

 a
cc

ru
al

.
(d

)
Ju

ly
 p

ay
ro

ll 
lo

w
er

 d
ue

 to
 re

ve
rs

al
 o

f y
ea

r-
en

d 
ac

cr
ue

d 
pa

yr
ol

l.
(e

)
Ju

ly
 p

ay
ro

ll 
lo

w
er

 d
ue

 to
 re

ve
rs

al
 o

f y
ea

r-
en

d 
ac

cr
ue

d 
pa

yr
ol

l. 
U

til
iti

es
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 b
ud

ge
te

d 
du

e 
to

 re
ve

rs
al

 o
f E

di
so

n 
ye

ar
-e

nd
 a

cc
ru

al
.

(f) (g
)

(h
)

Ju
ly

 p
ay

ro
ll 

lo
w

er
 d

ue
 to

 re
ve

rs
al

 o
f y

ea
r-

en
d 

ac
cr

ue
d 

pa
yr

ol
l.

(i)
O

ut
si

de
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

du
e 

to
 re

ve
rs

al
 o

f y
ea

r-
en

d 
ac

cr
ua

ls
.

(j)
N

on
-O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
ev

en
ue

s 
ar

e 
lo

w
er

 d
ue

 to
 re

ve
rs

al
 o

f y
ea

r-
en

d 
ac

cr
ue

d 
gr

an
t f

un
ds

 &
 y

ea
r-

en
d 

ac
cr

ue
d 

in
te

re
st

 in
co

m
e.

(k
)

Ti
m

in
g 

of
 c

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
va

ry
 fr

om
 m

on
th

 to
 m

on
th

Ye
ar

-to
-D

at
e

C
ur

re
nt

 P
er

io
d

1  N
on

-O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

in
cl

ud
e:

 G
ra

nt
s 

& 
R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, 1

%
 P

ro
pe

rty
 T

ax
, C

el
l S

ite
s,

 F
C

F,
 L

ab
 R

ev
en

ue
s,

 In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e,

 A
nn

ex
at

io
n 

R
ei

m
b.

Ju
ly

 p
ay

ro
ll 

lo
w

er
 d

ue
 to

 re
ve

rs
al

 o
f y

ea
r-

en
d 

ac
cr

ue
d 

pa
yr

ol
l. 

BM
P 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d.

  O
ut

si
de

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 b
ud

ge
te

d 
du

e 
to

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d.
U

til
iti

es
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 b
ud

ge
te

d 
du

e 
to

 re
ve

rs
al

 o
f E

di
so

n 
ye

ar
-e

nd
 a

cc
ru

al
. C

or
e 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
ex

pe
ns

es
 lo

w
er

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 lo

w
er

 fi
rm

in
g 

ba
nk

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
dr

iv
en

 
by

 a
 w

et
 y

ea
r. 

127



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

128



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Investment Report 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

129



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

130



Operating Account‐Incl FCF's,  SWP & CIP XXX‐10101 16,609,578$                6.08%

Customer Billing Bank Accounts 101‐10105 1,614,997                     0.59%

US Treasury Bills (Cash Equivalent) 101‐10104 10,240,321                   3.75%

US Bank ‐ Cash with Fiscal Agent 101‐102XX 30,774,110                   11.26%

US Bank Trust Account  (1% Prop Tax) 101‐10202 45,444                           0.02%

LAIF ‐ Operating 101‐11061 34,396,535                   12.59%

LAC Pooled Investment Fund 101‐11062 5,641                             0.00%

US Treasury Notes 101‐11063 48,526,602                   17.75%

US Gov't Issues (excl T‐Bills & T‐Notes) 101‐11064 50,185,433                   18.36%

State and Local Government Bonds 101‐11065 14,149,196                   5.18%

Certificates of Deposit 101‐11066 3,523,224                     1.29%

Government Money Mkt Fund 101‐11067 847,786                        0.31%

Corporate Issues 101‐11068 36,232,542                   13.26%

Foreign Issues 101‐11069 5,950,096                     2.18%

CMOs 101‐11070 13,854,753                   5.07%

Asset Backed Securities 101‐11071 6,327,177                     2.32%

273,283,435$              100.01%

Estimated Refundable Developer Deposits: ‐$                              

Portfolio‐wide Investments:

Weighted Average Yield  4.377%

Rochelle Patterson, MPA Amy Aguer, CPA
Treasurer/Chief Financial & Administrative Officer Controller

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

Cash and Investment Summary

July 31, 2023

All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the Investment Policy, 

and the Agency will meet its expenditure obligations for the next six months as required by Government Code Section 

53646(b)(2) and (3), respectively.

Included 

in totals 

Operating 
Account 6.08%

Customer Billing 
Bank Accounts 

0.59% US Treasury Bills 
3.75%

US Bank ‐ Cash With 
Fiscal Agent 11.26%

US Bank Trust Account 
0.02%

LAIF‐Operating 
12.59%

LACPIF               
0.00%

US Treasury Notes 17.75%

US Gov't Issues   18.36%

State and Local  Govt 
Bonds 5.18%

Certificates of Deposit 
1.29%

Govt Money Market 
0.31%

Corporate Issues 
13.24%

Foreign Issues
2.18%

CMOs
5.07%

Asset Backed 
Securities 
2.33%

Cash and Investments

9/7/2023131

phoover
Signature - Rochelle Patterson

phoover
Signature - Amy Aguer



Note Acct # Balance Total % of Total

AGENCY FUNDS

Cash & Sweep Accounts

WF Operating Account‐Incl FCF's, SWP & CIP XXX‐10101 16,609,578$        

Less: WF Restricted Cash (FCFs, SWP & CIP) 1 2XX‐10101 (1,666,098)           

US Treasury Bills ‐ CAM 101‐10104 10,240,321          

Customer Billing ‐ Northstar Account 101‐10105 297,280                

Customer Billing ‐ enQuesta Account 101‐10107 1,317,716            

US Bank ‐ Cash with Fiscal Agent 101‐102XX 30,774,110          

US Bank Trust Account  (1% Prop Tax) 101/204‐10202 45,444                  

Less: Restricted Cash US Bank Accts ‐SWP  1 204‐10202 ‐                         

Subtotal ‐ Cash & Sweep Accounts Unrestricted 57,618,352$            21.08%

Investments ‐ Unrestricted

Local Agency Investment Fund 101/202/204‐11061 34,396,535$        

LAC Pooled Investment Fund 101‐11062 5,641                     

US Treasury Notes ‐ US Bank 101‐11063 48,526,602          

US Govt Issues (excl T‐Notes & T‐Bills) 101/204‐11064 50,185,433          

Taxable Municipal Issues (State & Local) 101‐11065 14,149,196          

Certificates of Deposit 101‐11066 3,523,224            

Government Money Mkt Fund 101/204‐11067 847,786                

Corporate Issues 101‐11068 36,232,542          

Foreign Issues 101‐11069 5,950,096            

CMOs‐Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 101‐11070 13,854,753          

Asset Backed Securities 101‐11071 6,327,177            

Less: Restricted Investments ‐ FCF 2 202‐11061 (9,958,753)           

Less: Restricted Investments ‐ SWP 3 204‐11061‐11067 (92,348,411)         

Subtotal ‐ Investments Unrestricted 111,691,822$          40.87%

Cash and Investments ‐ Restricted

Facility Capacity Fee Fund ‐ Cash 4 202‐10101 ‐$                       

Facility Capacity Fee Fund ‐ Investments 5 202‐11061 9,958,753            

State Water Project ‐ Cash (WF & US Bank) 6 204‐10XXX 1,824,181            

State Water Project ‐ Investments 7 204‐11061/11063/11064 92,348,411

Subtotal ‐ Investments Restricted 104,131,345            38.10%

TOTAL AGENCY CASH & INVESTMENTS 273,441,519$         

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUNDS

Cash & Sweep Accounts 8 220‐10101 (158,083)$            

Local Agency Investment Fund ‐ Restricted 220‐11061 ‐                         

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUNDS (158,083)$                ‐0.06%

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 273,283,435$          100.00%

Notes

1 Less: Restricted Cash ‐ FCF's, SWP & CIP 

2 Less: Restricted Investments ‐ FCF's Legacy SCWD

3 Less: Restricted Investments ‐ State Water Project

4 Restricted Cash ‐ FCF's (Txfr'd to cover Debt Svc)

5 Restricted Investments ‐ FCF's (SCWD Legacy)

6 Restricted Cash ‐ SWP (State Water Project)

7 Restricted Investments ‐ SWP (State Water Project)

8 Restricted Cash ‐ CIP 2020A Bond Proceeds ‐ Negative ‐ Awaiting reimbursement from the 2023A Bond Proceeds

SCV Water
Consolidated Cash & Investment Summary

7/31/2023

132



7/31/2023 Per Chandler Asset Management and US Bank Custody Trust Stateme

Agency-wide General Funds Invested:
Purchase Maturity

Cash & Cash-Equivalents Cost Yield Date Date

Wells Fargo Pooled Operating Cash 16,609,578$      5.162% Various Liquid
Less: CIP 2020A Pooled Cash 158,083             5.162% Various Liquid
Wells Fargo Customer Care Accounts 1,614,997          5.162% Various Liquid
US Bank DS Accounts 30,774,110        4.790% Various Liquid
US Bank 1% Property Tax Trust Account 45,444               3.740% Various 08/15/23
US T-Bills (Cash Equiv) - CAM 10,240,321        5.035% Various Liquid
Commercial Paper (Cash Equiv) - CAM 1,444,736          5.160% Various Various
First American Gov't MM (Cash Equiv) -CAM 847,786             4.870% Various Liquid

Total Cash & Cash-Equivalents 61,735,055$      4.950% Weighted Avg Yield

Investments External to US Bank / Chandler Asset Management

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 34,396,535$      3.305% Various Liquid
LA County Pooled Investment Fund 5,641                 3.840% Various Liquid

Investments per US Bank / Chandler Asset Management Statements (excluding Cash Equivalents)

Asset-Backed Securities - CAM 6,327,177          5.530% Various Various
Federal Agencies - CAM 50,185,433        5.252% Various Various
CMO's - Collateralized Mortgages - CAM 13,854,753        4.722% Various Various
Corporate Issues 34,787,805        5.221% Various Various
Municipal Bonds (State/Local Gov'ts) CAM 14,149,196        5.250% Various Various
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit - CAM 3,523,224          5.386% Various Various
US Treasury Notes - US Bank 48,526,602        4.563% Various Various
Foreign Issues & SupraNationals 5,950,096          5.204% Various Various

Total Investments 211,706,464$    4.210% Weighted Avg Yield

Cash & Investments Non-CIP 273,441,519$    4.377% Portfolio Weighted Avg Yield
 

Reconciliation with Portfolio-wide Summary

CIP 2020A Cash (158,083)$          US T-Bills (Cash Equiv)
CIP 2020A LAIF 0 Commercial Paper

First American Gov't MM
CIP Cash & Investments (158,083)            Asset-Backed Securities

Federal Agencies
Portfolio Wide Total Cash & Investments 273,283,435$    CMO's - Collateralized Mtgs

0                        

Negotiable CDs
US Treasury Notes 
Foreign Notes

CAM Assets Managed

Corporate Issues (excluding Foreign 
Issues)
Municipal Bonds (State/Local)

CAM Managed Assets / Held at US B

133



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

134



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
3-Month Cashflow 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

135



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

136



SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
3 - Month Cash Flow Projection

Cash Flow for September FY24 to November FY24

Checking Investments CIP Fund SWC Capacity Fees

Beginning Balance (estimated): 19,437,584$    115,681,177$     74,458,129$    91,655,086$    10,616,292$       
September

Cash Provided from:
Water Sales 11,634,169      -                     -                   -                   -                      
Water Sales Misc1 60,000             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Recycled Water Sales 40,600             -                     -                   -                   -                      
  Non Operating Income:

Property Taxes -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Capacity Fees -                   -                     -                   -                   131,483              
Interest Earned 491,166           -                     142,188           327,708           -                      
Communication/Rental 44,189             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Grants -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Reimbursements 2 392,612           -                     -                   -                   -                      
Bond/Loan Proceeds -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Other 3 1,936               -                     -                   -                   -                      

Cash Used/Added to/for:
Monthly Expenses (7,860,911)       -                     -                   (12,212)            -                      
DWR Payments -                   -                     -                   (1,900,000)       -                      
Misc. Water Purchases (11,667)            -                     -                   (1,496,904)       -                      
Debt Service (3,333)              -                     -                   -                   -                      
CIP (6,362,178)       -                     (3,893,500)       -                   -                      
CalPERS UAL -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Txfr to/from -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      

Projected Ending Balance Sep 17,864,167$    115,681,177$     70,706,817$    88,573,678$    10,747,775$       
October

Cash Provided from:
Water Sales 9,699,338        -                     -                   -                   -                      
Water Sales Misc 1 50,000             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Recycled Water Sales 40,600             -                     -                   -                   -                      
  Non Operating Income:

Property Taxes -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Capacity Fees -                   -                     -                   -                   131,483              
Interest Earned 491,166           -                     142,188           327,708           -                      
Communication/Rental 44,189             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Grants 647,743           -                     -                   -                   -                      
Reimbursements 2 249,574           -                     -                   -                   -                      
Bond/Loan Proceeds -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Other 3 1,936               -                     -                   -                   -                      

Cash Used/Added to/for:
Monthly Expenses (7,652,511)       -                     -                   (12,212)            -                      
DWR Payments -                   -                     -                   (808,500)          -                      
Misc. Water Purchases (11,667)            -                     -                   (1,486,703)       -                      
Debt Service (3,333)              -                     -                   -                   -                      
CIP (6,362,178)       -                     (3,893,500)       -                   -                      
Txfr to/from -                   -                     -                   -                      

Projected Ending Balance. Oct 15,059,023$    115,681,177$     66,955,504$    86,593,970$    10,879,259$       

DESCRIPTION RESTRICTEDUNRESTRICTED

9/19/2023 137



SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
3 - Month Cash Flow Projection

Cash Flow for September FY24 to November FY24

Checking Investments CIP Fund SWC Capacity Fees

Beginning Balance (estimated): 19,437,584$    115,681,177$     74,458,129$    91,655,086$    10,616,292$       

DESCRIPTION RESTRICTEDUNRESTRICTED

November
Cash Provided from:
Water Sales 8,731,922        -                     -                   -                   -                      
Water Sales Misc 1 45,000             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Recycled Water Sales 40,600             -                     -                   -                   -                      
  Non Operating Income:

Property Taxes 619,045           -                     -                   808,486           -                      
Capacity Fees -                   -                     -                   -                   131,483              
Interest Earned 491,166           -                     142,188           327,708           -                      
Communication/Rental 44,189             -                     -                   -                   -                      
Grants 647,743           -                     -                   -                   -                      
Reimbursements 2 253,781           -                     -                   -                   -                      
Bond/Loan Proceeds -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      
Other 3 1,936               -                     -                   -                   -                      

Cash Used/Added to/for:
Monthly Expenses (7,548,311)       -                     -                   (12,212)            -                      
DWR Payments -                   -                     -                   (808,500)          -                      
Misc. Water Purchases (11,667)            -                     -                   (1,486,703)       -                      
Debt Service (3,333)              -                     -                   -                   -                      
CIP (6,362,178)       -                     (3,893,500)       -                   -                      
Txfr to/from -                   -                     -                   -                   -                      

Projected Ending Balance Nov 12,008,916$    115,681,177$     63,204,192$    85,422,749$    11,010,742$       

Notes: 
1 Water Sales Misc. includes Late Charges, Misc. Retail Charges, Rebates, and Water Sales-One time
2 Reimbursements include Annexation and PERCH Reimbursements - O&M & CIP
3 Other includes Laboratory Revenues and Other Non-Operating Revenue

9/19/2023 138



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Ten Largest Disbursements 

Check Register 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

139



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

140



No. Date Pmt # Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Method Amount

07-26-2023 16199 HPS West, Inc 3/4 IN MASTER METER ALLEGRO (3,742), 2 IN MASTER METERS ALLEGRO 
(407) SCV_ACH 1,676,883.71

1 1,676,883.71

07-26-2023 56741 Pacific Hydrotech 
Corporation

ESFP Washwater Return and Sludge Collection Project, Progress Payment 
through 6/20/23 CHECK

1,010,903.67

2 1,010,903.67

07-26-2023 56740 Pacific Hydrotech 
Corporation

Santa Clara & Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvement 
Construction, Progress Payment through 5/31/23 CHECK

965,675.82

3           965,675.82 

07-05-2023 56579 Pacific Hydrotech 
Corporation

ESFP Washwater Return and Sludge Collection Project, Progress Payment 
through 5/20/23 CHECK

786,172.50

4           786,172.50 

07-26-2023 56794 Pacific Hydrotech 
Corporation Santa Clara and Honby Wells PFAs Progress Pay 11 CHECK

472,778.08

5           472,778.08 

07-26-2023 16209 Zim Industries, Inc. Replacement (Saugus 3 & 4) Wells Construction Project, Progress Payment 
through 6/30/23 SCV_ACH

426,132.00

6 Zim Industries, Inc.           426,132.00 

07-25-2023 So. California Edison 
Co. Lk Hughes E/S Dam 5/26/23-6/26/23 1,131.99

25849 1/2 Railroad Ave 5/26/23-6/26/23 13,819.49
32700 Lake Hughes Road 5/26/23-6/26/23 25,481.57
27234 Bouquet Canyon Rd SB 5/26/23-6/26/23 81.03
25401 Bouquet Canyon 5/25/23-6/25/23 134,798.21
23308 Magic Mountain 5/9/23-6/7/23 9,847.31
23498 Newhall Ranch Rd 5/26/23-6/26/23 18.79
28185 The Old Rd 5/26/23-6/26/23 5,878.40
26503 McBean Pkwy 5/26/23-6/26/23 17.94
27930 1/2 Lost Canyon Rd 5/26/23-6/26/23 137.92
27171 1/2 Camp Plenty 5/26/23-6/26/23 38.98
20545 Santa Clara St 5/26/23-6/26/23 190,006.25
27295 Rolling Hills Ave 5/26/23-6/26/23 381.00
17213 Medley Ridge Dr 5/26/23-6/26/23 40.29
20545 Santa Clara St 4/27/23-5/25/23 121.45
27434 1/2 Bouquet Canyon Rd 5/26/23-6/26/23 106.98
27475 1/2 Canyon View Dr 5/11/23-6/11/23 86.10
26501 Summit Cir 5/22/23-6/20/23 454.62
26505 Summit Cir 5/22/23-6/20/23 151.56
26979 Westridge 5/26/23-6/26/23 33.19
27139 Honby Ave PED 5/19/23-6/19/23 29.34

7 So. California Edison Co.           382,662.41 

07-05-2023 56578 Pacific Hydrotech 
Corporation

Well 201 VOC Groundwater Treatment Improvements, Progress Payment 
through 4/30/23 CHECK

371,925.00

8 Pacific Hydrotech Corporation           371,925.00 

07-26-2023 Evoqua Water 
Technologies, LLC. DI RENTAL 7/1/23-9/30/23 SCV_ACH 148.32

Well Q2 Resin Fill - Resin Initial Fill Service 368,315.29

9 Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC.           368,463.61 

07-26-2023 ERS Industrial 
Services, Inc.

Turn Key Service Media Supply for (1) Gravity Filter at Earl Schmidt Water 
Treatment Plant SCV_ACH

178,960.00

Turn Key Service Media Supply for (1) Gravity Filter at the Rio Vista Water 
Treatment Plant

178,960.00

10 ERS Industrial Services, Inc.           357,920.00 

Total 6,819,516.80      

Total-All Disbursements Issued During July 2023 12,237,372.69    

Largest Ten Vendor Payments as Compared to Total 56%

AUTO DEBIT

SCV Water
Ten Largest Disbursements

July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Pacific Hydrotech Corporation

Pacific Hydrotech Corporation

Pacific Hydrotech Corporation

HPS West, Inc

16142

Pacific Hydrotech Corporation

16228

16200

141



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

142



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Director Stipends 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

143



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

144



D
ire

ct
or

 K
at

hy
e 

Ar
m

ita
ge

 
D

ire
ct

or
 B

et
h 

B
ra

un
st

ei
n 

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

07
/1

1/
23

Sp
ec

ia
l B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

1/
23

Sp
ec

ia
l B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

2/
23

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
of

 N
or

th
 L

A 
C

ou
nt

y 
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
8/

23
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

3/
23

AC
W

A 
R

eg
io

n 
8 

Ev
en

t
$2

39
.0

0
07

/2
0/

23
Pu

bl
ic

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

7/
23

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

8/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
8/

23
U

SC
VJ

PA
 M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

07
/2

0/
23

Pu
bl

ic
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

an
d 

Le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,4
34

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$7

17
.0

0
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s 
6

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

3
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
 

7
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
3

D
ire

ct
or

 E
d 

C
ol

le
y

D
ire

ct
or

 W
ill

ia
m

 C
oo

pe
r 

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

07
/1

7/
23

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/0

6/
23

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

8/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
0/

23
AC

W
A 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/2

0/
23

Pu
bl

ic
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

an
d 

Le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
1/

23
Sp

ec
ia

l B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
2/

23
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 W

at
er

sh
ed

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
3/

23
AC

W
A 

R
eg

io
n 

8 
Ev

en
t

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

8/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
8/

23
U

SC
VJ

PA
 M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

07
/2

4/
23

M
ee

tin
g 

w
/ E

d 
M

ea
ns

 re
: S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

ni
ng

$2
39

.0
0

07
/2

7/
23

AC
W

A 
Bo

ar
d 

W
or

ks
ho

p
$2

39
.0

0
07

/2
7/

23
Sp

ec
ia

l S
C

V-
G

SA
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$0
.0

0
07

/2
8/

23
AC

W
A 

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
tin

g 
$2

39
.0

0
07

/3
1/

23
Ag

en
da

 P
la

nn
in

g 
M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$7

17
.0

0
St

ip
en

d 
To

ta
l 

$2
,3

90
.0

0
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
3

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

10
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
3

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

12

D
ire

ct
or

 M
ar

ia
 G

ut
ze

it 
D

ire
ct

or
 D

irk
 M

ar
ks

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

07
/1

1/
23

Sp
ec

ia
l B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

1/
23

Sp
ec

ia
l B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

7/
23

O
ne

-o
n-

O
ne

 M
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

$0
.0

0
07

/1
2/

23
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 W

at
er

sh
ed

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
7/

23
Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
7/

23
O

ne
-o

n-
O

ne
 M

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
8/

23
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

8/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
8/

23
U

SC
VJ

PA
 M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

07
/2

5/
23

M
ee

tin
g 

w
/ E

d 
M

ea
ns

 re
: S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
$2

39
.0

0
07

/2
0/

23
Pu

bl
ic

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/2

6/
23

M
ee

tin
g 

w
/ E

d 
M

ea
ns

 re
: S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
$2

39
.0

0
07

/2
7/

23
Sp

ec
ia

l S
C

V-
G

SA
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/3

1/
23

Ag
en

da
 P

la
nn

in
g 

M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,6
73

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l
$1

,1
95

.0
0

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

7
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
5

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

9
 

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

5

DI
RE

CT
O

RS
 S

TI
PE

ND
S 

PA
ID

 IN
 A

UG
US

T 
20

23
Fo

r t
he

 M
on

th
 o

f J
ul

y 
20

23

145



D
ire

ct
or

 G
ar

y 
M

ar
tin

D
ire

ct
or

 P
io

tr 
O

rz
ec

ho
w

sk
i 

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

07
/1

1/
23

Sp
ec

ia
l B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/0

6/
23

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

4/
23

D
C

A 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

Br
ie

fin
g 

M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

1/
23

Sp
ec

ia
l B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

8/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
2/

23
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 W

at
er

sh
ed

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/1
8/

23
U

SC
VJ

PA
 M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

07
/1

8/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/2
5/

23
M

ee
tin

g 
w

/ E
d 

M
ea

ns
 re

: S
tra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

8/
23

U
SC

VJ
PA

 M
ee

tin
g

$0
.0

0
07

/2
7/

23
Sp

ec
ia

l S
C

V-
G

SA
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/2

7/
23

M
ee

tin
g 

w
/ E

d 
M

ea
ns

 re
: S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
$0

.0
0

07
/3

1/
23

Ag
en

da
 P

la
nn

in
g 

M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/2

7/
23

Sp
ec

ia
l S

C
V-

G
SA

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
07

/3
1/

23
Ag

en
da

 P
la

nn
in

g 
M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,4
34

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,4
34

.0
0

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

6
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
6

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

7
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
 

8

D
ire

ct
or

 K
en

 P
et

er
se

n 

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

07
/0

6/
23

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

1/
23

Sp
ec

ia
l B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

7/
23

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

07
/1

8/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$9

56
.0

0
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
4

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

4

TO
TA

L 
PA

ID
 D

AY
S

50
TO

TA
L 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S

58
TO

TA
L 

ST
IP

EN
D

S
$1

1,
95

0.
00

146



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Director Reimbursements 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

147



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

148



C
A

 G
o

vt
. C

o
d

e 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 5
30

65
.5

 
L

is
t 

o
f 

R
ei

m
b

u
rs

em
en

t 
fo

r 
"I

n
d

iv
id

u
al

 C
h

ar
g

es
" 

=
 $

10
0 

o
r 

m
o

re
A

n
n

u
al

 D
is

cl
o

su
re

 f
o

r 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
23

/2
4

A
P

 T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s 

U
p

d
at

ed
 a

s 
o

f:
  

7/
31

/2
02

3

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
S

P
- 

C
ar

d
 (

V
IS

A
) 

T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s 

U
p

d
at

ed
 a

s 
o

f:
  7

/3
1/

23
 *

Ju
ly

 P
C

ar
d

 t
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s 

af
fe

ct
 A

u
g

u
st

 c
as

h
. 

D
at

e
R

ec
ip

ie
n

t 
o

f 
R

ei
m

b
u

rs
em

en
t

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ei
m

b
u

rs
em

en
t

 A
m

o
u

n
t 

07
/0

1/
23

C
oo

pe
r,

 W
il

li
am

A
C

W
A

 C
om

m
it

te
e 

M
ee

ti
ng

 S
ac

ra
m

en
to

, C
A

 6
/2

2/
23

-6
/2

3/
23

 T
ra

ve
l E

xp
en

se
 (

A
ir

fa
re

, M
il

ea
ge

, P
ar

ki
ng

, 
G

ro
un

d 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n-
 U

be
r)

54
9.

07
   

   
   

 
07

/0
1/

23
C

oo
pe

r,
 W

il
li

am
A

C
W

A
 C

om
m

it
te

e 
M

ee
ti

ng
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, C

A
 6

/2
2/

23
-6

/2
3/

23
 E

xp
en

se
 (

L
od

gi
ng

, M
ea

ls
)

40
1.

13
   

   
   

 95
0.

20
   

   
  

149



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

150



 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

               
 
SUMMARY 
 
The County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County is requesting approval and acceptance 
of a negotiated exchange of property tax revenues resulting from annexation to Santa Clarita 
Valley Sanitation District Annexation No. SCV-1130.  
 
DISCUSSION    
 
The annexation process requires that a resolution for property tax revenue exchange be 
adopted by all the affected local agencies before an annexation may be approved. For any 
jurisdictional change which will result in a special district providing new service not previously 
provided in an area, the law requires the governing bodies of all local agencies that receive an 
apportionment of the property tax from the area to determine by resolution the amount of the 
annual tax increment to be transferred to the special district (Revenue and Taxation Code 
Section 99.01).   
 
Finance staff has reviewed the calculations and reallocation of taxes as proposed by LAFCO 
and has not identified any concerns. 
 
RECOMMENDATION    
 
That the Board of Directors adopt the attached Negotiated Tax Exchange Resolution resulting 
from annexation to the Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation District Annexation No. SCV-1130. 
 
AMJ 
 
Attachment 
 

DATE: September 29, 2023 

TO:  SCVWA Board of Directors  

FROM: April Jacobs  
Board Secretary 

SUBJECT: Approve Adopting a Resolution Approving and Accepting Negotiated Exchange of 
Property Tax Revenues Resulting from Annexation to Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation 
District Annexation No. SCV-1130 

151

ajacobs
AJ Initials

ajacobs
Item 5.10

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

152



LOS ANGELES COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICTS 
Converting Waste Into Resources 

Ms. April Jacobs, Board Secretary 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road 
Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

Dear Ms. Jacobs: 

Robert C. Ferrante 
Chief Engineer and General Manager 

1955 Workman Mill Road, Whittier, CA 90601-1400 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 4998, Whittier, CA 90607-4998 

(562) 699-7411 • www.lacsd.org 

August 18, 2023 

General Annexation File 

Tax Sharing Resolutions 

Thank you for signing and returning the last joint resolutions that were submitted to your office 
for tax sharing purposes. 

Enclosed, in triplicate, is a Joint Tax Sharing Resolution (resolution) involving your agency and 
others. The applicant has requested, in writing, annexation of his property into the Santa Clarita Valley 
Sanitation District (District) in order to receive off-site disposal of sewage. Please see the table below for 
the annexation and its associated project. The annexation process requires that a resolution for property 
tax revenue exchange be adopted by all the affected local agencies before an annexation may be approved. 
For any jurisdictional change which will result in a special district providing new service not previously 
provided to an area, the law requires the governing bodies of all local agencies that receive an 
apportionment of the property tax from the area to determine by resolution the amount of the annual tax 
incrementto be transferred to the special district (Revenue and Taxation Code Section 99.01). Please note 
that by sharing the property tax increment with the District resulting from this annexation, your agency 
will not lose any existing ad valorem tax revenue it currently receives from the affected territory. Your 
agency would only be giving up a portion of the revenues it would receive on increased assessed valuation. 

Annexation No. Type of Project 

SCV-1130 one proposed shopping center 

Also, attached for the annexation is a copy of the applicable worksheet and map showing the 
location of the annexation. The worksheet lists the annual tax increment to be exchanged between your 
agency, other affected taxing entities, and the District. The tax sharing ratios listed in the worksheet were 
calculated by the County Auditor Controller by specific Tax Rate Area (TRA). For example, if the 
annexing territory were to lie within two separate IRAs, there would be a worksheet for each TRA. The 
Los Angeles County Chief Executive Office (CEO) is requiring the District to implement the worksheet 
for all District annexations in order to increase efficiency for the calculation of property tax sharing ratios. 

Printed on •" 
Recycled Paper ~.: 

153



Ms. April Jacobs 2 August 18, 2023 

The resolution is being distributed to all parties for signature in counterpart. Therefore, you will 
only be receiving a signature page for your agency. Enclosed are three sets of the resolution. One set of 
the resolution is for your files and the other two sets of the resolution need to be returned to the District. 
Please execute the two sets of the resolution and return them to the undersigned within 60 days as required 
by the Government Code. In addition, the County CEO's legal counsel is also requesting that the signature 
pages be properly executed from all affected agencies. Therefore, please have the Attest line signed by the 
appropriate person. Upon completion of the annexation process, your office will receive a fully executed 
copy of the tax sharing resolution for your files. 

Your continued cooperation in this matter is very much appreciated. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to call me at (562) 908-4288, extension 2708. 

DC:dc 

Enclosures: SCV-1130 

DOC 4401106 

Very truly yours, 

Donna J. Curry 

v~IA,IM, J. ~ 
Customer Service Specialist 
Facilities Planning Department 

154



JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
ACTING IN BEHALF OF 

Los Angeles County General Fund 

Los Angeles County Consolidated Fire Protection District 

Los Angeles County Flood Control 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SANTA CLARITA VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT OF LOS 
ANGELES COUNTY, AND THE GOVERNING BODIES OF 

Greater Los Angeles County Vector Control District 

City of Santa Clarita 

Santa Clarita Library 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 

APPROVING AND ACCEPTING NEGOTIATED EXCHANGE OF PROPERTY TAX REVENUES 
RESULTING FROM ANNEXATION TO SANTA CLARITA VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT. 

"ANNEXATION NO. 1130" 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 99 and 99.01 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, prior to the 
effective date of any jurisdictional change which will result in a special district providing a new service, 
the governing bodies of all local agencies that receive an apportionment of the property tax from the area 
must determine the amount of property tax revenues from the annual tax increment to be exchanged 
between the affected agencies and approve and accept the negotiated exchange of property tax revenues 
by resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the governing bodies of the agencies signatory hereto have made determinations of 
the amount of property tax revenues from the annual tax increments to be exchanged as a result of the 
annexation to Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation District entitled Annexation No. 1130; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The negotiated exchange of property tax revenues resulting from the annexation of territory 
to Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation District in the annexation entitled Annexation No. 1130 is approved and 
accepted. 

2. For each fiscal year commencing on and after July 1, 2023, or after the effective date of this 
jurisdictional change, whichever is later, the County Auditor shall transfer to Santa Clarita Valley 
Sanitation District a total of 0.9413917 percent of the annual tax increment attributable to the land area 
encompassed within Annexation No. 1130 as shown on the attached Worksheet. 

3. No additional transfer of property tax revenues shall be made from any other tax agencies to 
Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation District as a result of annexation entitled Annexation No. 1130. 

155



4. No transfer of property tax increments from properties within a community redevelopment 
project, which are legally committed to a Community Redevelopment Agency, shall be made during the 
period that such tax increment is legally committed for repayment of the redevelopment project costs. 

5. If at any time after the effective date of this resolution, the calculations used herein to 
determine initial property tax transfers or the data used to perform those calculations are found to be 
incorrect thus producing an improper or inaccurate property tax transfer, the property tax transfer shall be 
recalculated and the corrected transfer shall be implemented for the next fiscal year. 

The foregoing resolution was adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles, 
the Board of Directors of Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation District of Los Angeles County, and the governing 
bodies of Greater Los Angeles County Vector Control District, City of Santa Clarita, Santa Clarita Library, 
and Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, signatory hereto. 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER 
AGENCY 

SIGNATURE 

PRINT NAME AND TITLE 

Date 

(SIGNED IN COUNTERPART) 

156



A
U

D
IT

O
R

 
A

C
A

FA
N

03
 

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

 
TA

X
 

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

 
R

E
S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

 
W

O
R

K
SH

E
E

T
 

F
IS

C
A

L
 

Y
EA

R
 

2
0

2
2

-2
0

2
3

 

A
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N
 

T
O

: 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

 
N

U
M

B
E

R
: 

S
T

A
 

C
L

R
T

A
 

V
LY

 
S

A
N

IT
 

D
IS

 
O

F 
LA

 
C

O
 

0
6

7
.3

5
 

T
R

A
: 

0
0

5
4

7
 

E
F

F
E

C
T

IV
E

 
D

A
T

E
: 

0
7

/0
1

/2
0

2
3

 
A

N
N

E
X

A
T

IO
N

 
N

U
M

B
ER

: 
1

1
3

0 
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 

N
A

M
E

: 
A

-S
C

V
-1

1
3

0
 

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 
SH

A
R

E
: 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
# 

0
0

1
.0

5
 

0
0

1
.2

0
 

0
0

7
.3

0
 

0
0

7
.3

1
 

0
3

0
.1

0
 

0
3

0
.7

0
 

0
6

1
.8

0
 

0
6

8
.0

5
 

2
4

9
.0

1
 

2
4

9
.5

6
 

3
0

2
.0

1
 

4
0

0
.0

0
 

4
0

0
.0

1
 

4
0

0
.1

5
 

4
0

0
.2

1
 

6
6

5
.0

1
 

6
6

5
.0

6
 

6
6

5
.0

7
 

7
5

7
.0

2 

T
A

X
IN

G
 

A
G

E
N

C
Y

 

L
O

S 
A

N
G

E
L

E
S 

C
O

U
N

TY
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 

L
.A

. 
C

O
U

N
TY

 
A

C
C

U
M

 
C

A
P 

O
U

T
L

A
Y

 

C
O

N
SO

L
. 

F
IR

E
 

PR
O

.D
IS

T
.O

F
 

L
.A

.C
O

. 

L
A

C
 

F
IR

E
-F

FW
 

L
.A

.C
O

.F
L

.C
O

N
.D

R
.I

M
P

.D
IS

T
.M

A
IN

T
. 

L
A

 
C

O
 

FL
O

O
D

 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 
M

A
IN

T
 

G
R

E
A

T
E

R
 

L
A

 
C

O
 

V
E

C
T

O
R

 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 

A
N

T
E

L
O

P
E

 
V

Y
 

R
E

SO
U

R
C

E
 

C
O

N
SE

R
 

D
IS

T
 

C
IT

Y
-S

A
N

T
A

 
C

L
A

R
IT

A
 

T
D

 
#

1
 

C
IT

Y
-S

A
N

T
A

 
C

L
A

R
IT

A
 

L
IB

R
A

R
Y

 

SA
N

T
A

 
C

L
A

R
IT

A
 

V
A

L
L

E
Y

 
W

A
T

E
R

-C
L

W
A

 

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 
R

EV
 

A
U

G
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 

FD
 

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 
A

U
G

 
FD

 
IM

PO
U

N
D

 

C
O

U
N

TY
 

SC
H

O
O

L
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
'S

 
IN

S
T

IL
 

T
U

IT
IO

N
 

FU
N

D
 

SU
L

PH
U

R
 

S
P

R
IN

G
S

 
U

N
IO

N
 

SC
H

O
O

L
 

D
IS

 

C
O

.S
C

H
.S

E
R

V
.F

D
.-

SU
L

PH
U

R
 

S
P

R
IN

G
S

 

D
E

V
.C

T
R

.H
D

C
PD

-M
IN

O
R

-S
U

L
P

H
U

R
 

S
P

G
S

 

H
A

R
T 

W
IL

L
IA

M
S

 
U

N
IO

N
 

H
IG

H
 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 

TA
X

 
SH

A
R

E
 

0
. 2

2
3

1
3

0
3

2
1

 

0
.0

0
0

1
1

2
4

2
9

 

0 
.1

6
6

5
1

1
1

9
4 

0
. 

0
0

5
1

2
7

8
1

1
 

0
. 0

0
1

6
9

7
0

1
1

 

0
. 0

0
9

6
0

3
7

9
8

 

0
. 0

0
0

3
2

2
7

1
4

 

0
.0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

 

0
.0

5
5

8
9

0
3

9
1

 

0
.0

2
2

9
4

9
5

7
5

 

0
.0

5
6

4
3

3
6

0
8

 

0
.0

6
8

9
8

8
3

4
4

 

0
.1

3
3

7
6

5
2

9
4

 

0
. 0

0
1

3
9

4
2

6
1

 

0
. 0

0
2

7
6

7
1

2
7

 

0
.0

8
4

8
6

0
2

4
4

 

0
.0

0
7

2
7

6
2

8
3

 

0
.0

0
0

8
0

4
3

6
3

 

0
.0

7
9

5
9

6
4

8
4

 

P
E

R
C

E
N

T
 

2
2

.3
1

3
9

 
%

 

0
.0

1
1

2
 

%
 

1
6

.6
5

1
1

 
%

 

0
. 5

1
2

7
 

%
 

0
. 1

6
9

7
 

%
 

0
.9

6
0

3
 

%
 

0
.0

3
2

2
 

%
 

0
.0

0
0

0
 

%
 

5
.5

8
9

0
 

%
 

2
. 2

9
4

9
 

%
 

5
.6

4
3

3
 

%
 

6
. 8

9
8

8 
%

 

1
3

.3
7

6
5

 
%

 

0
.1

3
9

4
 

%
 

0
.2

7
6

7
 

%
 

8
. 4

8
6

0
 

%
 

0
. 

7
2

7
6

 
%

 

0
.0

8
0

4
 

%
 

7
. 9

5
9

6
 

%
 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 

D
IS

T
 

SH
A

R
E

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
. 

0
1

7
3

7
5

9
3

0
 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
0

4
/1

0
/2

0
2

3
 

PA
G

E
 

A
L

L
O

C
A

T
E

D
 

SH
A

R
E

 

0
.0

0
3

8
7

7
1

0
7

 

0
.0

0
0

0
0

1
9

5
3

 

0
.0

0
2

8
9

3
2

8
6

 

0
.0

0
0

0
8

9
1

0
0

 

0
.0

0
0

0
2

9
4

8
7

 

0
.0

0
0

1
6

6
8

7
4

 

0
.0

0
0

0
0

5
6

0
7

 

0
.0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

 

0
.0

0
0

9
7

1
1

4
7

 

0
.0

0
0

3
9

8
7

7
0

 

0
.0

0
0

9
8

0
5

8
6

 

0
.0

0
1

1
9

8
7

3
6

 

0
. 0

0
2

3
2

4
2

9
6

 

0
.0

0
0

0
2

4
2

2
6

 

0
.0

0
0

0
4

8
0

8
1

 

0
.0

0
1

4
7

4
5

2
5

 

0
.0

0
0

1
2

6
4

3
2

 

0
.0

0
0

0
1

3
9

7
6

 

0
. 0

0
1

3
8

3
0

6
2

 

A
D

JU
ST

M
E

N
T

S 

-0
.0

0
3

9
6

8
1

6
0

 

0
.0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

 

-0
.0

0
2

8
9

3
2

8
6

 

0
.0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

 

-
0

.0
0

0
0

2
9

4
8

7
 

-0
.0

0
0

1
6

6
8

7
4

 

-0
.0

0
0

0
0

5
6

0
7

 

0
.0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

 

-0
. 0

0
0

9
7

1
1

4
7

 

-0
.0

0
0

3
9

8
7

7
0

 

-0
.0

0
0

9
8

0
5

8
6

 

E
X

E
M

PT
 

E
X

E
M

PT
 

E
X

E
M

PT
 

E
X

E
M

PT
 

E
X

E
M

PT
 

E
X

E
M

PT
 

E
X

E
M

PT
 

E
X

E
M

PT
 

N
E

T
 

SH
A

R
E

 

0
.2

1
9

1
6

2
1

6
1

 

0
. 0

0
0

1
1

2
4

2
9

 

0
.1

6
3

6
1

7
9

0
8

 

0
. 0

0
5

1
2

7
8

1
1

 

0
.0

0
1

6
6

7
5

2
4

 

0
.0

0
9

4
3

6
9

2
4

 

0
.0

0
0

3
1

7
1

0
7

 

0
.0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

 

0
. 

0
5

4
9

1
9

2
4

4
 

0
.0

2
2

5
5

0
8

0
5

 

0
.0

5
5

4
5

3
0

2
2

 

0
.0

6
8

9
8

8
3

4
4

 

0 
.1

3
3

7
6

5
2

9
4

 

0
. 0

0
1

3
9

4
2

6
1

 

0
.0

0
2

7
6

7
1

2
7

 

0
.0

8
4

8
6

0
2

4
4

 

0
. 0

0
7

2
7

6
2

8
3

 

0
.0

0
0

8
0

4
3

6
3

 

0
. 0

7
9

5
9

6
4

8
4

 

1 

157



A
U

D
IT

O
R

 
A

C
A

FA
N

03
 

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

 
TA

X
 

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
 

R
E

SO
L

U
T

IO
N

 
W

O
R

K
SH

EE
T 

F
IS

C
A

L
 

Y
EA

R
 

2
0

2
2

-2
0

2
3

 

A
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N
 

N
U

M
B

ER
: 

1
1

3
0

 
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 

N
A

M
E:

 
A

-S
C

V
-1

1
3

0
 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
# 

T
A

X
IN

G
 

A
G

EN
C

Y
 

TA
X

 
SH

A
R

E
 

PE
R

C
E

N
T

 
D

IS
T

 
SH

A
R

E
 

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
-

7
5

7
.0

6
 

C
O

.S
C

H
.S

E
R

V
.F

D
.-

H
A

R
T

,W
IL

L
IA

M
 

S
. 

0
.0

0
0

3
3

1
7

9
8 

0
.0

3
3

1
 

%
 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

7
5

7
.0

7
 

H
A

R
T

,W
IL

L
IA

M
 

S
.

-E
L

E
M

 
S

C
H

O
O

L 
FU

N
D

 
0

.0
4

1
8

8
1

1
8

4
 

4
.1

8
8

1
 

%
 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

8
1

4
. 0

4 
SA

N
TA

 
C

L
A

R
IT

A
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 
0

.0
3

6
5

5
5

7
6

6
 

3
.6

5
5

5
 

%
 

0
.0

1
7

3
7

5
9

3
0

 

PR
E

PA
R

E
D

 
0

4
/1

0
/2

0
2

3
 

PA
G

E 

T
R

A
: 

0
0

5
4

7
 

A
L

L
O

C
A

T
E

D
 

SH
A

R
E

 
A

D
JU

ST
M

E
N

T
S 

N
E

T
 

SH
A

R
E

 
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

--
--

--
--

--
-

0
.0

0
0

0
0

5
7

6
5

 
E

X
E

M
PT

 
0

.0
0

0
3

3
1

7
9

8
 

0
.0

0
0

7
2

7
7

2
4

 
E

X
E

M
PT

 
0

.0
4

1
8

8
1

1
8

4
 

0
.0

0
0

6
3

5
1

9
0

 
E

X
E

M
PT

 
0

.0
3

6
5

5
5

7
6

6
 

*
*

*
0

6
7

.3
5

 
S

TA
 

C
L

R
T

A
 

V
LY

 
S

A
N

IT
 

D
IS

 
O

F 
LA

 
CO

 
0

.0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.0

0
0

0 
%

 
0

.0
1

7
3

7
5

9
3

0
 

0
.0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.0

0
9

4
1

3
9

1
7

 

T
O

T
A

L
: 

1
.0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

 
1

0
0

.0
0

0
0

 
%

 
0

.0
1

7
3

7
5

9
3

0
 

-0
.0

0
9

4
1

3
9

1
7

 
1

.0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

2 

158



18
3 

I 
02

-1
9-

1~
87

 
T

R
. N

O
. 3

97
50

, 
M

.B
. 

95
3,

 1
4 

-
17

 
21

 
08

-1
6-

19
66

 
N

E
 C

O
R

.,
 S

W
1

/4
, 

N
E

1/
4,

 S
E

C
. 2

2,
 

T
4

W
, 4

1
5

2
, 

W
.B

.M
. 

@
o/#

]'fJ
ff@

J,9
 

~~
'fJ

ff@
J,9

 
@

~
~

c 
~~

9 
[J

@
J~

ll 
~'f

J@
o/

#/
lj 

@
.[~

UR
ala

 
.. ~
 

•'l
'j;

 
c'

.. 

i"-
''lj

 
0"

 c;
 

\
~

 )A
 

1
/ 

/ / 
,,,,,

, ...
 .,.,

,. .. 

"F
O

R
 T

A
X

A
SS

E
SS

M
E

N
T

 
P

U
R

P
O

SE
S 

O
N

L
Y

" 

L
A

 C
ou

nt
y 

A
ss

es
so

r 
la

nd
ba

se
, 

C
A

M
S

 C
en

te
rli

n
e,

 O
P

W
 C

ity
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

L
A

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
an

ita
tio

n 
D

is
tr

ic
ts

: 
A

nn
ex

at
io

n
la

ye
r 

an
d 

D
is

tr
ic

t l
a

y
e

r 

E
A

O
/A

U
G

U
S

T
 1

5,
 2

02
3 

• 

~o
,~

1c
; 

,(
,,~

\)
~

 <:
:,\

~~
"\ 

o«
~~

 
:-{

 ~~
~'

{ 
:?,

'1-
'.?,

'\ 
\,,<

;::,
 

~
,b

i-

~
'-

.\
~

\;
 

~
1

N
 

~\
,,o

<?
 

,',
'j'

:>
~)

c 

r-..
.~'

\ 
~o

·<c
 

r·
 

~'
l>

'Q
 

,\."
<'<

>~
~ 

v~
' 

10
79

 
05

-1
7-

20
18

 

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 

S
A

N
T

A
 C

L
A

R
IT

A
 

A
nn

ex
at

io
n 

N
o.

 1
13

0 
sh

ow
n 

th
us

 .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. .
 

I 

~~
 

~
,(

,,
~

\~
 

~o
~ ....

 ,~
 ,

f,,
 s

'?>
 

• 
G

I.
;,

 
'!i

 
'l-

'!i
 

~'
°'q

..'
<:

-'-
~o

-"'
<o

<:
.,. 

s~
-<

?--
'J.;

 
o

~
\ 

'""
 <

o't-
-<

:,'l
-~

 \
 ~

" 
,,o

 \
<:

,-
' 

\'l
-"

 

I 
B

ou
nd

ar
y 

of
 S

an
ta

 C
la

rit
a 

V
al

le
y 

S
an

ita
tio

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

P
ri

or
 to

 A
nn

ex
at

io
n 

N
o

. 1
13

0 
sh

ow
n 

th
us

 
W

#i
½

 
P

rio
r 

A
nn

ex
at

io
ns

 s
ho

w
n 

th
us

 

A
re

a 
o

f A
nn

ex
at

io
n 

A
N

N
E

X
. 

N
O

. 
(R

E
C

O
R

D
IN

G
 D

A
T

E
) 

1.
49

9 
A

cr
es

 

z --
' 

LJ
.J 

(!
) 

0 

?
-
0

~
~

'?
-
.~

' 

.<a
, 

A
N

N
E

X
 N

O
 1

13
0 

<'.
~

 
-:

,,
. t 

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 

SA
N

T
A

 C
L

A
R

IT
A

 

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

 
N

O
 S

C
A

LE
 

C
O

U
R

S
E

 D
A

T
A

 

L 
1 

S
 6

0
°5

8'
12

" 
W

 
47

0
.0

0'
 

L2
 

S
 5

8
°0

6'
27

" 
W

 
20

0
.2

5'
 

L3
 

S
 6

0
°5

8'
12

" 
W

 
48

1.
28

' 
L4

 
N

 3
5°

12
'4

2"
 W

 
50

.0
0'

 
C

5 
R

=
2

1
0

6
.1

8 
L

=
3

2
4

.4
1

' 
0

=
0

8
°4

9
'3

0
" 

L6
 

N
 4

5
°5

7'
48

" 
E

 
92

.3
6'

 
L?

 
S

 4
4

°0
2'

12
" 

E
 

50
.0

0'
 

L8
 

N
 6

6
'4

6
'5

6
" 

E
 

73
9.

75
' 

0 
t 10

0 
20

0 
F

ee
t 

S
A

N
T

A
 C

LA
R

IT
A

 V
A

L
L

E
Y

 
S

A
N

IT
A

T
IO

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 

O
F

 L
O

S
 A

N
G

E
L

E
S

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, 
C

A
 

O
F

F
IC

E
 O

F
 C

H
IE

F
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 
R

O
B

E
R

T
 C

. 
FE

R
 R

A
N

 T
E

 
C

H
IE

F
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 &
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
 

A
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N
 N

O
. 

11
30

 
T

O
 

S
A

N
T

A
 C

LA
R

IT
A

 V
A

LL
E

Y
 

S
A

N
IT

A
T

IO
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 
R

e
co

rd
e

d
: 

159



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

160



 

 BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The Saugus #3 and #4 Wells Construction (Replacement Wells) Project is currently in 
construction. Due to unforeseen delays, additional funds are being requested to extend the 
construction management services for the project. Staff recommends approval of a purchase 
order amendment to Black & Veatch Corporation (BV) for construction management services for 
an amount not to exceed of $1,414,000.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
On April 5, 2022, the Board of Directors authorized staff to issue a notice of award to Zim 
Industries, Inc. for construction of the Saugus #3 & #4 Wells Construction (Replacement Wells) 
Project (Project). The Board of Directors also authorized issuing a purchase order for an amount 
not to exceed $914,000 for construction management services to BV.  
 
The notice to proceed was issued on April 29, 2022. The original project duration schedule was 
four hundred (400) calendar days which resulted in a completion date of June 3, 2023. Due to 
unforeseen delays, the new estimated completion date is April 2024.  
 
The delays include: permitting, zone re-testing, lab results, rain delays, temporary drain line 
design and relocation, additional Agency review time on submittals, and encountering hard rock 
formations during drilling. The delays were outside of the contractor’s control and no liquidated 
damages were applicable.  
 
The project’s scope of work is not changing, and only additional funding is being requested at 
this time for BV’s construction management services. BV’s general scope of work includes 
inspection, overall construction coordination and material testing. 
 
The project’s scope of work consists of constructing two wells with a capacity of 2,000 gallons 
per minute to drilled depths ranging between 2,000 and 3,000 feet below ground surface. Major 
tasks include pilot hole drilling, downhole geophysical surveying, isolated aquifer zone testing, 
pilot hole ream, caliper & deviation surveys, well casing, gravel pack, annular grout seal, well 
casing alignment testing, and well development.  
 
 
 
 

DATE: October 2, 2023 
 

TO: Board of Directors 
 

FROM: Courtney Mael, P.E. 
Chief Engineer 

SUBJECT: Approve Adopting a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a 
Purchase Order Amendment for Construction Management Services for the 
Saugus #3 and #4 Wells Construction (Replacement Wells) Project 

161

ajacobs
Courteny Mael

ajacobs
Item 6.1



 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT DETERMINATION 
 
As the previously approved Project is not changing, and only additional funding is being 
requested at this time for BV’s construction management services, the approval of additional 
funding is not a project subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under State 
CEQA Guidelines section 15060(c)(3) and in the alternatively, is exempt from CEQA under the 
commonsense exemption pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3). 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS  
 
This Project will help meet the Agency’s Strategic Plan Objective B.1.1: “Implement capital 
projects related to infrastructure reliability”. 
 
On September 6, 2023, the Engineering and Operations Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve adopting a resolution authorizing the General Manager to execute 
a purchase order amendment for construction management services for the Saugus #3 and #4 
Wells Construction (Replacement Wells) Project.  
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
BV’s original budget for construction management services is an amount not to exceed 
$914,000, and an additional $500,000 is being requested at this time. BV’s services are 
performed on a time and materials basis and the previously issued purchase order will be 
amended.  
 
This Project is included in the Agency’s FY 2023/24 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
Projects Budget. The FY 2023/24 budget will be revised to account for the additional cost. The 
first $8.3 million of the project will be funded by Whittaker Corporation, consistent with terms of 
the Castaic Lake Water Agency Litigation Settlement Agreement and amendments related to 
perchlorate contamination.  
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve 
adopting the attached resolution authorizing the General Manager to execute a purchase 
order amendment for construction management services to Black & Veatch Corporation for an 
amount not to exceed of $1,414,000 for the Saugus #3 and #4 Wells Construction 
(Replacement Wells) Project.  
 
Attachment 

162

ajacobs
Matt Stone



RESOLUTION NO. SCV-XXX 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY TO 

APPROVE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR  
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE SAUGUS WELLS #3 & #4 

WELLS CONSTRUCTION (REPLACEMENT WELLS) PROJECT 

WHEREAS, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) desires to take steps to increase the 
reliability of its existing water system; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency’s Capital Improvement Program includes construction of the Saugus 
#3 and #4 Wells Construction (Replacement Wells) Project (Project); and 

WHEREAS, the previously approved Project is not changing, and only additional funding is 
being requested at this time for Black & Veatch Corporation’s construction management 
services, the approval of additional funding is not a project subject to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under State CEQA Guidelines section 15060(c)(3) and in 
the alternatively, is exempt from CEQA under the commonsense exemption pursuant to State 
CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3); and  

WHEREAS, it is in the Agency’s best interest that the Board of Directors, on behalf of the 
Agency, authorize its General Manager to execute a purchase order amendment to Black & 
Veatch Corporation for construction management services for an amount not to exceed of 
$1,414,000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s 
Board of Directors does authorize its General Manager to execute a purchase order 
amendment to Black & Veatch Corporation for construction management services for an 
amount not to exceed of $1,414,000. 

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or Chief Engineer are thereafter 
authorized to execute and forward to Black & Veatch Corporation an amended purchase order. 

163



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

164



Re
qu

es
ti

ng
 A

dd
it

io
na

l F
un

di
ng

 F
or

 
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 f
or

Th
e 

Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Pr

oj
ec

t

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
ti

ng

O
ct

ob
er

 1
7,

 2
02

3

165



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Lo

ca
ti

on

2

166



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

on
•

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

co
ns

is
ts

 o
f 

dr
ill

in
g 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
ng

 t
w

o 
w

el
ls

 w
it

h 
a 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f 

2,
00

0 
ga

llo
ns

 p
er

 m
in

ut
e 

to
 d

ri
lle

d 
de

pt
hs

 r
an

gi
ng

 b
et

w
ee

n 
2,

00
0 

an
d 

3,
00

0 
fe

et
 b

el
ow

 g
ro

un
d 

su
rf

ac
e.

3

167



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

•
Aw

ar
de

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

(A
pr

il 
5,

 2
02

2)

•
Sa

ug
us

 W
el

l #
3:

–
Pi

lo
t 

H
ol

e
–

14
 Is

ol
at

ed
 A

qu
if

er
 Z

on
e 

Te
st

in
gs

–
W

el
l c

as
in

g 
in

st
al

la
ti

on

4

Bi
dd

er
Co

nt
ra

ct
 A

m
ou

nt

Zi
m

 In
du

st
rie

s,
 In

c.
(F

re
sn

o,
 C

A)
$1

2,
75

1,
49

4

168



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

(c
on

t’
d)

5

Pi
lo

t 
H

ol
e 

D
ri

lli
ng

D
ri

ll 
Ri

g

169



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

(c
on

t’
d)

6

D
ri

ll 
Bi

t 
(B

ef
or

e/
A

ft
er

 E
nc

ou
nt

er
in

g 
H

ar
d 

Fo
rm

at
io

n)

170



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

(c
on

t’
d)

7

D
ri

ll 
Cu

tt
in

g 
Sa

m
pl

es
M

ud
 T

an
ks

171



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

(c
on

t’
d)

8

W
at

er
 S

am
pl

in
g

Zo
ne

 T
es

ti
ng

172



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

(c
on

t’
d)

9

Ca
si

ng
 In

st
al

la
ti

on

173



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

(c
on

t’
d)

10

M
ud

dy
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

it
e 

A
ft

er
 R

ai
n

174



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

(c
on

t’
d)

11

M
ud

dy
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

it
e 

A
ft

er
 R

ai
n

175



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

(c
on

t’
d)

12

D
ra

in
 L

in
e 

Re
lo

ca
ti

on

176



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Ti

m
el

in
e

13

Ac
tiv

ity
N

ot
es

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 N

ot
ic

e 
to

 P
ro

ce
ed

•
Ap

ril
 2

9,
 2

02
2

•
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

ur
at

io
n:

 4
00

 c
al

en
da

r d
ay

s
•

Es
tim

at
ed

 c
on

tr
ac

t c
om

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

: J
un

e 
3,

 
20

23
Pr

oj
ec

t T
im

e 
Ex

te
ns

io
n

•
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 re
ce

iv
ed

 a
 2

15
 c

al
en

da
r d

ay
 n

on
-

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
tim

e 
ex

te
ns

io
n.

•
N

ew
 c

on
tr

ac
t c

om
pl

et
io

n 
da

te
: J

an
ua

ry
 4

, 
20

24
.

Es
tim

at
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 c
om

pl
et

io
n

•
Th

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
da

te
 is

 
Ap

ril
 4

, 2
02

4.
•

Es
tim

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

 is
 3

04
 

ca
le

nd
ar

 d
ay

s b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 p
ro

je
ct

 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
da

te
.

177



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
D

el
ay

s

14

Ty
pe

 o
f D

el
ay

# 
of

 d
ay

s
Pe

rm
itt

in
g

86
Re

-T
es

tin
g 

Zo
ne

s
20

La
b 

Re
su

lts
50

D
ril

lin
g 

(E
nc

ou
nt

er
in

g 
H

ar
d 

Ro
ck

 F
or

m
at

io
n)

53
Ad

di
tio

na
l A

ge
nc

y 
Re

vi
ew

 T
im

e 
(M

at
er

ia
l S

ub
m

itt
al

s,
 

D
ra

in
 li

ne
 R

el
oc

at
io

n 
D

es
ig

n,
et

c.
)

55

Ra
in

 D
el

ay
s a

nd
 D

ra
in

 L
in

e 
Re

lo
ca

tio
n 

W
or

k
40

•
W

el
l d

ri
lli

ng
 o

pe
ra

ti
on

 is
 2

4/
7.


Ag

en
cy

 in
sp

ec
ti

on
 s

ta
ff

 c
ov

er
s 

da
y 

sh
if

t.
 O

ve
rt

im
e 

op
ti

on
 is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 s
ta

ff
.


Bl

ac
k 

&
 V

ea
tc

h 
(B

V)
 c

ov
er

s
12

 h
ou

r 
ni

gh
t 

sh
if

t,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

w
ee

ke
nd

s.
•

BV
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 o

n 
a 

ti
m

e 
an

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 b
as

is
.

•
BV

 s
te

ps
 in

 w
he

n 
Ag

en
cy

 s
ta

ff
 is

 u
na

va
ila

bl
e.

 (
e.

g.
 h

ol
id

ay
 c

ov
er

ag
e,

 s
ho

rt
 s

ta
ff

ed
, 

or
 

Ag
en

cy
 s

ta
ff

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

ot
he

r 
ti

m
e 

se
ns

it
iv

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 j

ob
s)

.

178



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

) 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l C

on
si

de
ra

ti
on

s

15

•
An

 a
dd

it
io

na
l $

50
0,

00
0 

is
 b

ei
ng

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 d

ue
 t

o 
un

fo
re

se
en

 d
el

ay
s.

 W
e 

an
ti

ci
pa

te
 c

om
pl

et
in

g 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
w

it
h 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

. 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

B
.1

.1
: “

Im
pl

em
en

t c
ap

ita
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
re

lia
bi

lit
y”

Bi
dd

er
O

rig
in

al
 P

O
 A

m
ou

nt

Bl
ac

k 
&

 V
ea

tc
h 

(fo
r C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s)

$9
14

,0
00

179



–
Te

am
 w

ill
 c

on
ti

nu
e 

to
 o

ff
se

t 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 in
sp

ec
ti

on
 c

os
ts

 w
it

h 
in

-h
ou

se
 

in
sp

ec
ti

on
.

–
To

ta
l a

m
en

de
d 

PO
 a

m
ou

nt
 b

ei
ng

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 f

or
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t

(C
M

) 
an

d 
in

sp
ec

ti
on

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
is

 (
$1

,4
14

,0
00

),
 w

hi
ch

 is
 1

1%
 o

f 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

($
12

,7
51

,4
94

).
 T

yp
ic

al
ly

, 
15

% 
is

 a
 g

oo
d 

st
ar

ti
ng

 
po

in
t 

fo
r 

CM
 a

nd
 in

sp
ec

ti
on

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 t

yp
e 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
.

–
O

ri
gi

na
lly

 p
re

se
nt

ed
at

 t
he

 E
&

O
 r

eq
ue

st
in

g 
a 

to
ta

l a
m

en
de

d 
PO

 a
m

ou
nt

 
of

$1
,8

99
,0

00
 f

or
CM

an
d 

in
sp

ec
ti

on
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 W
e 

w
ill

ut
ili

ze
 in

-h
ou

se
 

in
sp

ec
ti

on
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

of
fs

et
 o

ur
 o

ri
gi

na
lr

eq
ue

st
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

.

Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

)
A

dd
it

io
na

l K
ey

 P
oi

nt
s

16

180



Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 W
el

ls
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
W

el
ls

)
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on

Th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
s 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

re
co

m
m

en
ds

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ir
ec

to
rs

 a
pp

ro
ve

:

•
Ad

op
ti

ng
 a

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

au
th

or
iz

in
g 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 t
o 

ex
ec

ut
e 

a 
pu

rc
ha

se
 

or
de

r 
am

en
dm

en
t 

fo
r 

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

Bl
ac

k 
&

 V
ea

tc
h 

Co
rp

or
at

io
n 

fo
r 

an
 a

m
ou

nt
 n

ot
 t

o 
ex

ce
ed

 $
1,

41
4,

00
0 

fo
r 

th
e 

Sa
ug

us
 #

3 
an

d 
#4

 
W

el
ls

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
(R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

W
el

ls
) 

Pr
oj

ec
t.

17

181



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

182



 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
The Finance and Administration (F&A) Committee met at 5:30 PM on Monday, September 25, 
2023, in the Board Room of the Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant. In attendance were Chair Ken 
Petersen and Directors Kathye Armitage, Ed Colley and Maria Gutzeit. Staff members in 
attendance included: Management Analyst II Erika Dill, Administrative Services Manager Kim 
Grass, Administrative Technician Paul Hoover, Right-of-Way Agent Kristina Jacob, Chief 
Engineer Courtney Mael, Fleet & Warehouse Supervisor Jesus Martinez Ramirez, General 
Manager Matt Stone, IT Technician I Jonathan Thomas, Customer Service Manager Kathleen 
Willson and myself. Additional SCV Water staff and members of the public were present. A copy 
of the Agenda is attached. 
 
Item 1:  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Item 2: Public Comment – There was no public comment. 
 
Item 3:  Recommend Approval of a Resolution Adopting a Revised Investment Policy –  
Staff presented this item and the Committee unanimously agreed to place this item on the 
Consent Calendar for the October 17, 2023 regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 4: Recommend Approval of the First Addendum to Ground Lease for the Property at 
22722 Soledad Canyon Road – Staff presented an update on the revised lease terms for the 
current tenant at 22722 Soledad Canyon Road, Action Family Counseling. The Committee 
asked for some clarification on terms in the lease, but agreed to place the item on the Consent 
Calendar for the October 17, 2023 regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 5: Recommend Approval of Purchase of Two (2) Backhoe Replacements for Agency 
Fleet – Staff presented this item to the Committee, and after some clarifying questions were 
answered, agreed to have the item placed on the Consent Calendar for the October 17, 2023 
regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 6: Recommend Approval of a Revised Customer Service Policy – Staff presented 
this item and the Committee unanimously agreed to place this item on the Consent 
Calendar for the October 17, 2023 regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 7: Fleet and Warehouse Update – Staff presented a PowerPoint update on fleet and 
warehousing activities. 
 

DATE: September 26, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Rochelle Patterson 
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 

SUBJECT: September 25, 2023 Rescheduled Finance and Administration Committee 
Meeting Recap Report 

183

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson

ajacobs
Item 8.1



 

Item 8: Recommend Receiving and Filing of July 2023 Monthly Financial Report – Staff 
presented this item and the Committee unanimously agreed to have it placed on the Consent 
Calendar for the October 17, 2023 regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 9: Committee Planning Calendar – Staff briefly mentioned the upcoming items for the 
next few F&A Committee meetings. 
 
Item 10: Requests for Future Agenda Items – One Director requested clarifying the different 
types of capacity fees and their purpose when the subject is next presented to the Committee. 
 
Item 11:  General Report on Finance and Administration Activities – Staff reported that the 
enrollment in the Ratepayer Assistance Program is currently up to 342 applications. 
 
Item 12: Adjournment – The meeting was adjourned at 6:31 PM. 
 
The meeting recording is available on the SCV Water Website or by clicking the following link: 
Finance and Administration Committee Meeting Recording. 
 
 
RP 
 
Attachment 

184

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2023-09/Meeting%20Recording.mp3
ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350 -2173 •  661 297•1600  •  FAX 661 297•1611 
webs i t e  address :  www. yourscvwate r . com 

 
 
  
 
 
 
Date: September 18, 2023 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 Ken Petersen, Chair 
 Kathye Armitage 
 Ed Colley 
 Maria Gutzeit 
 
From: Rochelle Patterson 

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 
 
The Rescheduled Finance and Administration Committee is scheduled for Monday, 
September 25, 2023 at 5:30 PM at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 
in the Board Room and the teleconference site listed below. Members of the public may 
attend in person or virtually. To attend this meeting virtually, please see below. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICES 
 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 
Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 161 183 6917 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1611836917. Any member of the public may listen to the 
meeting or make comments to the Committee using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link 
above. However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 
remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person. 
 
Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Committee meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to 
protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
 
Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
edill@scvwa.org or by mail to Erika Dill, Management Analyst II, SCV Water, 27234 Bouquet 
Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received before 3:00 PM the day 
of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and posted on the SCV Water 
website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received after 3:00 PM the day of the meeting 
will be made available at the meeting, if practical, and will be posted on the SCV Water website 
the following day. All correspondence with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted 
in their entirety. 
 
 

5 185

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1611836917
mailto:edill@scvwa.org
edill
Rochelle signature



September 18, 2023 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

ITEM    PAGE 
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

2.   * PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to 
items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not 
on the Agenda at this time. Members of the public wishing to 
comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so at the time each 
item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the 
Committee Chair, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) 

 

3.   * Recommend Approval of a Resolution Adopting a Revised Investment 
Policy 

9 

4.   * Recommend Approval of the First Addendum to Ground Lease for the 
Property at 22722 Soledad Canyon Road 

29 

5.   * Recommend Approval of Purchase of Two (2) Backhoes for 
Agency Fleet 

69 

6.   * Recommend Approval of a Revised Customer Service Policy 75 

7.    Fleet and Warehouse Update  

8.   * Recommend Receiving and Filing of July 2023 Monthly Financial 
Report 
 
July 2023 Check Registers Link: 
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departme
nts/finance/check-registers/Check%20Register%20-
%20July%202023.pdf 

79 

9.   * Committee Planning Calendar 107 

10. Requests for Future Agenda Items  

11. General Report on Finance and Administration Activities  

12. Adjournment  

 
 * Indicates attachments 

 To be distributed 
  

6 186

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/finance/check-registers/Check%20Register%20-%20July%202023.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/finance/check-registers/Check%20Register%20-%20July%202023.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/finance/check-registers/Check%20Register%20-%20July%202023.pdf


September 18, 2023 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

NOTICES: 
 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Erika Dill, 
Management Analyst II at (661) 297-1600, or writing to SCV Water at 27234 Bouquet Canyon 
Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type 
of accommodation requested. A telephone number or other contact information should be 
included so that Agency staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a 
disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the 
meeting for the Agency to provide the requested accommodation. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Committee less than seventy-two 
(72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at SCV Water, located at 
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, California 91350, during regular business hours. 
When practical, these public records will also be made available on the Agency’s Internet 

Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com. 
 

Posted on September 19, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 187

http://www.yourscvwater.com/
edill
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

188



 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

               
 
The Engineering and Operations Committee met at 5:30 PM on Wednesday, October 5, 2023 in 
the Summit Circle Engineering Services Section Boardroom located at 26521 Summit Circle. In 
attendance were Committee Chair Gary Martin and Directors Piotr Orzechowski and Kenneth 
Petersen. Staff members present were Assistant General Manager Steve Cole; Chief Engineer 
Courtney Mael; Chief Operating Officer Keith Abercrombie; Engineer Wai Lan Lee; Executive 
Assistant Leticia Quintero; Field Services Supervisor Steve Patterson; Right of Way Agent 
Kristina Jacob; Senior Inspector, Damien Forrand, Water Systems Supervisor Ryan Bye and 
additional SCV Water Agency staff. Two members of the public were present. A copy of the 
agenda is attached.  
 
Item 1: Pledge of Allegiance – Chairman Martin led the Committee in the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  
 
Item 2: Public Comments – There was no public comment. 
 
Item 3: Recommend Approval of the Replacement of 4273 Meters as Part of 
the AMI Meter Replacement Program – The Committee and staff briefly discussed the meter 
replacement program. The Committee recommended the item be placed on the Consent 
Calendar at the October 17, 2023 regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 4: Recommend Approval of a Contract to Rehabilitate Saugus Well 2 
and Find that the Proposed Action is Exempt from CEQA – The Committee and staff 
discussed the need to rehabilitate Saugus Well 2. The Committee recommended the item be 
placed on the Consent Calendar at the October 17, 2023 regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 5: Recommend Approval of Adopting a Resolution Authorizing Additional 
Change Order Authority to the General Manager for the Santa Clara 
and Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Project – There was public comment. The 
Committee and staff briefly discussed the change order. The Committee recommended the item 
be placed on the Consent Calendar at the October 17, 2023 regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 6: Bouquet Canyon Trail Informational Presentation – Kristina Jacob provided an 
informational presentation on the City’s Bouquet Canyon Trail to the Committee. 
 
Item 7: Real Property Activity Report – Staff and the Committee reviewed the Real Property 
Activity Report. 
 
Item 8: Monthly Operations and Production Report – Staff and the Committee reviewed the 
Operations and Production Report.  
 

DATE: October 9, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Courtney Mael, P.E., Chief Engineer 
Keith Abercrombie, Chief Operating Officer 

 SUBJECT: October 5, 2023 Engineering and Operations Committee Meeting Recap 
Report 

189

ajacobs
Item 8.2

ajacobs
Courteny Mael

ajacobs
Keith Abercrombie



 

Item 9: Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report – Staff and the 
Committee reviewed the Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report. 
 
Item 10: Committee Planning Calendar – Staff and the Committee reviewed the FY 2023/24 
Committee Planning Calendar. 
 
Item 11: General Report on Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance 
Services Section Activities – Keith Abercrombie briefly updated the Committee on the 
completed pipeline project on Begonias Lane which was approved by the Board. Also, regarding 
continuing to improve the Emergency Preparedness of SCV Water, a back-up generator has 
been ordered and is awaiting delivery for the Golden Triangle facility. Keith also updated the 
Committee on Asset Management, working with GIS, and the behind-the-scenes programing 
being done which will help to identify and manage assets such as valves, pumps, and motors. 
Also, a needs assessment to evaluate the next steps in implementing a CMMS (computerized 
maintenance management system) is currently underway.  
 
Item 12: General Report on Engineering Services Section Activities – Courtney Mael briefly 
updated the Committee on the two new Administrative Technicians within the Engineering 
Services Section, Roy Hembree and Vanessa Streb. Lastly, Courtney introduced Senior 
Inspector, Damien Forrand who shared with the Committee a presentation on the Procore 
Construction Management Software. 
 
Item 13: Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 6:55 PM. 
 
The meeting recording is available on the SCV Water Website or by clicking the following link: 
Engineering and Operations Committee Meeting Recording. 
 
CM/KA 
 
Attachment 

190

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2023-10/October%205%2C%202023%20Engineerging%20and%20Operations%20Committee%20Meeting%20Audio.mp3
ajacobs
Matt Stone



     
 

 

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 •  661 297•1600 •  FAX 661 297•1611 
webs i te  add ress :  www.y ou rscv wa te r . co m 

 
 
  
 
 
Date: September 26, 2023 
 
To: Engineering and Operations Committee  
 William Cooper, Chair 
 Gary Martin 
 Piotr Orzechowski 
 Kenneth Petersen 
  
From: Courtney Mael, Chief Engineer 

Keith Abercrombie, Chief Operating Officer 
 
The Engineering and Operations Committee meeting is scheduled on Thursday, October 5, 
2023 at 5:30 PM at 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the Engineering 
Services Section (ESS) Boardroom. Members of the public may attend in person or virtually. 
To attend this meeting virtually, please see below. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICES  
 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 
Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 161 054 6796 Zoom Webinar by clicking on the link 
https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1610546796. Any member of the public may listen to the 
meeting or make comments to the Committee using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link 
above. However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 
remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person. 
 
Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Committee meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to 
protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
 
Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
eadler@scvwa.org or by mail to Elizabeth Adler, Executive Assistant, Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency, 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received before 
4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and posted on the 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received 
after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting, will be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and 
will be posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with comments, 
including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 
  

191

eadler
CM initials

eadler
Keith Abercrombie initials



September 26, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

MEETING AGENDA 

 
ITEM PAGE 
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to 
items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not 
on the Agenda at this time. Members of the public wishing to 
comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so at the time 
each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the 
Committee Chair, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) 

 

3.   * Recommend Approval of the Replacement of 4273 Meters as Part of 
the AMI Meter Replacement Program 

1 

4.   * Recommend Approval of a Contract to Rehabilitate Saugus Well 2 
and Find that the Proposed Action is Exempt from CEQA 

13 

5.   * Recommend Approval of Adopting a Resolution Authorizing Additional 
Change Order Authority to the General Manager for the Santa Clara 
and Honby Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Project 

29 

6.   * Bouquet Canyon Trail Informational Presentation 41 

7.   * Real Property Activity Report 45 

8.   * Monthly Operations and Production Report 51 

9.   * Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report 61 

10.   * Committee Planning Calendar 63 

11.    General Report on Treatment, Distribution, Operations and 
Maintenance Services Section Activities 

 

12.    General Report on Engineering Services Section Activities  

13.    Adjournment  

 
 * Indicates Attachment 

• Indicates Handout 
 

NOTICES: 
 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Elizabeth Adler, 
Executive Assistant, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency at 
26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must specify the nature of the 
disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone number or other contact 
information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. 
Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate 
time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested accommodation. 

192



September 26, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Committee less than seventy-two 
(72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com. 
 
Posted on September 28, 2023. 
 

193

eadler
Matt Stone initials



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

194


	Information Sheet
	Agenda
	Item 5.1
	Item 5.2
	Item 5.3
	Item 5.4
	Item 5.5
	Item 5.6
	Item 5.7
	Item 5.8
	Item 5.9
	Item 5.10
	Item 6.1
	Item 8.1
	Item 8.2



